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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Bt 5 1 R

Increase/
(Decrease)
2020/20214  2019/2020%F &40, (E4) %

Operating results (HK$’'000) &E&%&(FBx)
Revenue WA 119,441 176,209 (56,768) (32.2)
Gross profit EF 68,793 118,391 (49,598) (41.9)
Loss for the year FAEIE (36,846) (32,253 4,593 14.2
Profitability (%) B RIBE (%)
Gross profit margin VRS 57.6 67.2 (9.6) (14.3)
Net profit margin Ay lpE (30.8) (18.3) (12.5) (68.3)
Return on equity & 7S (2] 3 2 (11.5) (9.6) 1.9) (19.8)
Return on total assets BEER R E (5.2) (5.1) 0.1) (2.0)
Liquidity REBES
Current ratio (time) BN & (£%) 0.4 0.7 (0.3) (42.9)
Quick ratio (time) BN R (F) 0.3 0.6 0.3) (50.0)
Inventory turnover (days) FERE(RE) 110.9 54.6 56.3 103.1
Trade receivables turnover B SRR RE

(days) (RE0 33.7 35.1 (1.4) (4.0)
Trade payables turnover o RNFIBRE

(days) (RED 78.9 63.4 15.5 24.4
Per share data BREE
Loss per share i EE

- Basic (HK cents) - EARGEL) (2.93) (1.81) 1.12 61.9

- Diluted (HK cents) — #5E (Bl (2.93) (1.81) 1.12 61.9
Dividend per share BREE

= Interim (HK cents) — FREFCBAL) - - - -

- Final (HK cents) — RERCBAL) - - - -
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Audit Committee”

“Board”

“Brand Development and
Management Segment”

“BVI”

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“Director(s)”

“Fullshare”

“Fullshare Group”

the audit committee of the Company

the board of Directors

the business segment in which the
Group purchases primarily personal
care products from the brand
proprietors and manages and develops
the brand of such products

the British Virgin Islands

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding
Co. Limited, $T4 % B (B ZERAR A
7], an exempted company incorporated
with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 28 October 2010

has the meaning ascribed thereto under
the Listing Rules and, in the context of
the Company, means each of Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and Genwealth

the directors of the Company

Fullshare Holdings Limited, 2 3% % %
BRAF], a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability
whose issued shares are listed on the

Stock Exchange (stock code: 607)

Fullshare and its subsidiaries
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DEFINITIONS

B %

“Genwealth”

“GMP”

“Group”

“Healthcare Segment”

“Hin Feng Group”

“Hin Sang Holding”

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited ({TE R EZERBER AR, a
company incorporated with limited
liability on 5 October 2010 in the BVI,
the issued shares of which are owned
as to 90% by Mr. Pang and 10% by
Mrs. Pang, a controlling shareholder of
the Company under the Listing Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is a
quality assurance approach used by
drug manufacturing industry worldwide
to ensure that products are consistently
produced and controlled according
to appropriate quality standards.
Hong Kong, like most other countries,
has adopted the GMP guidelines
promulgated by the World Health
Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

the business segment in which the
Group engages in providing Chinese
medical healthcare related services
which targets for mothers and children
in Hong Kong and the PRC

Hin Feng Group (International)
Holding Company Limited #7744 &
(BBR)IZRE B BR 2 7], a joint venture
company established in Hong Kong
on 7 July 2016, owned as to 51% by
the Company and as to 49% by Five
Seasons VIl Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Fullshare)

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited (7
EEEZERAERAA), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 11
September 2006 in the BVI and directly
wholly-owned by the Company

[GMP]
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“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

uHK$u

“Hong Kong”

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

“Nomination Committee”

“PRC” or “China”

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited ($74
1TEBR A F]), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 13 June 1996 in
Hong Kong and wholly-owned by Hin
Sang Holding and an indirect subsidiary
of the Company

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency
of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the listing of Shares on the Main Board

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (& 2>47), an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BB 5£), the spouse
of Mr. Pang, an executive Director and
a Controlling Shareholder

the nomination committee of the
Company

the People’s Republic of China which,
for the purposes of this annual report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

the Pre-IPO share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014
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DEFINITIONS

B %

“Product Development
Segment”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”
“Stock Exchange”

“Tai Wo Tong

Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

“Year”

6 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

the business segment in which the
Group develops own personal care
products, health supplements and
household products sold under its own
brands, including but not limited to “Hin
Sang ($74)”, “Tai Wo Tong (KFIE)”,
“Care Plus (f.+M[)”, “Shuang Long
(#88)” and “King’s Antiseptic (& L)

the remuneration committee of the
Company

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares

the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong
Kong) Company Limited (A F1 & 51 %%(&
7#)B PR A R)), a company incorporated
with limited liability on 6 April 2009 in
Hong Kong

the business segment in which
the Group engages in trading and
distributing skin care products, personal
care products and household products
purchased from various authorised
dealers and independent traders or
directly from suppliers

the year ended 31 March 2021
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2\ B B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) EOUTRE (FEFTHAER)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man FRER T
Non-executive Directors FEHITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BER T
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping mEFEAE
(Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020) (E =875 5 20209F6 5 16 H #4£XK)
Independent non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Mr. Lau Chi Kit DB GEAE
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu BRI E
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B2 BLE £
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREE®
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman) RIS E(EE)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit R GEAE
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B2 BE £
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (Chairman) B E (FE)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZL L
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu BRIk E
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B BE £
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZEE®
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman) B miE L (/)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man FRER T
Mr. Lau Chi Kit DRGSR E
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu TREIR A
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME
Ms. Kho Polien (Resigned on 10 July 2020) ST &+ (20209 7 A 10H B T)
Mr. Wong Chung Him (Appointed on 10 July 2020) TRk £ (R20204 7 5 10 H EZA(T)
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES RERR
Mr. Pang Siu Hin TZONTEAE
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZL L
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2\ & K

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 12131215, 12/F, Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
Chak & Associates
Kwok Yih & Chan

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE/REGISTERED OFFICE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hinsanggroup.com

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 6893

ENQUIRES

Company:
Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com
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TERGBFETE
AR EE

Ocorian Trust (Cayman) Limited
Windward 3, Regatta Office Park,
PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

BEROBFETTRE
SERABRERAT

NGE R

www.hinsanggroup.com

A3 1R5R

B8 22 BT 6893
=

ZAN/NET I

BH : contact@hinsanggroup.com
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
2y '\ R

As at 31 March 2021
202143 731H

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Company Limited
TIER ) ZRRIRAR

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited

PTEEBIERARAR

100%

100% Hin Sang Hong Company Limited

PTEATERAR

Hin Yat International Company Limited

HM Advertising Company Limited
T RERAR

VitaNu (Canada) Health Hin On Organic Agriculture
100% Products Limited 100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
MEXMBLRRERFRAR FREREREERE)ERAR

Chong Sang (HK) Company Limited
BIE(EB)ARAR

100% Hin Sang Biomedical Technology
(Guangdong) Company Limited*

FIEEMERE(ER)BRAR

100% ‘Yaome Nihon Corporation: 100%

Beautymate H Kong Limited b o
eautymate Hong Kong Limite: BB BT

100% Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
Research Institute Co., Limited

EERERREAARAR

Cheers Smart International Hin Sang Analysis & Testing
100% (Hong Kong) Company Limited 100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
TEREHERERAR TTEATARER)BRAR

Hin Sang Holding Group Hin Sang Health and Medical
100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* 100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
FIEPRRR SR B (R BBRA R FIERE (BER)BIRAR

Hin On International Company Limited
] RERAR

Hin Tai Pharmaceutical
zhen) Company Limited*
(R BERAR

Hongsheng Lankuntang
Chinese Medicine Clinic
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
RERRB e B ER)ARAR

Herbal King Company Limited

100%
BAATARAR &h

Hin Yat Commercial (Shenzhen)
100% Company Limited*
trsrE RN ERAR

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical
ompany Limited
i FHE)ERAR

Hin Yat Enterprise Brand Management
100% (Yunfu) Company Limited*
IR G ERRER(ERERAR

100%

Hin Hong Medical Management
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
PIREREECRYIBIRAR

Tai Wo Tong Company Limited
ARHEHRAR

100% 100% —
Love Hong Kong Love Macau Travel
Agency (Yunfu) Company Limited*

100% Hong Kong Medicine Manufactory 100% BB BRI (EDERAR
Holdings Co., Ltd.
EBNERIERBIRAR

Hin Fai International Holding
Company Limited
PIEERR IR ERAR

Hong Kong Pharmaceutical &
100% Research Institute Co., Ltd.
EENERRAERAR

Hin Fai Hong Company Limited

LIETTRIRAR

Hin Feng Group (International)
Holding Company Limited

Pk 7oA A =
FTEREB(ER R ARAR Hin Fai Electronic Commerce

(Srjenzhen) Company Limited*
Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical & FTHEET EHCRINERAR
Health Service Company Limited

IR ERERRPOERAR

100%

Hin Feng Investment
(NanJing) Co., Ltd.*
PIEREER)ERAR

100%

NanJing Hin Sang Animation
T0% Production Company Limited*
FRTEEBEEBRRAR

Herbal Family Modern Agriculture
(Guangdong) Company Limited
EARERAREER)BRAR

100%

* The English name is for identification only
* RN RERER

SRR AR A A 4 R ) B B PR A W 9



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£ ek

MOST IMPORTANTLY, THE GROUP IS
DEDICATED TO NURTURE CHILDREN AND
SINCERELY BELIEVES THAT CHILDREN
ARE THE MOST CHERISHED MEMBER
OF OUR SOCIETY, AND IT IS OUR TOP
PRIORITY TO CARE FOR THEM.

REENR  AEEFIRBERE  YHR
RRRERHERAVENKE  BLEMH
BETHREEMM -

Mr. Pang Siu Hin
EOTRE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FERITHARE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the Year.

EAMR

AANEBRRTESE(BER)ZERERAFE
EZENENBARMAREAEEARFE
MFERE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ANNUAL REVIEW

Hong Kong'’s retail environment continues to slump during the year
2020 due to the social movements in Hong Kong, and the retail
sales are still in low level according to the Hong Kong Census and
Statistics Department. The Group is facing a more competitive
environment in these few years. Though there were numerous
factors affecting the Group’s performance this year, we were still
able to maintain a substantial market share in the children healthcare
products sector.

The Group has also constructed a production plant for manufacturing
health supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to reduce the product cost by self-manufacturing rather
than Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) to outside supplier,
increase the efficiency and attain more stringent quality control on its
own brand products.

The Group has laid a strong foundation for a long term development
in the healthcare segment. Notwithstanding the highly competitive
market condition, the Group believes that this segment is a niche
market and in the long run, it will generate sustainable revenue
and bring in value for the Group. Most importantly, the Group is
dedicated to nurture children and sincerely believes that children are
the most cherished member of our society, and it is our top priority
to care for them.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$119.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 32.2%
from HK$176.2 million for the last year. The Group recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$36.8 million, comparing with approximately
HK$32.3 million for the last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year.

- AR <

F ek

FEER

2020%F - BEAM G EHENTERERHE
K REBEFBBFGRFTRENEN  TE
SHEAD RN BUE IR o 7% 5 [ 1 [ FR A
EFEEABFUENRE -BEAFESR
ZHARFEAKBENRE - BAHDES
HBFRAERERITEBEOTSMNE

AEBFERPREEREE M HEERE
REMTRZEERE  BNEAEBAE
A EE (M FE35 B R 1A R MR (TOEM ) Kk 58
ShER LR R IR A ERA - BB MEUAR
HERBEEREREBR 2 EEEH -

AEEERBREOANRERREERE
A - @EMBHEF TR ARENR
B BRASHEHNLEBSBEAMS
BAREBTRAFEWRANEER - &E

BN AKRERNNBEERE  ITAR
RRREEHEHEALANKE - FibR

P BB EHRBEEAMF

FEES
KEE  AEBZBRWALNAE119.458
BT B EFENI7T6.2AEBTRAL

32.2% - AEBEFEIRFRN68AEE
7t M EFERERFHIS2.3BEET °

@S,

EEEVTTRBRNAFRE RGPS °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£ ek

PROSPECTS

Despite the difficult market conditions, the Board believes that “Hin
Sang ($T4)” has been well positioned and able to meet the growing
demand for high-quality healthcare supplements from consumers
in Hong Kong and China. Therefore, the Group has stepped up its
efforts to expand in the Mainland China market and has launched
a variety of new products including the Health Master Honey for
Constitution series, the Bei Er series and the Yanxiu series. To cope
with the upcoming challenges and seize future opportunities, the
Group will continue to remain prudent and implement the following
strategies to create value for our Shareholders:

(a) Actively expanding the business of integrating

12

production and industrial sightseeing tourism

The Group is actively expanding Yunfu Health Medical Industrial
Park* (E/F 174 i B 88 257 £ [F) as an international first-rate
key project of integrating health food for women and children,
health care and medical equipment and industrial sightseeing
tourism to capture this fast-growing health preservation market
to meet the different nutritional and healthy living needs of
Chinese people. People have been in the quest for health and
longevity since ancient times. In Chinese history, Peng Zu (&
fH), a famous the god of longevity, had lived more than 800
years old. Proficient in various health regimens, Peng Zu was
recognized as the ancestor of Chinese health preservation
practices by future generations. The Group will expand the
Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion, a service center based on Pengzu
TCM health preservation techniques, to provide overall
conditioning for the human body. In addition, the Group is
committed to upholding Pengzu’s health preservation values to
develop the industrial tourism business and expand industrial
park tourism as main resources based on the entire enterprise
or industrial park. Integrated with the surrounding environment
and other tourism resources, the Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion
will be developed into an industrial tourism that covers
comprehensive tourism areas, such as sightseeing, leisure and
Southern Medicine Science Popularization Base (5 &R} & &

$h).

R

BETRAER EF2ARMMTLEIDZETE
fSeEmedERTEREEHELDRR
fEmAmERIFR - Fit - NEE D
ANEBRRPEAMLTS  SHEOREX
FEEEE R BRRIMFFRNES
T o S EEEN R R R PR E AT E S
BOKE  AEEEHEERTEEREZ
% BEM MR ARREEERE

(@) BRIRESEEETEEN
MRz R — B 2 X5

REE TR EEF 0T 4 (R 8 5
EXEFRER-RANFEHREER
fn o RECENBESEME TERE
IR ERIA B B AEELREIER 2
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

(b) Developing new products and brands for anti-

epidemic disinfection

In response to the continuous outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020,
the Group cooperated with a number of research institutions
to launch anti-epidemic products. The new product has been
well received in the market after launch and further enhanced
the portfolio of our own brand products. Owing to the huge
development potential of the market, the Group will expand the
market with mid-to-high end products, expecting new products
to gain market share in fast moving consumer goods market in
both Hong Kong and Mainland China.

To build a factory for self-owned brand
production of health supplements and also
equipped with original design manufacturers
(“ODM?”) and original equipment manufacturers
(“OEM?”) production methods in Yunfu City,
Guangdong Province, China

As part of the Group’s plan to enhance the production
efficiency of its own brand products to capture future
opportunities, the Group has developed a production plant for
health supplements in Yunfu City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to reduce production costs, improve efficiency
and implement stricter quality control of its own branded
healthcare products by not only self-production but also
ODM and non-traditional single OEM outsourcing to outside
suppliers. The Yunfu Health Medical Industrial Park* has been
formally put into production, integrating planting, production,
cultural tourism, health care, and sales. It is believed that it will
bring considerable revenue to the Group.

(b)

B e

FERHEBEERERENE
om N o b

EE2020F FHEM 2019 K m B &
B AEEHELHEAEEES (EHE D
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EEgLThEHERHRETS 1A
HFERBERNT RESRAMRR
HERMIESTSME -

RHABEREEFTHERE
HrEmNBEEREEERRBE
BBRARFRTR=X(ODM)
KkRta=RERR(OEM) £ &
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
£ ek

(d) Expanding sales opportunities in overseas
markets

As Hong Kong’s business matures, the Group also plans to
expand overseas markets in addition to actively entering the
Chinese market. At present, the Group’s products are prepared
to be exported to Australia and many countries in Southeast
Asia, including Malaysia and Singapore. The Group will also
expand sales network and recruit related teams in line with the
future development, hoping to increase its overall turnover and
profit from 2021 onward.

(e) The Group will further expand cross-border e-commerce
and explore international overseas e-commerce for its own
brand products, in order to increase the Group’s turnover and
contribute to its profit.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

| would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
members of the board of Directors, management and employees
for their valuable contributions to the development of the Group as
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ahead will be full of opportunities and challenges. Hin Sang Group
(International) Holding Co. Ltd. will continue to make effort to create
greater values for our Shareholders and investors.

*

For illustration purpose only

Yours faithfully
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

24 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (§74)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s purchasing trend,
the Group continues to expand the e-commerce business through
electronic platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase
profit, the Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming
products of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in
mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and
treatment services projects.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$119.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately 32.2% as
compared to the Group’s revenue of approximately HK$176.2 million
for the last year. The Group has four business segments classified by
their ownership, licensing rights and services rendered. During the
Year, the Product Development Segment, selling the Group’s own
brand products, was still the largest segment of the Group which
contributed approximately 97.1% (2020: 96.3%) of the Group’s
revenue. On the other hand, the revenue contribution from the Brand
Development and Management Segment fell from approximately
1.9% of the total revenue for the last year to approximately 1.7%
of the total revenue for the Year. The Trading of Goods Segment
recorded approximately 0.4% for the Year (2020: 0%). The
Healthcare Segment accounted for only approximately 0.8% (2020:
1.8%) of the Group’s total revenue for the Year.

The Group’s business operations are mainly based in Hong Kong,
though its products are distributed through distributors appointed
in the PRC, Macau, and export to markets such as Malaysia.
Revenue generated from the Hong Kong market for the Year
recorded approximately HK$64.0 million (2020: HK$123.4 million),
representing approximately 53.6% of the total revenue for the Year
(2020: 70.0%). On the other hand, revenue generated from the PRC
market for the Year recorded approximately HK$55.4 million (2020:
HK$52.8 million), representing approximately 46.4% of the total
revenue for the Year (2020: 30.0%). The revenue generated from
sales in Hong Kong decreased due to the continued and prolonged
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, which has adversely impacted
the retail and tourism industries in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B Wt o At

Product Development Segment

Under the Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells healthcare products, personal care products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang (47
A)”, “Tai Wo Tong (KHE)”, “Care Plus (f.+ )", “Shuang
Long (288)” and “King’s Antiseptic (& £)”. The Group started
developing the “Hin Sang ($74)” brand in 2004 mainly for its health
supplements. “Tai Wo Tong (KA1 E)” was developed in 2012
mainly for the Group’s proprietary Chinese medicine category. With
a view to further enhancing brand recognition of the Group’s own
brand products, the Group launched several products during 2020,
including but not limited to “Cheers Smart Perfect Slim (Capsule) (T
B HiRR (B E)), “Cheers Smart Hangover & Liver Care (Capsule)
(T2 BB EN 2 =X(BHE)), “Care Plus Alcohol (Fa+MM#EREHE
JEHE)”, “Care Plus Anti-Bacterial Body Wash (FL+T KA EE)”, “Care
Plus 3-ply Protection Face Mask (ASTM Level 3) (F.+Mn] E3Z 5 7% O
ZE(ASTM Level 3))”, “Hin Sang Bei Er Zhi Le Solid Beverage (T4 %
AL E B2 8RR, “Hin Sang Bei Er Chang Shu Solid Beverage (7
A T SRS AF B B2 )R, “Hin Sang Bei Er Hu Kang Solid Beverage (7
A TE R EEE 2 E0RN”, “Hin Sang Bei Er La Zhi Solid Beverage ($7
A& SR UEE B2 8RR, “Hin Sang Bei Er Fu Le Solid Beverage (74
&R LEE B2 ZUR)” and “Hin Sang Bei Er Vi Qing Solid Beverage (7
A TS R E B B AR

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$116.0 million for
the Year, represented a decrease of approximately 31.7% comparing
to a segment revenue of approximately HK$169.7 million for the last
year. This segment’s loss for the Year was approximately HK$16.8
million, comparing to the segment profit of approximately HK$8.1
million for the last year. This segment’s loss margin for the Year was
approximately 14.5% while the profit margin for the last year was
approximately 4.8%. The decrease in revenue is due to the fact that
the retail market is greatly impacted by COVID-19. The number of
tourists in Hong Kong drastically decreased because of the travel
restriction and quarantine measures, which in turn adversely affected
the demand of our products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Brand Development and Management Segment

The Group has a proven history of managing and developing
a number of brands for its brand proprietors (who are mainly
manufacturers and brand proprietors of the products) in respect of
their personal care products mainly in the Hong Kong market since
1999. The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement
with each of the brand proprietors and provided them with one-stop
marketing, sales and distribution, logistic and delivery services for
their branded products.

Amongst the products managed and developed by the Group for
the brand proprietors, the major brands are “Pahmi (&3E)”, “Enear
(BE)”, “Venic (fEHER)”, “Zici (%%)” and “Sunew (P§%7)”. The
revenue of this segment was approximately HK$2.0 million for the
Year, represented a decrease of approximately 39.2% comparing
to a segment revenue of approximately HK$3.2 million for the last
year. Such decrease was mainly due to the shift of focus by the
management of the Group to the Product Development Segment
during the Year in order to enhance the brand image of the
Group’s own-branded products. This segment recorded a profit of
approximately HK$293,000 for the Year while a loss of approximately
HK$42,000 was recorded for the last year.

Trading of Goods Segment

The Group has served its trade customers with high quality products
sourced from authorised dealers and overseas suppliers. Products
under this segment with low profit margin will be phased out, and
more resources will be put into the Product Development Segment
which is expected to yield higher profit margin.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$489,000 for
the Year, comparing to zero for the last year and it accounted for
approximately 0.4% of the Group’s revenue of the Year. The increase
in revenue is contributed by the new partnership opportunities with
authorised dealers and overseas suppliers during the Year. While
there was an increase in revenue of this segment, it was still the
focus of the Group to expand and develop the Product Development
Segment during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B Wt o At

Healthcare Segment

The Healthcare Segment provides different types of healthcare
related services and products in Hong Kong and the PRC for
mothers and children by establishment of clinics with medical
treatment and consultation by experienced Chinese physician who
specialised in mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$1.0 million and
it accounted for approximately 0.8% of the Group’s revenue for the
Year. This segment’s loss for the Year was approximately HK$4.4
million as compared to a loss of approximately HK$22.7 million for
the last year, due to the cessation of business of certain operating
subsidiaries in Nanjing during the Year and the expenses incurred in
Nanjing have decreased in the Year.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 310 staff as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
194). The increase in staff was as a result to the completion of
a production plant in Yunfu City and the Group employed more
workers for self-production. The employees of the Group are on
fixed salary, sales commission individually and year-end discretionary
performance bonus. The Group has devised an assessment system
for its employees and the Group uses the assessment result for
salary review and promotion decisions. All of the employees undergo
a performance appraisal once a year. Such an appraisal provides
the Group with an opportunity to assess each individual employee’s
strengths and areas for improvement, thereby enabling the Group
to effectively train and develop each individual employee. A Share
Option Scheme was adopted in September 2014 to recognise and
acknowledge those employees who have made contribution to the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

The Group is confident that Hong Kong market can still provide a
stable platform for its business to expand. The Group continues
its effort in new product development in order to enrich health
supplements portfolio and enhance the brand image as being a
specialist in providing health supplements. The Group ensures that
only those products with high sales volume potential should be
retained in its product portfolio. At the same time, the Group will
also focus on the development of the China market, especially in the
health supplement market for children. The Group believes that this
market will be greatly benefited by the launch of China’s “three-child”
policy. To seize this opportunity, the Group will continue to expand
its distribution network by recruiting additional distributors and put
more resources to promote corporate image in order to expand its
customer base.

The Group has outlined the following strategies for its future business
development, with caution but aim to creating values for the
Shareholders:

(@) To continue enhancing brand recognition of
the Group’s own brands

The Group has developed the “Hin Sang ($74)” brand into
a well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective
targeted advertising program which is well-positioned
emphasising on product safety and quality.

The Group continued focusing on and applying its brand
strategies of multichannel marketing and diverse product
portfolios. The Group adopted a market oriented research
and product development strategy to meet evolving customer
demands and needs while achieving rapid growth. The Group’s
new product development initiative for the coming year will
focus on developing more products in mother and children
health supplements in Hong Kong and the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B W & 53 b

(b) To expand the manufacturing arm of the Group

(c)

As part of the Group’s plan to enhance the production
efficiency of its own brand products in order to capture future
opportunities, the Group has developed a production plant
for manufacturing health supplements in Yunfu City of the
Guangdong Province, the PRC, aiming to reduce the product
cost by self-production rather than Original Equipment
Manufacturer (“OEM”) to outside supplier, and increase
efficiency and attaining more stringent quality control on its own
brand healthcare products. The construction of the production
plant has been completed on 30 April 2020 and it has started
production on 19 September 2020.

To expand e-commerce for own-branded
products

The Group will continue to enhance its e-commerce platform
which focus on online sales of the products under “Hin Sang
(BTHE)”, through which customers, particularly those in the PRC
can place orders online and enjoy home delivery services. Due
to the gradual popularity of online shopping, especially in the
PRC market, revenue from e-commerce platforms accounted
for approximately HK$34.9 million (2020: HK$28.9 million) of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year. The Group will continue
to introduce more high quality health supplements on the online
platforms to expand our product portfolio and market scale.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$119.4 million for
the Year as compared to HK$176.2 million for the last year,
representing a decrease of approximately 32.2%. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in its sales of products under the
Product Development Segment and the Brand Development and
Management Segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the revenue generated from the Product
Development Segment decreased by approximately HK$53.8 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 31.7% as compared to
last year. The revenue generated from the Brand Development and
Management Segment decreased by approximately HK$1.3 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 39.2% as compared to
last year. The decrease in revenue for these segments was mainly
due to the decline in revenue from the Hong Kong market, as a
result of the stagnant retail market in Hong Kong which result in a
cautious sentiment of the local customers. Revenue generated from
Trading of Goods Segment was approximately HK$489,000 for the
Year, comparing to zero for the last year. Revenue generated from
the Healthcare Segment was approximately HK$1.0 million and it
accounted for approximately 0.8% of the Group’s revenue for the
Year.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased by approximately 12.4% from
approximately HK$57.8 million for the last year to approximately
HK$50.6 million for the Year. The reason for the decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in sales under the Product
Development Segment as compared to last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately 41.9% from
approximately HK$118.4 million for the last year to approximately
HK$68.8 million for the Year. The gross profit margin for the Year
decreased from 67.2% to 57.6%, which was mainly resulted from the
decrease in sales of higher profit margin products from the Product
Development Segment.

Other Income

The Group’s other income increased from approximately HK$1.5
million for the last year to approximately HK$3.9 million for the Year,
which was mainly due to the receipt of subsidy from the HKSAR
government’s Employment Support Scheme in the amount of
approximately HK$2.7 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other Gains and Losses

The Group recorded other losses of approximately HK$357,000 for
the Year (2020: HK$28.1 million). The decrease in other losses was
attributable to an impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of approximately HK$20.1 million recorded
by the Group last year and the Group only recorded approximately
HK$1.1 million (2020: HK$147,000) impairment loss under expected
credit loss model for the Year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately 50.1%
from approximately HK$22.0 million for the last year to approximately
HK$11.0 million for the Year. Such decrease in selling and
distribution expenses was attributable to the decrease in advertising
expenses in Hong Kong due to the change of the Group’s marketing
and advertising strategy by conducting more marketing and
advertising on outdoor media rather than on TV media in Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately HK$5.6
million or 6.1% from approximately HK$92.7 million for the last
year to approximately HK$87.0 million for the Year which was
mainly attributable to the cessation of business of certain operating
subsidiaries in Nanjing during the Year.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge decreased by approximately 95.2% from
approximately HK$3.6 million for the last year to approximately
HK$174,000 for the Year. The decrease in income tax expense was
due to the decrease in assessable profits of the Group in Hong Kong
for the Year.

Loss for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$36.8 million for the Year compared to a net loss of approximately
HK$32.3 million for the last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Comprehensive Income

The other comprehensive income recorded by the Group increased
by approximately 114.9% from comprehensive expense of
approximately HK$129.0 million for the last year to comprehensive
income of approximately HK$19.2 million for the Year due to
fair value gain on equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Equity Instruments at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income

During the Year, the Group held certain investments for medium to
long term purpose, and it represented investment in two listed equity
securities which are stated at fair value.

The first listed equity security represents 118,765,000 shares
in Fullshare (stock code: 607), and there was no acquisition or
disposal of the shares of Fullshare during the Year. As at 31
March 2021, the carrying amount of these shares amounted to
approximately HK$19.8 million (2020: HK$14.2 million), and the fair
value gain of approximately HK$5.6 million was recognised as other
comprehensive income for the Year, and these shares represented
approximately 0.6% of the issued ordinary shares of Fullshare as at
31 March 2021. The carrying amount of these shares represented
approximately 2.8% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March
2021.

The second listed equity security represents 45,411,600 shares in
Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (“Nanjing Sinolife”) (stock
code: 3332). With reference to the Company’s circular dated 21
September 2017, the Company purchased these shares from
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fullshare at the consideration of
HK$73,112,676 and the transaction was completed on 18 October
2017. There was no acquisition or disposal of this investment during
the Year. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of these shares
amounted to approximately HK$8.9 million (2020: HK$7.1 million),
and a fair value gain of approximately HK$1.8 million was recognised
for the Year, and these shares represented approximately 16.7% of
the issued ordinary shares of Nanjing Sinolife as at 31 March 2021.
The carrying amount of these shares represented approximately 1.3%
of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2021.

The fair value of these securities as at the date of this report was
approximately HK$26.2 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B Wt o At

Inventories

The Group’s inventories increased by approximately 87.8% from
approximately HK$10.7 million as at 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$20.1 million as at 31 March 2021, which was primarily due to
the increase in finished products for distribution by approximately
56.8% from approximately HK$8.7 million as at 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$13.6 million as at 31 March 2021.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or
Loss — Held for Trading

The Group held several listed equity securities for short term trading
purpose and they are stated at fair value. The largest portion of listed
equity security represents 13,710,000 shares in Nanjing Sinolife and
4,000,000 shares in Mansion International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8456, temporary stock code: 8559, last date for parallel
trading: 22 July 2021). As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
equity securities held for trading amounted to approximately HK$2.9
million and represented approximately 0.4% of the total assets of the
Group as at 31 March 2021. The fair value of these securities as at
the date of this report was approximately HK$2.6 million.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables decreased by approximately 64.9%
from approximately HK$16.3 million as at 31 March 2020 to
approximately HK$5.7 million as at 31 March 2021, which was
primarily attributable to the decrease in trade receivables from
distributors arising from the purchase of healthcare products of the
Product Development Segment.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables decreased by approximately 47.9% from
approximately HK$14.4 million as at 31 March 2020 to approximately
HK$7.5 million as at 31 March 2021,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, Gearing Ratio and Capital Structure

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated
in HKD and RMB. The bank balances increased by approximately
21.8% from approximately HK$12.4 million as at 31 March 2020
to approximately HK$15.1 million as at 31 March 2021. As at 31
March 2021, the amount of Group’s outstanding bank borrowings
was approximately HK$336.8 million; and the amount of unutilised
banking facilities was approximately HK$63.2 million. The gearing
ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at 31 March 2021 was
1.1 (2020: 0.7). The current ratio (total current assets divided by total
current liabilities) as at 31 March 2021 was 0.4 (2020: 0.7).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities of the
Group.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying value of the assets of the Group
that were pledged in favor of banks was approximately HK$527.2
million.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total capital commitments of
approximately HK$744,000 in respect of the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment.

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. The Group’s entire financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s
related policies is made under collective but extensive considerations
on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk. The executive
Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s chief financial officer,
are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and analysing
the investment opportunities of the Group. The executive Directors
also regularly monitor the cash position and funding requirements of
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Significant Investment Held, Major Acquisition and
Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There were no significant investments held, no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures by the Group
during the Year.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

Save as disclosed in this report, there was no specific plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 March 2021.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, MH (£ 2 17), aged 56, was appointed in
October 2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-
day management of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pang has about 26 years of
experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of healthcare
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce since 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited (&F/&{t 4
A E & B R A F) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association Limited (& i %5 % 17
@ FR/AT]) in 2009. Mr. Pang was appointed as the vice president
of Hong Kong & Kowloon Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (A& N 3EBE R ML BRAF]) in 2009, the executive
vice president in 2013 and became perpetual honourable president
in 2017. Since 2009, Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Chiu
Chow Clansmen’s Association of Yuen Long District, Limited (JTRA
1% 8N [B 48 € B[R A 7)), the vice president in 2011 and became the
chairman in 2017. In 2010, he became the life honorary chairman
of Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association
(BARYIPEHE), and titled as the advisor in 2016. In 2018,
Mr. Peng was awarded as honoraries and commendations by the
Medal of Honor (MH) by the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Pang was awarded Honorary Fellow (FPVCB (Hon)) by
The Professional Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector
in 2019. Mr. Pang was appointed as honorary advisor by Social
Enterprise Research Academy in 2020.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRELRREHE

Mr. Pang is an active participant in the work of charities, appointed
as the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to 2011,
the vice chairman since 2012, the chairman since 2017, and became
the perpetual adviser since 2018. Mr Pang was awarded MH in 2018
for his dedicated community service, particularly his contributions to
the work of Pok Oi Hospital. He worked as the honourable president
of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long District) since 2010, a member of
the standing committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Jieyang City, the PRC, a member of Yuen Long Town
Area Committee under the Home Affairs Department in 2012, a
member of the Committee on the Promotion of Civic Education
under the Home Affairs Department in 2014, the honourable
president of Yuen Long District Healthy City Association Limited in
2017, and the standing vice president of the1st session of Friendship
Association of the Political Consultative Conference (Hong Kong
Provincial Committee) in Jieyang in 2018.

Moreover, Mr. Pang became the co-chairman of New Territories
Walk for Millions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong (B8 A% %) since 2014 and appointed as the chairman
in 2017. He was titled as the vice president of Shenzhen Enterprise
Confederation (FIIT{EEEA ) in 2015, and the executive vice
president of Tin Yan Charity Organization (K& &% LX) and the
honourable president of Shen Kong Jiexi Chamber of Commerce
Limited (/& BAAEE AR A7) in 2016. In 2017, Mr. Pang was
appointed as the honourable advisor of Hong Kong Children, Babies,
Maternity Industries Association Limited (B8 LB £ HEER
7~ a]), the honourable president of the management committee in
Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation Limited (B8 & /D&
Z=H4$2HMR A7) and the vice president of the Jiangsu Province
Reflecting Health Industry Association (L& & X AHREITEH )
and president of its children’s health preservation branch. He is also
the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association
focusing on the development of education work in the PRC since
2010. Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (B8EX), aged 49, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations.
She is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She
has over 20 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and
sale of healthcare products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation of
the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education work
in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education
Fund Association since 2010. In 2017, she is appointed as the
vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity Industries
Association Limited (&2 L E ¥ & B A F]). She is appointed
as the member of Committee for Yun Fu City of the People’s Palitical
Consultative Conference in 2018 and appointed the Director of board
of directors of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong since 2018. Ms. Kwan
Lai Man is the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRELRREHE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (EZ£1), aged 60, was appointed in November
2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more than 34 years
of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing. She received
a bachelor’s degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science, University
of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985. Ms. Wong was
registered as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an associate of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1990. She has
worked for more than seven years in major international accounting
firms and major local accounting firms before she set up her own
accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co., in Hong Kong in 1993. Since
then, she has been practising as a Certified Public Accountant. Ms.
Wong is an independent non-executive director and the chairperson
of the audit committee of two Hong Kong listed companies, namely,
Yongsheng Advanced Materials Company Limited (stock code:
3608) and Overseas Chinese Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3366). Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive director
of AVIC International Holdings Limited (the shares of which were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with stock code:
161 and had been voluntarily withdrawn from listing with effect
from 17 April 2020). Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 527) and resigned on 31 January 2019. She was an executive
director of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously
known as JC Group Holdings Limited) (GEM stock code: 8326) and
resigned on 18 October 2016. She was also an independent non-
executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (GEM stock code:
8059) and resigned on 22 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (R&¥F), aged 42, was appointed in July 2016
as a non-executive Director. Mr. Yuen is qualified lawyer in both
Hong Kong, and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 13 years of
experience practicing as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong Kong, and
has extensive experience in corporate law, China-related public and
private mergers and acquisitions, and capital market transactions.
Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws in 2001 and
completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in the University of Hong
Kong, then undertook his traineeship and worked as a lawyer in
various leading international firms. He worked as a special counsel
in the Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie and was responsible
for the firm’s securities practice in Shanghai. Mr. Yuen was also
an executive director, the vice-chairman of the board and the co-
chief executive officer of LongiTech Smart Energy Holding Limited
(stock code: 1281) from April 2018 to September 2020, the chief
executive officer and an executive director of Applied Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) from September 2016 to August
2020, a non-executive director of China High Speed Transmission
Equipment Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 658) from December 2016
to August 2020, and an independent non-executive director of Sun
Cheong Creative Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1781)
from August 2018 to August 2019, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuen has also been a
director of Pok Oi Hospital (a charity organisation) since April 2017.
Mr. Yuen was the chief operating officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited
(stock code: 607) from October 2014 to March 2018. Fullshare
Holdings Limited is a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Duties of Mr. Yuen as a non-executive Director has been suspended
with effect from 16 June 2020. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 17 June 2020 for further details.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRELRREHE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Kit (2] & £), aged 76, was appointed in October 2017
as an independent non-executive Director. He retired from The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”)
in December 2000 after more than 35 years’ of service. Among
the senior positions he held in HSBC, he was the assistant general
manager and head of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant
general manager and head of strategic implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
(the “Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s executive
committee (from January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently
the honorary advisor of the Institute’s executive committee. He
served as a member of a number of committees appointed by the
Government of Hong Kong Special Administration Region, including
the Advisory Council on the Environment (from October 1998 to
December 2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources
Development in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to
May 2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January 2000
to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund
Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation
and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee
(from January 2000 to December 2004) and the Law Reform
Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March
2006). He also served as the chairman of Business Environment
Council Limited (from September 1998 to December 2001).
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Royale
Home Holdings Limited (formerly known as Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1198), and Leoch International Technology
Limited (stock code: 842). He is also an executive director of Chinlink
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 997). He also served as
an independent non-executive director of Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 509) (from April 2014 to June 2021).
The shares of Royale Home Holdings Limited, Leoch International
Technology Limited, Chinlink International Holdings Limited and
Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Z#£K), aged 63, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has about
30 years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1987. He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for
around 15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division. Mr.
Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5 years
from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-executive
director of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock code: 336)
since 1 May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock code: 1662)
since 25 November 2015, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (B2 ), aged 52, was appointed
in November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director. Dr.
Tang has over 15 years of experience in the financial and securities
sector. He is the Election Committee Member (Financial Services) of
HKSAR. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business, majoring in
finance from Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and
holds a PhD. degree in Economics from Renmin University of China
in July 2007. He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute
of Banking and Finance in December 1995 and was appointed as
Hong Kong Chief Analyst by the Finance and Securities Institute
of Renmin University of China in December 2010. He is also the
executive director of AP Assets Limited. He was the non-executive
director of Edvance International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1410)
(from November 2016 to May 2021), the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also the chairman
of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional
Commentators Limited and the executive committee member of the
Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association. He is the deputy
chairman of The Listed Companies Council, Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association and the vice chairman of the Hong Kong Girl
Guides Region Association. He is a co founder and chief executive of
Royston Asset Management Limited since February 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRELRREHE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Chung Him (E f# &), aged 37, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 10 July 2020.
Mr. Wong joined the Group on 18 December 2019 as financial
controller and is responsible for the overall financial administration
of the Group. He has over ten years’ experience in auditing and
accounting, as well as various experience in initial public offerings of
companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong graduated from the Hong Kong
Baptist University with a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
— Accounting. He also obtained a Master degree in Corporate
Governance in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and The Chartered Governance Institute.

Ms. Polien Kho resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 10 July 2020 and Mr. Wong was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from the same date. Please refer to
the Company’s announcement of 10 July 2020 for further details.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (2 Z{), aged 38, is the Assistant Sales
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation. He is responsible for managing the daily operation of
the sales department. In particular, he is responsible for managing
skin care products, personal care products, general food products
as well as Chinese medicine products in Hong Kong and oversea
markets. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005. Since
then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department and
made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar with
the Group’s internal operation and external sales strategies. He has
accumulated 15 years of relevant experience.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (Z k&), aged 54, is the information
technology director of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2004 and is responsible for its network administration and provides
information technology support. He received a certificate of an
advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic commerce
in the London International College for Further and Higher Education
in June and September 2001 respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor providing
information technology support, network administration, hardware
and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and has
worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated more
than 23 years of relevant experience.
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Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd.

(REAEHEEMRLZBRATF)

t' (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
2 : f iR 3 1X5% Stock Code: 6893
Environmental, Social and ~
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1)

2)

REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The report covers the operations of the head office of the
Group in Tsim Sha Tsui, an operating site in Yuen Long, the
principal place of business in Shatin and the new operating site
in Yunfu' during the Year from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021.
Those boundaries are financially significance and operationally
importance to the Group and its stakeholders. All data and
information disclosed in the report were derived from internal
records.

REPORTING PRINCIPLE

Materiality: The Group communicates with different
stakeholders on a regular basis, so to better understand ESG-
related issues that matter the most. Meanwhile, the Group
concerns environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
development outside and within the industry, trying to align with
available global standards as well as incorporating it into the
Group strategic development planning.

Quantitative: Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules guides the Group
to prepare measurable Key performance indicators (“KPIs”)
for performance review. Quantitative information presented
in the report is accompanied by narrative, explanation and
comparison wherever applicable. The frequency of publication
is once a year.

Balance: The Group upholds this reporting principle to
prepare ESG reports and strives to disclose both challenges
and opportunities of ESG issues that the Group experienced
during the reporting period. Pictures, charts and graphs reflect
the actual performances of the Group, and with appropriate
presentation formats, to avoid misleading.

Consistency: The Group adopts consistent methodologies
and retrieves social and environmental KPIs from the Group’s
internal record system. The Group also regards Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs and Appendix 3:
Reporting guidance on Social KPIs to calculate KPls, so as to
make meaningful comparisons over the years.

! The operating site in Yunfu covers the business scope of the
following subsidiaries, Hin Sang Health and Medical (Guangdong)
Company Limited, Hin Yat Enterprise Brand Management (Yunfu)
Company Limited, Hongsheng Lankuntang Chinese Medicine
Clinic (Guangdong) Company Limited; Hin On Organic Agriculture
(Guangdong) Company Limited; Hin Sang Biomedical Technology
(Guangdong) Company Limited; Love Hong Kong Love Macau Travel
Agency (Yunfu) Company Limited and Hin Sang Analysis & Testing
(Guangdong) Company Limited.
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BOARD STATEMENT

“The Eternal Extension of Life” is the Group’s motto. The Group
adheres to the Group mission to develop health and wellness
products, so as to bring a high-quality and convenient life to
every family. Also, the Group is committed to promoting a
corporate culture of business integrity and brand based on high
quality, continuous innovation and excellence in the kingdom
of brands management, expanding to the whole country from
Yunfu supported by Hong Kong. Consequently, policies have
been formulated to disclose the Group’s visions to shareholders
and the public on the followings:

To devote to society through contribution and services;

o To pursue continuous improvement in the culture of
governance;

o To collaborate with business partners and employees by
upholding accountability, fairess, devotion and integrity;

° To dedicate to attaining sustainable development and
achievement for all shareholders and stakeholders; and

° To emphasise on environmental protection.

The Group cares the public by heart and carefully pays
attention to the present needs of the public. In view of the
novel Coronavirus outbreak and limited supply of personal
hygiene products in society, the Group proactively procure anti-
epidemic personal hygiene products across the globe and offer
them to the needy through non-governmental organisations.

In addition, the Group has been consistently practising
and striving to improve its work in the areas of ESG. A new
operating site in Yunfu has been commenced after a full
assessment on environmental impacts, Also, the operating
site will strictly follow the environmental regulations as well as
planning to build and operate. The brief detail is discussed in
the session headed “The Environment and Natural Resources”.
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4)

COMMUNITY SERVICE

“The Eternal Extension of Life” is the Group’s motto. By
connecting with the community, the Group is striving to instil
hope and provide support to the disadvantaged and contribute
to society, while cultivating a sense of belonging among the
Group’s employees. Driven by this social responsibility, the
Group took every effort to participate in community services
and charity events over the past years. The Group has attained
the award of “Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council
of Social Services for 14 years in a row.

Board members of the Group are actively dedicated to charity
events. Mr Pang Siu Hin, a Chairman of the Group is cordially
participating in public positions of social and charitable
organisations, including but not limited to a permanent advisor
of Pok Oi Hospital, an honorary president of Yuen Long
District Junior Police Calls Honorary President Committee
since 2010, an honorary president of Yuen Long District Fire
Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association since
2011, and a committee member of Home Affairs Department
= Yuen Long Town Area Committee. Moreover, Ms Kwan Lai
Man, an executive Director of the Group is a director of Pok Oi
Hospital 2018/19 board, a life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan
Education Fund Association and an honorable member of the
Rotary Club of Peninsula East since 2020. Also, Mr Yuen Chi
Ping, a non-executive Director of the Group, is a director of Pok
Oi Hospital 2020/21 board.
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Hin Sang Scholarship

“Hin Sang Scholarship” was established in 2015, aims at
awarding and sponsoring students from low-income families in
order to bring upon positive impact to their lives.

The 6th Hin Sang Scholarship was opened for application and
review since July 2020 with the aims to support outstanding
and talented students. The judging activities were divided into
four groups, which covered kindergartens, primary schools,
secondary schools, and universities, from which a total of 12
students were awarded this year. Each student winner was
awarded a scholarship of HK$1,000, gifts worth of HK$3,000
as well as the Certificate of Award. Awards Ceremony for the
6th scholarship was already held in August 2020 to encourage
the awarded students. The Group will continue to establish
the sponsorship in the hope of giving more competitive edges
to the students, especially those from low-income families,
returning their contribution to society in the future.
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Organisation #1&

Hin Sang Community Involvement

In recent years, the Group has diligently devoted resources to
developing products and services for women and children in
local and greater China markets by setting up a specialised
children’s TCM health centre in Hong Kong. Moreover, the
Group has invested a subsequent amount of resources in
inventing products that treat various health problems, especially
for children. The Group has also acquired registration numbers
(HKC) for many of its product formulas from the Chinese
Medicine Council of Hong Kong. In the future, the Group will
continue to contribute to the market, providing quality products
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WRERBEREPDO - U NEE
ERAREERR  NEHLERZER
FHEENER  LEERENRER
B REBENMERBETBHEEER
BEeRBEFZERR T HEMRR
(HKC) e R - ARERKEERTH
EHER - BHEFEEEIMFEEEE

— N 48 oo "f.-).-\
and essential elements for a healthy life, and promoting health mEERTE - WRARQRAEEEK —
and wellness for the public. I o

Hin Sang Volunteering Team

The Group encourages employees to participate in
volunteering work. “Hin Sang Volunteering Team” was formed
by our employees in 2006 which actively involved in various
community and charitable activities. During the reporting
period, the Hin Sang Herbaby Health Centre in Shek Mun
provided free anti-epidemic packs to the general public. Also,
the Group participated in a Launch Ceremony organised by the
Hong Kong Coalition to donate 0.3 million of alcohol handrub
to the people of Hong Kong.

The Group is striving to allocate resources to support
different aspects of community activities, including education,
charity, environmental protection, communities’ cultural and
entertainment events. During the reporting period, the Group
mainly organised or participated in the following community
services/events:

Event Description
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Cash Staff
Donation/ Product Involvement/
Sponsorship Donation Volunteering
HeRE/ EmEl BIZ8H/
{1 EIRE

Hin Sang Group (International) | The 6th “Hin Sang Scholarship Ceremony” was held, with
Holding Co. Ltd. awards presented to 12 students, in recognition of their
PTHEEE (BB ERAR AR | academic and extracuricular achievements. v v v
BAEREMITERBEERERE]  MI2EBERER
B - URERE OB LRIKE ©
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Cash Staff

S — Donation/ Product Involvement/
Organisation #& FHAR Sponsorship Donation  Volunteering
RERE/ EmRE BEIZH/
Bh TR
Hin Sang Herbaby Health Provided 6,500 set of anti-epidemic packs to the general
Centre public of Hong Kong. v v
TERERBREERD REBTRRHE500EMEE -
Hong Kong Coalition Participated in a Launch Ceremony and donated care
AEBNBEABRSR packs. v
2B EA L BEEE
. Sumwood Productions Ltd Donated 1,000 antl—epldemic packs to the
’ =RBERR AT underprivileged, low income and difficult families. v
MER - EYRA - BERERE 000ERER -
Fly High Foundation Company | Donated 2,000 anti-epidemic packs to the people who
Limited live in the Subdivided flats. v
BAREESERAR 1BEE2,000EZ B EEEAD BMOA o
Hong Kong with Heart Donated 6,000 anti-epidemic packs under the “Fight the
WEE Epidemic” scheme. v
[ 5+ 2115 586,000 (@ &2 -
Tsing Yi South Residents’ Donated 6,000 anti-epidemic packs under the “Fight the
LY Association Epidemic” scheme. v
ERARRES [ |51 8118 526,000/ % 2
""'.\ ".'-* Fei Ngan Charity Fund Donated 2,500 anti-epidemic packs to the elderly. v
\ ol J:‘ HEWEESE M A 82,5000 & £
\_\,I aJ Society for the Prevention of Sponsored 2,000 gifts to the starter in the SPCA’
[ Cruelty to Animals (SPCA) Dogathoon 2021. v
: EREERDMNE BE) 72,0000 M4 SPCA 2021 F A SN ERN 2
> R
A Hong Kong Rehabilitation Sponsored 1,400 anti-epidemic packs to the
Power underprivileged who are impaired, with chronic diseases,
ERERNE mentally disorder, hearing difficulties. v
B3, 400BREHEHT - 814K - BEER B
FER R SL RS -
Flash Volunteer Donated 1,000 anti-epidemic packs to the elderly who
: REJIEZEE R aged above 65 years old, cleaning practitioners and the
\ disabled. v
FBSEA FEA » B2 EABMER ABE1,0000
g W.f.b. Avalokitesvara Sponsored 400 prizes to the awardees in the “Happiness,
Nursery School My Family” coloring contest. v
HEeRaENTER RIZRE  BNRAJRRLENRREER T 40085
i AR °
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Cash

. Donation/ Product Involvement/
Event Description

Organisation #& EHRNE Sponsorship Donation  Volunteering
ReRE EmBE BEIZH/
Bh ZTRH
Poverty Alleviation Office, Donated health products to the poverty.
Agriculture Bureau of RERPRERER - Y Y
Yunfu City
EITARRAN
Bureau of Statistics of Family visit to the aged elderly.
Yunfu’s Party REEA ° v v
Committee
R RS REXH
Hin Sang Health and Donated gifts to the Gaocun Middle School, to support its
Medical (Guangdong) educational development. v v
Company Limited mEREEEEY  THRAYERER -
TERERZE(BR)BERD
Awards and Achievements BRIR B AL
The Group has attained the award of the 14 consecutive years A E2021F3A31H IEFEAKMEE
awarding the “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of %T14¢5%HX%'§;%&@HE%H§%@%%§§
Social Service for the year ended 31 March 2021. It recognised MIEREER] - EEEAREESR
the contribution of the Group in the aspects of employee THREA - HRRGHEE EnEE -
benefits, promotion of community services, product quality and &’—% HEAEEESBE LAFL GO
value creation to the society. E

/ canngcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
ERULERSRERE

“Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BEEBHERGHEREEHARBE]
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5)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s corporate governance policies are based on the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report” as required by Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange which is committed to promoting a corporate
culture of trustworthiness, professional ethics and business
integrity. The Group’s corporate values, missions and strategies
are integrated with ethical business practices; the collaboration
with customers, suppliers and employees are also based
on this corporate culture. The Board and management at all
levels strictly undertake these essential responsibilities at both
individual and organisational level.

Code of Conduct

The Group has established a Code of Conduct for the
employees. The Board also adopts the provision in the
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Report of the Directors”
in the annual report as the basis for the Code of Conduct.

The Code applies to both management personnel and general
staff within the Group and has been clearly communicated to
all employees, including the new staff. The Code of Conduct
mainly covers three categories:

o Requesting for, receiving or providing benefits;
o Conflict of interest; and

° Confidentiality of information.

Anti-corruption

Rigid laws and compliances on anti-corruption bound the
Group. All employees strictly follow all required to abide by
local regulations, perform duties with integrity, and prohibit
acceptance and offer of benefits. The anti-corruption policy
has been established and included in the Code of Conduct.
For reinforcing the effectiveness of the policy implementation,
the Group has arranged relevant training to employees and
directors. Training classes amounted to around 2.5 hours
and 580 hours to Directors and employees respectively were
provided. In June 2020, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, a non-executive
Director of the Group, was investigated by Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) but was not
prosecuted. In the year, the Group did not identify any legal
violation or complaint related to corruption except the foregoing
matter related to Mr. Yuen.
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6)

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
to handle misconduct under the supervision of the Group’s
Chairman, Managing Director and the representatives of the
Audit Committee.

Employees are allowed to report and submit evidence of the
suspected or confirmed misconduct to the Group’s Chairman
and/or Managing Director and/or an Audit Committee
representative in verbal or written form (either anonymous or
bearing a name), and thereafter the Group shall launch internal
investigations. In case of violation of the laws, the Group shall
follow procedures to file to the relevant authority.

EMPLOYMENT

The Group has formulated employment policies and guidelines
in accordance with the local regulations. It complies with the
labour laws and related rules listed in the PRC, Hong Kong and
other business regions. The Group currently does not employ
personnel below 18 years old and has never engaged in forced
labour. The Group also assures that no employee’s salary is
paid lower than the legal minimum wage level as defined in
the government regulations of all judicial regions. During the
reporting period, the Group did not identify any legal violation
regarding the employment of child labour or forced labour
and did not identify or receive any legal violation or complaint
regarding discrimination or recruitment.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group values fair and equal opportunity for each employee
and is committed to eliminating any discrimination. Recruitment
is simply based on candidates’ experiences, abilities and
business needs, regardless of race, gender, age, marital
status, pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation, religion,
disability and nationality. All talented candidates and employees
can be hired and promoted, as well as eligible to attend
relevant training to meet business needs and personal career
development.
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During recruitment, the Group checks identification documents
according to the local laws to prevent child labour and forced
labour. In the case of child labour and/or forced labour, the
Group’s shall terminate the employment immediately. The
Group shall proceed in compliance with the local employment
regulations in case of termination on employment. For other
illegal incidents, the Group shall report the case to the local
enforcement agencies.

Retirement

Despite the mandatory retirement policy in place, the Group
will not refuse to consider applicants who are near retirement
age but still want to continue to work after retirement.
For each application of this category, the Group shall
evaluate the relevant staff’s situation, competence, past job
performance and the Group’s retirement policy, to prevent age
discrimination.

Wages and Welfare

The Group’s wages and welfare policy is based on local
industry norms which shall be appropriately adjusted according
to work performance, experience and qualification of the
employee. Employee’s working hours, holidays, and other
benefits are based on the common practices of the local industry
and reasonably adjusted based on the employee’s experience
and seniority. The Group adopts critical performance indicators
as one of the criteria for defining the employee incentive
scheme. Additionally, employee-oriented employment practices
have been adopted to appreciate working mother such as
lactation room.

Team Structure

As of 31 March 2021, there were 310 employees in the Group,
in which 309 of them were full-time employees while 1 of them
was part-time employee and 48 were based in Hong Kong and
262 based in China. Their distribution was depicted as follows:

During the reporting period, the monthly average employee
turnover rate was 5.30%.
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Turnover rate by gender

Turnover rate by age groups

REBIB B a0k RE RERENB SRR E 'f
33 7% 24.84% , e
19.35% 29.35% 13.87% 0.97%
MALE FEMALE 18-30 31-45 46-60 >60
Total workforce by gender Total workforce by age groups
RENNSHE TN RERHENBSHETER
46.77% 53.23%
v v
-I 45 .I 65 36v% SQ% l?;% 1:A=
LS !

'| q Q @2/ 155) | 40 3
MALE 310 FEMALE ¢
B ray 18-30 31-45 46-60 >60
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7) OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 7) Bi¥@EHZ2

(OHS)

The Group remains highly attentive to health and safety.
Thereby, the Group ensures the workplace has adequate
lighting and ventilation systems and is always kept clean
and tidy with sufficient workspace. The Group also provides
proper office equipment such as height-adjustable chairs with
adjustable armrest and tilting backrest. The equipment is also
kept in a safe condition and firefighting facilities, as well as fire
drills, are arranged in accordance with the local laws in the
reporting period. Security measures have been adopted to
prevent unauthorised persons from entering and leaving the
Group’s operating areas.

Furthermore, the Group provides safety training for new
employees and offers relevant OHS training based on the job
nature of employees. This includes the provision of employees
with information about the laws and regulations in OHS for
employees’ understanding of such importance. During the
reporting period, the relevant employees were provided with
715 hours of training in occupational health & safety.

Also, the Group used to organise a “Hin Sang Health Day”
regularly. Hin Sang Health Day aims to coordinate a group
of employees participate in outdoor activities such as hiking,
playing sports, museum and heritage visits. However, the Hin
Sang Health Day was temporarily ceased due to the COVID-19
in the reporting period. The Group is hoping we can re-organise
the Hin Sang Health Day when the epidemic is over. This not
only promotes exercise but also promotes the benefit of being
in nature. A lot of research reveals the fact that the environment
can fuel our bodies, keep us relief, facilitate good sleep and
more importantly protect us from sickness and dissatisfaction.
Also, this can act as team-building activities for the employees
that connect with one another and live the lives to the fullest.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
violation against the local regulations in occupational health
and safety and did not identify any fatality but with regret that
the Group had 219 lost workdays resulting from work-related
accidents.
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8)

EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes staff quality is a critical factor for
maintaining growth and improving profitability, while the level
of service and product quality is closely related to employee
training and development. Therefore, the Group strives to
allocate resources to implement an effective training system:

o Orientation training for the new employee(s);

° Regular training sessions including technical know-how
and soft skills training for existing employees;

° Training sessions conducted by internal or external
qualified personnel; and

° New employees are trained and assisted by experienced
employees to get familiar with the working condition and
procedures.

The Group arranges the employees to attend training by virtue
of corresponding job duties. Training covers topics of product
knowledge, sales techniques, quality control, as well as and the
latest laws and regulations of proprietary Chinese medicines
that may have a possible impact on business operations. This
not only enables employees to acquire the newest information
or skills but also enhances their self-confidence and capability
to cope with the rapidly changing market. Assessment is
conducted after training to evaluate the effectiveness and to
follow the employees’ career development.
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During the reporting period, the relevant training figures for the
Group were depicted by gender and employee category as
follows:

The percentage

Total number

R¥REHIE - AN RE R HE B0
RPN REERREEMAWT

Average training

Gender of emblovees of employees Total number of hours per

1 5 trari)ne)c’l trained training hours total trained
2 3I0E B 148 A B EZEINET B employees
o - Bk FigsE g

Eﬁ'; 193 58.66% 2,126 11.02

3

Fﬁe'l‘niale 136 41.34% 1,634 12.01

Senior Management

Employee Category
EEEH

Syl 50 15.20% 506 10.12
g"ﬂi?;g gaéagemem 49 14.89% 520 10.61
%J%% EImployeeS 230 69.91% 2,734 11.89
I;; 320 100% 3,760 11.43
9) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 9) MEHEERE

The Group strives for partnering with suppliers who share the
same business philosophy in running the business at a fair,
honest and diligent manner. When selecting suppliers, the
Group also evaluates environmental, social and governance
factors in addition to the financial and quality issues.

Apart from requesting the supplied products (including
packaging materials) are free from any toxic substances, the
Group also sets the standards of conduct in the procurement
contracts to encourage suppliers to share the same vision with
the Group. The scope of the standard of conduct shall include
the governance aspects of environmental protection and social
responsibility:

° Suppliers and their upstream entities do not force
employees to work in any form of violence or threat and
do not employ child labour;

° Employment is solely based on working performance and
not affected by any discrimination against race, gender,
age, marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual
orientation, religion, disability and nationality;
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o Salary is paid in fair value and all other entitled benefits
are also fulfilled;

o The safe and healthy working environment shall
be provided in compliance with the local laws and
regulations;

o Business decisions adhere firmly to the principle of
sustainable development. Business processes shall
comply with the local regulations on environmental
protection; and

° Integration of the business and organization into the
circumstances of the community.

Furthermore, the Group encourages suppliers to achieve
management systems certification (including but not limited
to the ISO 9001, ISO 14001, SA 8000 and ISO 22000). In
addition, the Group shall regularly assess the performance of
suppliers for the room of improvements.

As of 31 March 2021, there was a total of 183 suppliers
distributed within Asia, of which 58 suppliers from Hong Kong,
and 125 suppliers from China. During the reporting period, for
some existing critical suppliers, the Group also evaluated them
and arranged on-site assessment where necessary for assuring
the comprehensiveness and reliability of the evaluation.

To protect the environment and enhance the utilization rate of
natural resources, the Group has incorporated the elements
of environmental protection and sustainable development in
its operations. Through supply chain management, the Group
encourages suppliers to cooperate, jointly promote and adopt
good environmental management measures, as well as to
assess suppliers’ operations for continuous monitoring and
improvement of environmental performance.

The Group is also actively implementing green office
management; for example, the use of Enterprise Resources
Planning (ERP) management system to promote the use of
electronic files and forms. The Group fully adopts the use of
Forest Stewardship Council certified paper (“FSC paper”) in
daily operation when necessary. Adopting FSC paper reflects
the Group’s operation is fully supporting environmental
protection in the perspective of office paper consumption.

e XNEEQAFIENNERHEM
ERBRIEFE

o RELEHERFTEEMERE
M THFRIR

o XBRRABKRFAKELER
REIMIERB BT BT EHIR
AR R

o EBRABBAMENAMR

SN REESBHEEEEREIER
R RE(BFEETRMKISO 9001
ISO 14001 + SA 8000%1SO 22000) °
o - REBE TG E T AR ER
KR USRNEREM -

B E202143A318 » B 18354tk
oM ERMN - EPS8RKREES -
126RKREFE - RIEHREE IS
BRI A MHER  AEEITTEHET
E WEMNBRRHIRGTE B
RFEHE2EERASEE -

AERERERRSAAREROT A
Ko REBEEEESEINARRKRMA
SEERNEZ - EEZHEENE
B AEEEBEHESRESE - HRAHE
BRFEREFREREREMK - WA
HHEREERR  FEERRNK
ZIRIREM -

anfE AR E R8I (ERP)E B R4t IA
HEEHETFEEEETRE AL
EEREEEPR U EREZEERR
MEREZ B ERENRR(FSCHD -
RAFSCHARMEMRENAAT
| AREOEERE2EFRRR

aa
i o

CE OB OE AR REEMEBBERARAD 51



10) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Since the Group launches its brands and acts as an agency
of personal care and health products for international brands.
As a result, the Group has strict control of product quality. The
reporting scope has adopted the ISO 9001 quality management
system to ensure effective procedures and processes are
adopted for the production of excellent and safe products.
Upon receipt of materials, the quality inspection process is
clearly defined and implemented according to the relevant
regulations. Each batch of products shall only be formally
released after it passed the inspection. All food, Chinese
medicine products must go through the testing on remained
pesticides, heavy metals, and micro-organisms. All products
which fall within the definition of proprietary Chinese medicines
under the Chinese Medicine Ordinance are regulated and must
meet the requirements in respect to safety, quality and efficacy
before they can be registered. The Group regularly monitors the
production and quality inspection procedures of the suppliers
to verify and confirm the suppliers’ capabilities in the provision
of compliant and safe products to the Group.

The Group has established the crisis management team
for handling emergency issues and formulating emergency
instruction for remediation of any issues and potential risks
incurred from product safety.

Fair Promotional Information

The Group complies in the Trade Descriptions Ordinance that
prohibits unfair trade practices including false trade descriptions
of services, misleading omissions, aggressive commercial
practices, bait advertising, bait-and-switch and wrongly
accepting payment. Therefore, all employees are required to
provide true and accurate product and service information to
customers when selling the products. The Group also arranges
appropriate training to ensure the personnel are equipped with
proper sales technique and precise product information.
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All products that are registered proprietary Chinese medicines,
the labelling must comply with the statutory labelling
requirements such as main ingredients, method of usage,
dosage, packing specifications, place of production, etc.
Labelling enables customers to understand the products’
ingredients fully and then builds trust towards the products.
Customer service hotline is also set up and is printed on the
surface of each box of product that is easily accessible and
traceable to the customers to make after-sales enquiries when
necessary.

Handling of Customer Complaints

As a responsible supplier of health and personal care products,
the reporting scope has handled all matters relating to product
quality in accordance with the ISO 9001 procedures, including
customer complaints about product quality:

° When receiving customer’s complaints or requests for
goods return, initial reply to the customer will be given
within the time frame specified in the procedure;

o The Group’s customer service representatives or sales
team will resolve the complaint through phone, online or
in person; and

o Serious complaints will be followed up by the crisis
management team.

During the reporting period, the Group did not receive
any customer complaints or violations against the relevant
regulations in product responsibility, and no product was
recalled for the reasons of safety and health concerns amongst
all products sold.

Management of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights managed by the Group mainly cover
its own-branded products registered in the business regions.
As at 31 Mar 2021, the Group attained a total of 583 from
Hong Kong and 821 from PRC registered trademarks of the
Group. To protect the rights of the registered brands, the Group
allocates resources to uphold confidential information such as
product specifications. The server storing such information is
equipped with a licensed firewall which restricts access from
external systems. Users are required to log in with passwords
and are allowed to access the authorised information only.
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Apart from protecting its intellectual property rights, the
Group respects the intellectual property rights of the others
and will not use the third party’s intellectual property without
prior authorization. Any unlawful and inappropriate act is not
acceptable in the Group.

Maintenance of Customer Information

Although the Group’s direct customers are mainly enterprises,
their information is strictly handled in the same manner as
dealing with personal privacy. The Group is based on the
“Personal Data Protection (Privacy) Ordinance Cap. 486
(“Ordinance”) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for its Privacy Policy, which ensures all collected, stored,
transmitted or used personal/corporate information are handled
according to the requirements specified by the Ordinance. The
Group’s management and staff maintain confidentiality and
properly retain all personal/corporate information collected,
stored, transmitted or used by the Group. Moreover, the Group
refuses to use any outdated and unauthorised software so as
to prevent data leakage and improve cybersecurity.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
complaint related to the privacy issue.

11) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

N\ s

The Group upholds environmental protection as corporate
culture and recognises the operational impact on the
environment as an indispensable element in the decision-
making process. The Group is committed to complying with
all applicable local environmental regulations and other related
requirements for promoting sustainable development and
preventing environmental pollution. During the reporting period,
the Group did not identify any violation or complaint against the
relevant environmental regulations.
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Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG) and
Pollutants Emission

Although industrial effluents are not applicable in the
operation of the Group, the Group strives to alleviate the
Group’s GHG emissions and pollutants by identifying
sources of GHG and defining the appropriate resolution.
The primary source of GHG emission of the Group
is generated from purchased electricity and vehicles
transportation. In view of that, the Group is striving to
reduce GHG emission sources, improve the efficiency of
related processes with GHG emissions, lower the use of
gasoline and increase the use of more environmentally
friendly fuels, etc.

Moreover, the Group’s head office is located in Tsim Sha
Tsui where is a city centre, a walkable distance to mass
public transit. The Group encourages the employees
to make use of public transportations and can be free
from private vehicles, living sustainably. Also, the Group
supports the employees to use video-conferencing
instead of business travel to decrease GHG emission
further. The Group’s current emission reduction measures
include the use of the EU 5 trucks across the board;
adoption of detailed inventory plan to reduce the number
of shipments in procurement; maximization the use of
waterway transport. In addition, advanced planning of
shipping routes is adopted in order to deploy the fastest
and shortest route for delivery and more importantly, to
avoid peak seasons and roads with heavy traffic jams.
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The Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensities
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b)

Waste Disposal

During product design and sales planning, the Group
adopts the principle of waste reduction through innovative
product design, supply chain management, and waste
recycling. The Group generates hazardous wastes, mainly
in the operating site in Yunfu. They are wasted mineral oil,
batteries, and waste generated in the chemistry and
biological laboratory?; however, a handful of exhausted
compact fluorescent lamp, batteries, cartridges and
toners are generated at the office. The property
management of the building is responsible for dealing with
the lamp and batteries, whereas exhausting cartridges
and toners are collected and recycled by the service
provider. In response to the latest government policy
regarding the Producer Responsibility Scheme (PRS) on
waste electrical and electronic equipment (WEEE), the
Group also pays particular attention to the WEEE such as
computers, printers, scanners as well as monitors if the
disposal is needed. Merely registered suppliers/services
providers will be employed to handle and dispose of
WEEE legally and adequately.

In regard to other recyclable wastes such as waste paper,
those recycling boxes are placed at the designated
locations and are handed over to the licensed recycling
agencies. The Group also encourage employees to
engage in double-sided photocopying and reuse single-
sided used papers to reduce paper wastage. Moreover,
the Group utilises mobile applications (Apps) to receive
orders from customers. In addition, the Group provides
reusable cutleries and containers for guest to use at the
office.

Moreover, the medicine resides, filter residues,
substandard products and etc. are recycled as chemical
fertilizer and feeds for internal farming and livestock
purposes.

2 Waste code was 900—249-08, 90004449 and 900-047-49.
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Total waste Intensity

produced (per production

(tonnes) volume)

EENEERY RE

HE (W) (BEE)

Non-hazardous waste 278.21 0.00116 tonnes/box
BERED 0.00116ME /48
Construction waste 0.67 0.000008 tonnes/box
SRR 0.00000318 /48
Hazardous waste 2.71 0.00001 tonnes/box
TR EEEY) 0.0000118, 48

In terms of the packaging materials, the Group mainly
use paper-made packaging. The total consumption in the
reporting period was 97.56 tonnes in period, intensity was
0.00041 tonnes/box.

Energy and Water Saving

In addition to the efforts for reducing GHG emissions and
waste generation, the Group has also taken appropriate
measures to conserve natural resources with the aim
of environmental protection. The Group’s conservation
measures are mainly conveyed through energy
management.

The Group adopts both administrative practices and
equipment installation for energy conservation over the
years, for example, requesting staff to turn off the air
conditioning and lighting during lunch time and non-
office hours; activating the energy saving mode of office
equipment; maintaining air indoor temperature at a
moderate level; and placing energy saving reminders at
the prominent location. The office situated in Tsim Sha
Tsui continued adopting LED lights, which compared on
the energy efficiency with conventional light bulbs in the
past office, a daily saving of 11.62 kWh was achieved.
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Other than that, the Group mainly produced general
office wastewater in Hong Kong, and our operations
do not consume a significant amount of water. On-site
wastewater treatment facilities and septic tanks are in
place in Yunfu to treat wastewater to meet the emissions
caps as defined by the relevant laws and regulations. In
general, the water supply system in Hong Kong and Yunfu
is from the government. Water tanks are also available in
Yunfu to store water for emergency use. There were no
difficulties on sourcing water. Notwithstanding the fact,
the Group is aware of the scarcity of water resources and
the importance of environmental education. The Group,
therefore, reduces the use of water by placing reminder at
the toilet and pantry to remind employees to save water.

The Group’s Resource Consumption and Intensity

FRERFRAEE

. . . y Consumption Intensity per shipment unit
Consumption Intensity per shipment unit SHEBNNEATE

&

Electricity (kwn) Water (Cubic metre)
E(TrH) K (%)

Consumption Intensity per shipment unit < g3 (> =
SR ABE 13.35 0.16 SHEER R ABE SHERRBERTE

Mobile Diesel (Litre)

BRUIL 2N REBXFEEREE
E-BAEREK - MBMEE
B mARERK - EERBRG
SRR EAEE M - FRIR)S
IKAZE DB AR AR IR TR
R o —fRRF - BAEMEF
B HIK ZFR BT o BIFER
BREKFE - AT ARKAE TR 2
FoHUKRENE - BEWL -
REBEEHBIKERNOMRFR
BHEMEZM - At - A&E
BAEAEFRMEAEZTRIER
1R B T & 4 AR /KRR A
7K e

Consumption Intensity per shipment unit

0.1

Total annual
consumption
REFARE

24,868

Mobile Unleaded patrol (Litre)
BENEEEISH (2

Consumption Intensity per shipment unit

Consumption Intensity per shipment unit SHEENWERARE

BHESVNERARE
— 0.05

\‘/

Total annual
consumption

ETRREER

12,832

Diesel (Litre)
SEil (a3

0.01
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d) Environment and the Natural Resources

To meet the growing demand for health and wellness
products in the market, the Group decided to build a
new operating site in Yunfu, China. In the design stage,
the Group commissioned with the third-party to conduct
environmental impact assessment before construction.
The impact of pollutants, water, air, waste, odor etc.
were fully assessed. Also, the report was outlined the
practical precaution measures to limit the emissions
and environmental impacts during construction and also
operating stage. Basically, the operating site is equipped
with wastewater treatment plant, septic tanks, grease
traps, pollutants removers, odor removers and etc, so as
to ensure the emissions comply with the relevant laws and
regulations. The relevant permit has been obtained finally,
and the production site has been started operations in the
second half of 2020.

12) CLIMATE CHANGE

60

The Group is devoted to combating climate change and
supporting the “China National Climate Change Program”.
The company will continue to adopt existing energy-saving
and emission-reduction measures, and also continue to
quantify carbon emissions, pay close attention to the latest
emission reduction technologies, and minimize unnecessary
transportation needs, thereby controlling greenhouse gas
emissions, and eventually achieving carbon neutrality by 2060.
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REFERENCE TO STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

A1

A11

A1.2

A1.3

Al.4

A1.5

A16

A2
A21

A2.2

A2.3
A2.4

A2.5

A3
A3.1

A4
A4A

B.1
B1.1

B1.2
B.2
B2.1

B2.2
B2.3

Emissions

Types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (..

per unit of production volume, per facility).

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Use of Resources

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(KWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with

reference to per unit produced.
Environment and Natural Resources

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage them.

Climate Change

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.

Employment

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-or parttime), age group

and geographical region.

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.

Health and Safety

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years

including the reporting year.
Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are

implemented and monitored.

11a. Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission

11a. Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission

11a. Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission

10b. Waste Disposal

10b. Waste Disposal
11a. Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)
and Pollutants Emission

11b. Waste Disposal

11c. Energy and Water Saving
11c. Energy and Water Saving

11c. Energy and Water Saving

11c. Energy and Water Saving
10c. Energy and Water Saving

11b. Waste Disposal

11d. Environment and Natural Resources
11d. Environment and Natural Resources

12. Climate Change
12. Climate Change

6. Employment
6. Employment

6. Employment
7. Occupational Health and Safety
7. Occupational Health and Safety

7. Occupational Health and Safety
7. Occupational Health and Safety
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section in This Report

B.3
B3.1

B3.2

B.4
B4.1

B4.2
B.5

B5.1
B5.2
B5.3
B5.4

B.6
B6.1

B6.2
B6.3

B6.4
B6.5

B.7
B7.1

B7.2
B7.3
B8

B8.1

B8.2

\.. '-..: . 62

Development and Training

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

Labour Standards

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced
labour.

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.

Supply Chain Management

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.
Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain and how they are implemented and monitored.

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored.
Product Responsibility

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are dealt
with.

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights.

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against the
issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.

Community Investment

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour needs,
health, culture, sport).

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

8. Employee Training and Development
8. Employee Training and Development

8. Employee Training and Development

6. Employment
6. Employment

6. Employment

9. Supply Chain Management
9. Supply Chain Management
9. Supply Chain Management
not disclosed yet

not disclosed yet

10. Product Responsibility
10. Product Responsibility

10. Product Responsibility

10. Product Responsibility

10. Product Responsibility
10. Product Responsibility

5. Corporate Governance
5. Corporate Governance

5. Corporate Governance
5. Corporate Governance
4, Community Service

4, Community Service

4. Community Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability and
transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal control
system from time to time so as to ensure Shareholders’ expectations
are met.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the below deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, is both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view
of the fact that Mr. Pang is one of the co-founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group effectively since
1996, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development with his profound knowledge and experience
in the industry. The Board therefore considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is reasonably justified under such
circumstances.

Code Provision F.1.1

Under Code Provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the company secretary
should be an employee of the issuer and have day-to-day knowledge
of the issuer’s affairs. During the period from 1 April 2020 to 9
July 2020, the Company engaged Ms. Kho Polien, an external
provider, as the company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”). On 10 July 2020, the Company has appointed Mr. Wong
Chung Him, financial controller of the Company, as the Company
Secretary. The Company has been in compliance with this Code
Provision since then.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

18 56 B 16

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to them at
general meetings. All Directors are required to pursue excellence in
the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/her fiduciary duties by
applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a standard
in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors including
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members for the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Kwan Lai Man Managing Director

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping
(Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, the Chairman, is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.
Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship), among the
Directors.

66 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

AARBRM ETBRINSE T 2ES
iEﬁ AR 5 2 IZESFR([HEASFA]]) o &K
NAIEAMBESRIELEEEHR MAAA

EEORARSENAFECETHRESTA
PR E 2 228 o
Exg
E2HBE

SUHRREE  URNBREASRAKE
FER - 2REFIYRURRNE RIKER
REHBEREMKE  WIREAEREM

BRMBA  EERBDIHBETHEERE
BT -
EEZHAER

EEeRBEATERERMAK  BIE2RY
TEE  2RFRPTEE NSRBI IEANTT
EE -NAFERBEAFHEY B=
gREWMT :

HITES
2 OTRE EEeXE
FRITHABE
EEELZL BEEREE
FHTES

\ER L

REFIRE

(E1Z 075 B 20206 5 16 H A4 5%)

BAFYITES
BBGEE
R E
WG+

ZONEREER) RRBI LI ZERE - I
NERBEEIN  EFRBEEMGREERE
B BE - RBEXEMEKR BN
BA1R)

Annual Report 2020/2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Independence

We have strong elements of independence on the Board, providing
independent and objective opinions on strategic issues and
performance matters as well as extensive expertise, experience and
insight of each Director to the integration of the Board. The Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine
on the independence of Directors. The Board determines that the
Directors do not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. Furthermore, the Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of its independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

During the Year, the Company at all times met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board and it exceeds the parameters of
the CG Code.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognizes the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that increasing the Board diversity will
enhance the quality of its performance by supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee
reviews this Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness and
recommends any revisions, if required, to the Board for consideration
and approval.
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1 3 B 6 ol

The diversity of the Board is summarized in the following charts: EEE2NZ AR TEBM -
Designation Gender

54 451

Executive Directors 28.57%

42.86% i
4 2857%  HITES I liels
B
1 Non-executive Fornale
Directors .
EMITES
M Independent .
28.57% Non-executive Directors 71.43%
B IEMITES
Age Group Directorship with other Listed Companies
F4 Bl (Number of Companies)

BRHEREMET AT 2ES(AFHAE)

42.86%
° 08579, M 40-49 years old 57.14% 0
' 40-4975% W12
7 50-59 years old 122
50-595%

14.29% ' M 3 or above
60 years old or above 0

3 A
28.57% B0BRBIA £ 08.57%

Length of Service in the Group

R & B iR 7% 5 57
57.14%

0-5 years

0-5%

[ 510 years
. 5-10%F
‘ 14.29% M 10 years or above
1058 A £

28.57%
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Board Meetings

During the Year, the Company held 4 regular board meetings, an
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 29 September 2020, 2 Audit
Committee meetings on 24 June 2020 and 27 November 2020,
respectively, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting on 24 June 2020
and 1 Nomination Committee meeting on 24 June 2020. Details of
each Director’s attendance in the aforesaid meetings are set out
below:
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The Board and the Management EESHEEE

The Board is responsible for the overall conduct of the Group,
formulating Group policies and business directions, and monitoring
risk management, internal controls and performance of the
management. The Board delegates and gives clear directions to the
Management as to their powers and circumstances in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior the Board approval.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon making request to the Board.

Executive Directors delegate some day-to-day management,
administration and operation to the senior management. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full
support of the executive Directors and the senior management for
the discharge of its responsibilities.

Management for the purpose of this corporate governance
report includes the executive Directors, senior management and
departmental heads. They are responsible for the day-to-day
operations, management and administration of the Group under
the leadership of the executive Directors. They also execute and
implement strategies and directions determined by the Board.

Members of our management are frequently invited to attend the
Board meetings to report and engage in discussions with the Board
in respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates to ensure that the Board has a general understanding of the
Group’s business and to enable them to make informed decisions for
the benefit of the Group. They are required to answer any questions
or challenges posed by the Board.

In addition to regular Board meetings, monthly management
meetings were held to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters.
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Board Meetings and Board Procedural Matters

The Board meets regularly and has formal procedures to include
matters to be referred to it for consideration and decisions at the
Board meetings. The formal notice and agenda of meetings are
usually sent to all Directors at least 14 days before each meeting
and they are consulted and given an opportunity to comment on the
agenda.

Meeting materials are usually sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting to ensure that the Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information. With a view to becoming more environment-
friendly by reducing paper consumption, meeting materials are
distributed in electronic form and Directors are encouraged to read
the electronic version.

Draft minutes recording substantive matters discussed and decisions
resolved at the meetings are circulated to all Directors for their
comments (if any) within a reasonable time (generally within seven
business days) of each meeting. The final version of the minutes
is approved at the subsequent meeting and a copy is sent to the
Directors for their records. The final executed version is placed on
record and made available for inspection.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular Board
meetings a year. During the Year, four regular Board meetings were
convened and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the 2019/20 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

2.  reviewed and approved the 2020/21 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3.  reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;

4. discussed and considered recommendations made by the
board committees;
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5. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s affairs,
including strategic plans, financial affairs, progress and updates
of business performance, and budget summary/proposals; and

6. reviewed the effectiveness of corporate governance practices,
internal control and risk management.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the Year, the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices in
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the CG Code and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

5.  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Professional
Development

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance with and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors in maintaining their training record.
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The below chart summarises the participation of Directors in training
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and continuous professional development during the Year.
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Directors
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Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny B HE + v v

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has been maintaining an adequate Directors’ and
officers’ (“D&Q”) Liability Insurance, which gives appropriate cover for
any legal action brought against the Directors and officers since the
Company went listed. To ensure sufficient and appropriate insurance
cover is in place, we review the Company’s D&O insurance policy
annually based on recent trends in the insurance market and other
relevant factors. The Insurance Policy is available for inspection by
the Directors upon request. During the Year, no claim has been

made since the Insurance Policy came into effect.
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Deed of Non-Competition

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly and
severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business or
manufacturing any products which are in competition with those of
the Group. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors
will review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their common law duty
to act in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole. Any perceived, potential or actual conflicts of interest between
the Group and its Directors are to be avoided. The Directors are
requested to disclose their interests, if any, in any transaction,
arrangement or other proposal to be considered by the Board at
Board meetings, and abstain from voting if any conflicts of interest
arise or where they become aware of any perceived or potential
conflicts of interest. All declared interests are properly recorded and
made accessible by the Board members. Directors have a continuing
duty to inform the Board of any changes to these conflicts.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Pang serves as the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. The reasons have been explained in the section
headed “Compliance with Corporate Governance Code” of this
annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) (including independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”)) make a positive contribution to the
development of the Group’s strategy and policies and scrutinise the
Group’s performance through informed insight and independent
judgement. They constructively challenge the management, which is
vital to fulfill the objectives set out by the Board. In order to preserve
well-balanced governance, the Board has ensured that all members
of the Audit Committee are INEDs, majority of the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are INEDs, and that each
committee is chaired by an INED.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All our NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a term of one year
and are required to offer themselves for re-election at the first AGM
following their appointments. Under the Articles of Association of the
Company, at least one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the AGM at least once every three years. Retiring
Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM at which he or she
retires. We confirm that all Directors’ appointments and re-elections
were conducted in compliance with the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CG Code for the period under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Board Committees are discussed below.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to review and monitor the Group’s relationship with
the external auditors and the auditors’ independence; monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial information and review significant
reporting judgments contained in it; oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and consider major investigation findings
on internal control matters and management’s response to these
findings.

As at 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the INEDs, namely Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk
Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Year, the Audit Committee convened two meetings and
performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2019/20 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed the 2020/21 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors, taking into account its independence;

4. approved terms of engagement including the remuneration of
the external auditors and audit service plan;

5. assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control systems; and

6. reviewed and discussed the internal control review projects
conducted by the Internal Audit function, including:

i. internal audit function and progress;

ii.  significant internal audit findings and follow-up remediation
status;
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ii.  annual internal audit planning memorandum; and

iv.  major investigation findings on internal controls and
management’s response to those findings.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under its terms
of reference, the Remuneration Committee is required, among other
things, to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the executive Directors
and senior management, and make recommendation to the Board
on the remuneration of NEDs (including INEDs).

The Remuneration Committee has also taken into account a number
of relevant factors such as remuneration packages offered by
companies of comparable business and scale, market practices, and
the financial and non-financial performance of the Group to ensure
that the remuneration packages offered remain appropriate and
competitive.

The Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual Director or
senior management approves his or her own remuneration.

Particulars of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements and the analysis of the five highest
paid employees are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three INEDs), namely Ms.
Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing
Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr.
Lau Chi Kit.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

2. reviewed the remuneration of the executive Directors and senior
management; and

3.  make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
NEDs and INEDs.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its term of reference, the Nomination Committee is, among other
things, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession; to make recommendations to the Board for potential
Board members; to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board; and to assess the independence of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors), namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr.
Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;

2.  assessed the independence of INEDs;

3. nominated suitable and qualified individual for directorship; and
4. made recommendations to the Board on the appointment or

reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.

78 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

RAFEE  FHEZEECBIT - REFH
WHETT FFITAE -

1. REEFENOEABRRY B
RHOEEREOFBTE |

2. FHWTEFLRESMEEEZHM
I3

3. RIFATEFLRBUIFATESROF
MrEEeFhERRE

REEES

ARARERER2010F11 ASHBRAZES
RERKLIREEES  HEOBEESEE
HEET - RIFEBESRE - 2RZ
BeAEHPBE)  RECXEFHEZETES
RERESSHTIAEEERNESTSRY
HEERZ RBCESTREMESZgIR
LHEERER SHESTIRE  ABRA
B REHEBIFENITES 2B o

20216 3A31H « IRBEZEEEHWUAKE
(— 2R TEER-_EBIUIERNTESR)A
K HRlEEEELL:  JIEGREE =
BREERSBEG LT -  HEEE L AR
ZEEBEERE -

RAFE REZBECEBITREH
WHETT FFITAE -

1. EHHEFSRE  ABRAK
2. FHMEBIIFATTEFTZBIUIL

3. HMEFBUERZAENEEBAL:
I3

4. NEFREAEHZTIUNEFTEET
AEAEFESROERES -

Annual Report 2020/2021



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the principles on guiding the Nomination Committee
to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board
for appointment, or to (i) shareholders of the Company for election.
The Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve board
diversity in the Company and enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and its corporate governance standard.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria in evaluation, selection
and recommendation of any candidate for directorship of the
Company, including but not limited to, diversity in aspects under
the Board Diversity Policy, commitment for responsibilities of the
Board, qualifications, reputation for integrity, potential contributions
to the Board, and plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board, and in case of the nomination of independence non-executive
Directors, meeting the independence requirements with reference to
the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In addition, the nomination procedures with regard to the new
appointment, election or re-election of a Director are set out in the
Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee may propose to
the Board a candidate recommended or offered for nomination
by a shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board and the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors is subject to the approval of the
Board. The Nomination Committee may make the recommendation
by submitting a proposal containing the nominating intention, the
candidate’s consent to be nominated and the candidate’s personal
profile and other relevant information to the Board for consideration.

Each proposed new appointment, election or re-election of a
Director shall be assessed and/or considered against the criteria
and qualifications set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination
Committee which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or the
Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Nomination Policy and from time to time review the Nomination
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Company’s independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The roles and responsibilities of our external
auditors are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

BB =

ARARZBILINBZBMAEFEAME
BHRBERAR - BRI ZBEOBE K
BEESFIN B ZEERE -

2021 2020

Fee paid/ Fee paid/

payable payable

e ENER BN ENBA

Nature of services PR E HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FET

Audit services RS 900 900

Non-audit services IEEZ RS

- Review services - EHRB 155 155

— Other services - HAth R 7 = 26

Total &5t 1,055 1,081
Directors’ Accountability and Auditing EEBEREZE

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2021 to reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position as at 31 March 2021 and of its results and cash flows for
the Year.

In preparing of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2021, the generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent
use of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 were prepared on a
going concern basis.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.
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Pursuant to code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, where the
directors are aware of material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the issuer’s ability to
continue as a going concern, they should be clearly and prominently
disclosed and discussed at length in the Corporate Governance
Report.

The auditor of the Company draws attention to note 2 in the
consolidated financial statements, which indicates that the Group
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$36,846,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2021 and, as of that date, the Group’s
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$103,416,000. As stated in note 2, these events or conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Auditor’s opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

In view of these circumstances and the impact of COVID-19, the
Group has been continuously implementing measures to improve its
profitability and operating performance and to mitigate the liquidity
pressure. These measures include (1) implementing business
strategies to enhance the production efficiency of the Group’s own
brand products and aiming to reduce the product cost by self-
production, (2) continuing its measures to control administrative and
operating costs, and (3) looking for other sources of finance including
equity financing to enhance the capital structure and reduce the
overall finance costs.

With respect to the Group’s bank financing, the Group maintains
continuous communication with its principal banks. As at 31 March
2021, the Group’s total bank borrowings that will be due in coming
twelve months included the revolving loans of approximately
HK$62,000,000 and the Group had unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$63,155,000. The directors of the Company are
not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw their
banking facilities or require early repayment of the bank borrowings.
Taking into account the good track record and relationships with
the banks and the fair value of the pledged properties, the directors
believe that the Group will be able to renew the banking facilities
upon maturity dates.
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The directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 March 2021. The
key factors that are taken into account by management in the cash
flow projections include the anticipated cash flows from the Group’s
operations, capital expenditures, continuous availability of banking
facilities and the impact of COVID-19. The Group’s ability to achieve
the projected cash flows depends on management’s ability to
successfully implement the aforementioned improvement measures
on profitability and liquidity and the continuous availability of banking
facilities.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
expected renewals of the bank borrowings and the unutilised banking
facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when they
fall due within twelve months from 31 March 2021. Accordingly,
the directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the period from 1 April 2020 to 9 July 2020, the Company
engaged Ms. Polien Kho, an external provider, as the Company
Secretary. On 10 July 2020, the Company appointed Mr. Wong
Chung Him, financial controller of the Company, as the Company
Secretary.

Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the effective conduct
of meetings and that proper procedures are followed (including
organising meetings, preparing agendas and the written resolutions
or minutes, collating and distributing meeting materials, and keeping
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved
at the meetings). He also advises the Board on compliance and
corporate governance matters (including updating the Board on
any legal and regulatory changes and facilitating the induction and
professional development of the Directors).

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at all times. Mr. Wong has confirmed that he has attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders to
move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a general
meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election as
a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The procedures for
the shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election as
a Director are also posted on the website of the Company.
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Procedures for Raising Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together with
their names and contact information to the Board by addressing
them to the head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1213-1215, 12/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by e-mail to
contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

During the Year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The latest version of
Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board, the Board committees and the external
auditors will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in
the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all Shareholders before the annual general meeting and
any extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the timeline
requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed to be
approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and poll voting
results will be published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company after the relevant general meetings.
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As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guidelines for the Board on determining any
declaration of dividends and the level of the dividend to be paid to
the shareholders of the Company, which allow shareholders of the
Company to participate in the profits of the Group whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. The Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future plans;

4.  the Group’s liquidity position;

5. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Group; and

6.  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no

assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The Board acknowledged that the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board places great importance on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and has ultimate responsibilities for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
is also responsible for overseeing in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board is committed to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the systems of risk management and internal control of the
Group and continuously communicates any significant matters to the
Board.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio according to such analysis; and

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and ongoing monitor the residual
risks.

Such framework provides a systematic approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for
stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate
governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group. The Risk Management
framework is aligned with the Committee of the Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Internal Control
— Integrated Framework. The components of the framework are as
follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for internal control across the
Group;

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should be
managed;

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to mitigate risks to
the achievement of objectives are carried out;
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is in place and
functions.

The management takes direct risk management responsibilities as
risk owners.

Risk Assessment

During the Year, management of the Company: 1) conducted risk
assessment to identify, filter and prioritize the key risks faced by the
Group; 2) established a risk register to document the Group’s key
risks and their respective risk levels; and 3) identified the mitigating
measures for the identified key risks, and the person-in-charge to
monitor and follow up the implementation progress of the mitigating
measures.

Moreover, there are top eight priority risks which have been identified
under four categories: 1) business and strategic risk; 2) operational
risk; 3) regulatory compliance risk; and 4) financial & reporting risk.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is an independent and
objective body, which performs the Group’s internal audit function
and directly reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
annually. The manager of IAD has a direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Board.

The IAD has an unlimited access to reviewing the Group’s activities,
internal control, risk management, and corporate governance related
issues. One of the functions is to assist the Board in independently
assessing the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems, risk management process, and more importantly seeking
continuous improvement.
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To align with the Group’s growth and latest business developments,
the IAD will always review its adequacy and competency of
knowledge and attend corresponding workshops and/or seminars
whenever thinks fit.

Internal Audit Activities

The IAD has adopted a risk-management based approach in
developing the annual internal audit planning memorandum, which
corresponds to the risk management framework. Risk assessment,
which is regarded as a major and dynamic process, is performed
on a regular basis so as to identify, prioritize and scope business
activities and simultaneously cover business activities with significant
risks across the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and approves
the annual internal audit planning memorandum. In each individual
audit assignment, significant risk areas such as finance, operation,
compliance and fraud risk would further be assessed in order to
evaluate internal control effectiveness and the mitigation efforts made
by the management.

All audit findings and corresponding recommendations on control
deficiencies of each audit assignment would be well communicated
to the management, who needs to initiate any remedial actions to
correct those control deficiencies within a reasonable period of time.
Subsequent reviews are purposefully done to monitor whether those
remedial actions have been performed right on time and correctly.
Significant deficiencies of individual assignment are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Through the ongoing reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the management’s awareness of some key operational processes,
the IAD discharges its duties of performing audit assignment on
those areas on an ad hoc basis if necessary.
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Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company’s
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Audit
Committee oversees the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group and continuously communicates any significant
matters to the Board. During the Year, the Company engaged an
independent consultant to conduct a review on the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and an internal control
audit report was submitted by the independent consultant to
the Audit Committee and the Board in June 2021. Findings and
recommendations concerning improvements to the Group’s internal
controls have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board.
The Board considered that the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate during the Year
under review.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting staff and considered that
staffing is adequate. All staff has sufficient competence to carry out
their roles and responsibilities.

Findings and recommendations concerning improvements to
the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board considered the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system of the Group,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting function,
and their training programs and budget, are effective and adequate,
and have complied with provisions of the CG Code during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (fT4)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit, the
Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming products
of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in mother
infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and treatment
services projects. Details of principal activities of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements. There has been no significant change in the
principal business of the Group during the Year. The segment
information of the operations of the Group for the Year is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year including a fair review
of the business and discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group
that have occurred since the year ended 31 March 2021 (if any),
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
certain financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures, an account of the Company’s
relationships with its stakeholders, and the environmental policies
and performance of the Group are set out in the sections namely
“Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
“Corporate Governance Report”, “Five Years Financial Summary”,
and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this Annual
Report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
The Group complies with the requirements under the Companies
Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQ”) for the disclosure of information and corporate
governance.
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o

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM SUBSCRIPTION

The Company completed a subscription of new shares in June 2016
(the “Subscription”) and the net proceeds of the Subscription were
used to invest in a joint venture company (established with Fullshare
in July 2016). The following table discloses proceeds from the
Subscription and the Shareholder’s Loan injected or to be injected
into the joint venture company during the Year:

REEENEREAR

AARER2016F6 A TR REF G (R
BEE]) BRBESENMERIEFEANE
BERAEE AR (FR2016F7 A BEEK ) o
TREBRAFERBESTHENMABRERE
ASFEAZEERANREER

Remaining Injected Remaining

to be for the to be

Capital injected as at year ended injected as at

Structure 31 March 2020 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

R2020F  REE2021F R2021F

3A31H 3A31H 3A31H

Source of Fund (HK$'000) EERR(THETL) EREER EEEA EEEEA HEEA
Subscription of JV Shares by ARARBEERARN

the Company (51%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,000/ 75.251% 30,600 - - -

Subscription of JV Shares by Fullshare L REA % 1 7

(49%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,000/ 7T 2 49% 29,400 - - -

Shareholder’s loan from the Company ~ REA R BRI EE X 69,400 34,910 = 34,910
Controling Shareholder’s loan from RENTEOERREER

Genwealth 58,280 58,280 - 58,280

187,680 93,190 - 93,190
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
pages 120 to 121 of this annual report. The details of the reserves
of the Group and the Company during the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 124 and note
41 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2021 were approximately HK$641.8 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the Year.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movement in the investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 24 September 2021 to Wednesday,
29 September 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 23 September 2021.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM of the Company will be held on 29 September 2021 and

the notice of AGM will be published and dispatched to Shareholders
of the Company in due course.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 248 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2021
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

94 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

LENERDBFES

RETAERLEAAAEERRBFAE
RRg LIEEZERK  RABER2021F9
B24B (EHH)E202149H208 (EH=)
(BEEEMB)EERERNBREELTF
B ZHBAARRABTEETEMBKS R
FERL ATAEREE LA RERRE
ERE - FEBPRBERMBEREEDT
EM2021F9A 23R (2HM) T Mes =
DREZAERBZEERDBEPERIEE
EHRHFERBRARMUATEEFEKNE
R183RA T LE4E) EITBP &R °

BRREFRS

KA BEHR2021F9 A29H BT R AF X
e THRBEERETERRAFRSR
EREFETFARARIRE °
EFEHBEEE

AEBSORTEMRFEENRE  BENM
BEMMEHNAFRF248H -

SN

RRARRAFERAR S
B TS HRaR BT EEST -

AHIBEENES

fi 8 2 A

RATIR2021E3 A3 B E BB A T
ISEN R A I IS RERBA5E40 ©

BriEERE

ERANKFESES A TLEEHE.
BERNKEXREANRRERRAREN
R L IR 2 B BRI -

Annual Report 2020/2021



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
and redeemed any of the Shares during the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$53,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Year:

Sales

— the largest customer 9.3%
— the five largest customers 32.5%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 6.7%
— the five largest suppliers 25.1%

During the Year, none of the Directors, or any of their close
associates or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the
Directors, hold over 5% of the issued share capital of the Company,
had any beneficial interest in the major customers or suppliers of the
Group noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping
(Suspension of duties with effect from 16 June 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the number
required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code
also stipulates that each Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Yuen Chi Ping and Dr. Tang Sing Hing,
Kenny will be retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will
be available for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three independent non-executive Directors pursuant
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that they are
independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 27 to 35 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
service agreement with the Company under which each of them is
appointed for a period of one year.

None of the Directors has or is proposed to have any service
agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (other
than contracts expiring or determinable by the employer within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Long Position in Shares and the Underlying Shares 72 &) i 19 K AHEE IR 15+ 1Y

of the Company 55}
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity Shares held options held (Note 3)
FR¥E FRE Bat
EsnR 14 K7 E BREHE (B5E3)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,385,000 8,125,000 1.51%
ZITRAE BB A
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,223,000 5,885,000 1.02%
Fe B s (M aE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation and 554,242,000 - 50.76%
family interest (Note 2)
REHEAE R KK kR (i sE2)
567,850,000 14,010,000 53.29%
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,223,000 5,885,000 1.02%
AEEXL EnfEEA
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,385,000 8,125,000 1.51%
Ao (B e (B EE1)
Interest of a controlled corporation and 554,242,000 - 50.76%
family interest (Note 2)
R HEE R S R R kR (HEE2)
567,850,000 14,010,000 53.29%

Note 1: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. Each of ~ M1 : LT EAAEBEZT L L2\ - At -

Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore deemed to be RIEFEFRATKRD - 20T ERBE
interested in the underlying Shares held by each other under the SFO. TR R E T FTFHERE R (5 P

B o
Note 2:  Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin and M2 : $TESRIBEEATTAENEESL+ER
10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. HHEI0% K10% R - AL - RIBEFESH K
Kwan Lai Man are deemed to be interested in the 554,242,000 Shares BB 20T R ERBBE R HER
held by Genwealth under the SFO. ARITE A R554,242,0008% 8% 17

B o

Note 3: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31 {73 : Z A L JIER2021F3 831 HHE 1T
March 2021 (i.e. 1,091,796,000 shares). f& 15 (BN1,091,796,0008% A7) 5t & ©
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Long Position in Genwealth, an Associated
Corporation of the Company

R R e

RARBRBEETEPNER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
Fris BRRER
EENE 5% gvig - ¢E| Botk
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 36,000 90%
TR AE Exn#EAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 4,000 10%
HAEEZT EmBEAA
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive [ FXFriEES  HMES SN AR T E

of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions therein that they shall
be deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or
any interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, so far as it is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons, not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had, or were deemed
or taken to have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:
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Long Position in Shares

R RV R

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name Capacity Shares held interest (Note 2)

Fr¥s Aok
£ Ha 14 R&HOHA )

Genwealth Beneficial owner 554,242,000 50.76%

1= EnfBA

Viewforth Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%

EmlEa A M)

Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%

EERERARAT EE R ()

Magnolia Wealth International Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%

Limited EE R (1)

Ji Changqun Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.90%

=5 EEER (M)

Note 1:  The 250,000,000 Shares are held by Viewforth Limited, a Company  Fi#E1: 5%250,000,0000% & 5 /o 2 1E ik B
which is wholly owned by Fullshare Holdings Limited, which in turn is RARZ2EHA Z A FViewforth Limited
owned as to approximately 38.69% by Magnolia Wealth International A - mMERERERAFBMagnolia
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Ji Changqun. Ji Changqun Wealth International Limited# 4 £738.69%
also directly owns approximately 4.62% of Fullshare Holdings Limited. ®#Ez © Magnolia Wealth International

Limited B ZFEEH L EHE - TEHNTEE
BHYRIERERRFILL4.62%MER

Note 2: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31 {2 : ZE DL JIER2021F3 831 HHE 1T
March 2021 (i.e. 1,091,796,000 shares). f& 17 (B11,091,796,000/% A& 17) 51 & °

Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors or  Fr FXFTHEEIN  RESHARTESR

chief executives of the Company, there was no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or were
deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective associates nor was the Company and any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
their respective associates to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” in
this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares
were entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers
of the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
from 25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no
further options will be granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one Share. The total number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1% of total number
of Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014. The offer of a
grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer letter
has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has
been paid by the grantee.
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The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering price
per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Year, no option was granted, no option was
forfeited and no option was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 September 2014.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
during the Year:

BRAHEEBREFEBETS
MERENITEEA0.8268TT ' &
2014F 1016 B B X AFEE TR
MNEEEEIEI0% °

RAFE  TEBEBRECESRD &
BRED SRR EERED EITE -
BRAARABEENBRETESZFHBE
RARG HEA2014F9A30H 2
fRZREANIFE -

TEEBRAEREEERAHEE
BB AR AR 2T B 2 A A T AR A ¢
2T

Exercise Asat Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name price per 1 April during during during 31 March
of participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2021
sREfH2Z 20205 R20215
SEENERIALE ReAH ke &S 4818 ERRY  FRRW  FRTR 3A31A
HKS
BT
Directors
Ez
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2018-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
gOTEE 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
5,440,000 - - - 5,440,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2018-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
BETAL 25/9/2014 0826  16/10/2019-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
Employees
8
Employees at aggregate  25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2019-24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
E&(aH)
288,000 - - - 288,000
Total 8,928,000 - - - 8,928,000
tif
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(2) Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of Shares in issue from time to time). No option
may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if exercised
in full, would result in the total number of Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options already granted or to
be granted to such Eligible Participant under the Share Option
Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding share
options) in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate of the Shares in
issue as at the date of such grant. The offer of a grant of share
options shall be accepted when the offer letter has been duly
signed and a consideration of HK$1 in total has been paid by
the grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Directors and ends on a date which is not
later than ten years from the date of the acceptance of the offer
of share options.
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to
the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company beneficially owned
by any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group
or an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the relevant option; and (i) the nominal value of the Share on
the date of grant.

During the Year, no option was granted, no option was forfeited
and no option was exercised. Details of the Share Option
Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 September 2014.
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The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s

ER@

e

TEBEBERAFREREBRAETSIX

share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during nprdi /NS4 FE ke
the Year:
Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2021
SRk 120206 R2021%
SRENERIGHE RYBH k@ s 4F18 HRRYE  BrRk  BaffE 3B31A
HKS
BT
Directors
2
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
ik 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2017-2110/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2019-2/110/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
211122017 1412 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - - 2,685,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
BETAL 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2017-2110/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 310/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2,144 310/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
21/12/2017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
211122017 1412 21/12/2019-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
2111212017 1412 21/12/2020-20/12/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - 2,685,000
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Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price per 1 April during during during 31 March
participant Date of grant share  Exercise period 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2021
SREkfH #2020 20215
SRENERIGHE RYBH ke &S 4F1B HBRRYL  BrRK  BRfTE 3B31A
HKS
BT
Employees

]
Employees at aggregate  28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 90,000 - - - 90,000
EE(AH) 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 120,000 - - - 120,000
18/11/2016 2,264 18/11/2017-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2018-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2264 18/11/2019-17/11/2026 36,000 - - - 36,000
300,000 - - - 300,000

Consultant

BR
Consultant 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
B 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 240,000 - - - 240,000
600,000 - - - 600,000
Total 6,270,000 - - - 6,270,000

it
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary
or other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties in
their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of the
relevant legal actions against the Directors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2021.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition have been
complied with by the Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
65 to 90 of this annual report for details of its compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of the
Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed at the said
meeting. Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditors
during the past three years.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in
the normal course of business are set out in the note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements, and none of which constitutes
a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the Listing
Rules.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS
OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS
UNDER RULE 13.18 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 15 July 2019, Hin Sang Hong (HK) (as borrower), the Company
(as guarantor) and a bank (as lender) entered into a facility letter,
pursuant to which the bank has agreed to make available an
uncommitted instalment loan, an uncommitted resolving loan facility
and an uncommitted corporate tax loan in an aggregate amount of
up to HK$19,900,000 to Hin Sang Hong (HK) for a term of up to 5
years. All loans are settled during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company did
not have other disclosure obligations under Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules.
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ANNUAL REPORT F

This annual report is printed in English and Chinese and is available 7N F $f LA/« XX ED % - I & #H R
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk under Bt X Fr 2 @84 www.hkexnews.hk Z
the “Listed Company Information” and our Company’s website at [ = 2 A & ¥ 1B T kK A 7 4 uh
www.hinsanggroup.com. Printed copies in both languages are  www.hinsanggroup.com ° 282 53 A & 5

posted to Shareholders. [ IRy B B8 FF 3R 2 R XOAR R BRSO o
By Order of the Board REEEm

Pang Siu Hin FE

Chairman EALT

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021 B 0 20216 H24H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

BT A E S TE R A
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
120 to 247, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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33 37 A% BRI e

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2 in the consolidated financial statements,
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of approximately
HK$36,846,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021 and, as of
that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$103,416,000. As stated in note 2, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BREREE EEZ2ERNMARARERSE

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment

WE BERLKE EHAEEEURKEBEYR BEER

RIE R E R E S

Refer to notes 17 and 18 in the consolidated financial Our procedures in relation to the impairment
statements. assessment of property, plant and equipment, right-
FR2HEE M mEMTE17TRI18 of-use assets and deposits for acquisition of property,

plant and equipment included:
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s Z5E@YHE - BEKEE - FREEEURKEY
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and ¥ * BEXRBEZSHRE GHREF BT
deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment
were approximately HK$360,414,000, HK$242,939,000 e Assessing and challenging management’s

and HK$1,530,000 respectively. The Group incurred a impairment assessment models, which included
net loss during the year ended 31 March 2021 as a result evaluating the impairment indicators identified
of the negative impact from the continued and prolonged by management and assessing the impairment
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. Management concluded assessment methodology adopted with reference
that there was impairment indication and conduced a to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
review of the recoverable amounts of property, plant and standards;

equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits for acquisiton ¢  FFENEREEBRRETGHER - SEFE
of property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2021. EEEHNBREDRRR2ERITETERN
202143H318 © BEXEWE  BEKHRE - £H L IE RS PR ER AR DR B AT A 0%

BEEUNRKBEYE BEAXERENEEES B
#)/360,414,000/8 7T * 242,939,000 7T % 1,530,000 e  Assessing management’s identification of CGUs

B e BEBREHZE2021F3A31ALFEELFE and the allocation of assets to each CGU with
B HR2019BMRAEEBERERRFRHEBEENE reference to our understanding of the Group’s
HEZM - ERERE  R2021F3A31BFERIE business and the requirements of the prevailing
DR WEME - BEREE CAEEEURKED accounting standards;

¥ BELRRENZSOATKESEETERN - s Z2EEZY BEEEXBKNTHERRITEIE

AT - FEEREHRSELBENHHI
RERSELBUMEESE

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions and estimates adopted by
management in the discounted cash flow
forecasts by comparing the significant inputs
with historical performance and externally derived
data;

e FRALNBEAWABBEBAERE RINDITE
BiE BEREEENUHERSNETAAFTRA
RS RER ML E IR

.[
.[
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Key audit matter

HRELER

Management assessed whether there was any impairment
of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and deposits for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment as at 31 March 2021
using value-in-use calculations for each identifiable
cash-generating unit (“CGU”). Preparing the value-in-use
calculations requires management to exercise significant
judgement, particularly in relation to revenue forecasts,
gross profit margin and discount rates.
ERERASAHNReEEEM(REEEELHE
REEENEYE  BERRE  EREEENUARK
BYE  BEREHENESN2021F3A31ANKREEB
EERAEMARE GECAEEFTERTEZEECREFLE
KRG - TEHRBEBRATER - EFERAFEX -

We identified impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment as a key
audit matter due to significant judgements and critical
assumptions applied by management in the impairment
assessment.

EEBNME  BENEE ERAEEEARKED
¥ BEARBREOBEN GRS —HBEREZEERT)
ERNEREETRENGREAERE RERER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNIBRAREZEE

° Checking the mathematical accuracy of the
value-in-use calculations in the management’s
impairment assessment; and

- BEERERENGEFEAEEFENHEE
RN R

° Performing sensitivity analysis on the level of
cash flows, the discount and growth used in the
impairment assessment.

o HREETEANRSREKTF - BHE RIE
RETHREDN -
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Key audit matter

HRELER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 BRI AR R E L

Refer to note 23 in the consolidated financial statements.
BREGE MBI ERNFE23 -

As at 31 March 2021, the gross carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$7,981,000 and allowance for credit losses amounted
to approximately HK$2,259,000.

F202163A318 © BXEMNEFHEKFIAKREARE
#) 77,981,000/ T R IE EE B EE L /2,259,000%
IT e

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the use of judgement and
estimates by management in determining the expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for the Group’s trade receivables.
EEMREIERUKRENREN EREAREZEETD
HREREEET E£EZEZRUKENAREEER
([TRERE E B 1R ) i R 8 3 1 S (st -

Management estimated the amount of lifetime ECL for
trade receivables based on provision matrix. Estimated
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without cost
or effect.
EREENBBRERMGTEHRKFIBEBNFERARE
EEESE et BREDNERNEBAERFRANZE
SERENX  WREBEHANHKAIBEIMAIEEZ
RIREMEERIEITRE -

|
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERNIBRAREZEE

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

EEAREZRUGIERENGHNREF B

“E /

LA AT A 4R T (R BR) 4 I AR A W

Obtaining an understanding of how management
assesses the ECL for trade receivables;
BEHEREBNMFEESRRFIAZEPEE
Eia

Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including ageing analysis of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, by comparing individual items in
the analysis with the relevant sales invoices; and
BMAEEEH EREBEEREMEAZENZ TE
M BEESHRWFIEZRESNT - HAEE
ER AN EREE BEFANHEEERETH
R

Assessing management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables, the reasonableness of management’s
grouping of the trade receivables into different
categories in the provision matrix, and the basis
of estimated loss rates applied in each category
in the provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information).
AEEREETESRWNEZ EEERREE
RE)EER HE - BREEHE S EEIAR A
BEEETTIRENNEEYE  RERERER
MR B BRIFER A ERR EE(BRERES
BAOXRKATEEER) o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- TR =

COARAR L A A A () B A R A
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° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: PO5769

Hong Kong, 24 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ol kH ﬂi’."ﬁﬂﬁiﬁni’%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 EFE20214E3H31HIFFEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Lk FET FHT
Revenue ON 6 119,441 176,209
Cost of sales SHEK AR (50,648) (57,818)
Gross profit EH 68,793 118,391
Other income E A 8 3,903 1,462
Other gains and losses Hablias X Eia 9 (857) (28,051)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (10,962) (21,977)
Administrative expenses TBR (87,009) (92,655)
Finance costs BhE A A 10 (11,040) (5,799)
Loss before tax BRELRTEE (36,672) (28,629)
Income tax expense FRSFiR 2 11 (174) (3,624)
Loss for the year FAEE 12 (36,846) (32,253)
Other comprehensive income/ Hia2mEBRA(B%)
(expense)
Item that will not be reclassified B TEEFHEE
to profit or loss: mIEE -
Fair value gain/(loss) on equity BAFEFTAEMETR
instruments at fair value through WARBRATAR
other comprehensive income W,/ (E518) 7,444 (116,991)
Item that may be reclassified HEneEH 77
subsequently to profit or loss: B oHE -
Exchange differences on translating MBI TS 2 [,
foreign operations ZRH 11,791 (11,978)
Other comprehensive income/ FREME2ERA FEX)
(expense) for the year 19,235 (128,969)
Total comprehensive expense FRE2HEMAXEHE
for the year (17,611) (161,222)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
A Fr 48 o B il 4 i U 4R R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #220214¥3A31H I F/Z

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BsE FET FHT
Loss for the year AT &FEEFRER :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company aE WNGIEZ=UN (31,950) (19,789)
— Non-controlling interests — FEIER A RS (4,896) (12,464)
(36,846) (832,253)
Total comprehensive expense UATE&FELFEAZE
for the year attributable to: M #aEE
- Owners of the Company S N/NCIEZZ SN (14,210) (146,909)
- Non-controlling interests — JE AR RE RS (3,401) (14,313)
(17,611) (161,222)
Loss per share BRER 15
- Basic (HK cents) - BEARGE) (2.93) (1.81)
- Diluted (HK cents) - EEE OBl (2.93) (1.81)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B B 5 IR DL R

AT 31 MARCH 2021 R20214¥3H31H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FBT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - HWEREE 17 360,414 231,528
Right-of-use assets PREEE 18 242,939 250,968
Investment properties REME 19 10,523 11,766
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFFAERD
profit or loss SREE 20 5,806 5,589
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEME - BERE&EZ
plant and equipment By 1,530 40,789
Equity instruments at fair value through ~ #ZAFEFAHEMEE
other comprehensive income WARB AT A 21 28,780 21,336
Deferred tax assets EIERIRE 30 371 122
650,363 562,098
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 20,091 10,699
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H M EW IR 23 18,741 44,081
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFABREN
profit or loss EREE 20 2,905 2,657
Tax refundable ARER R 616 2,842
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 24 15,143 12,428
57,496 72,707
Assets classified as held for sale DEAERFIERNENEE 25 3,958 =
61,454 72,707
Total assets BEEHAE 711,817 634,805
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMER IR 26 39,770 26,175
Contract liabilities sHaE 27 5,673 9,416
Bank borrowings IRITIE R 28 116,308 68,059
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 2,499 2,612
Current tax liabilities BNERFIB & (& 620 967
164,870 107,229
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (103,416) (34,522)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHBERABERS 546,947 527,576
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION
A o S B AR DL R

AT 31 MARCH 2021  R20214¥3H31H

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
BsE FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Bank borrowings RITIERK 28 220,537 182,517
Lease liabilities HEaE 29 6,156 7,994
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 30 679 =
227,372 190,511
Net assets BEEFE 319,575 337,065
Capital and reserves EXRRHE
Share capital [N 31 109,180 109,180
Reserves fE 208,929 223,187
Amounts recognised in other O EL A 2 T R A FERR I Y
comprehensive income and w2 EBEY HEARE
accumulated in equity relating to non- HEMNERDEENSEE
current assets classified as held for sale 169 -
Equity attributable to owners of RAEEA AL
the Company 1% 318,278 332,367
Non-controlling interests eI AR R A 1,297 4,698
Total equity B 319,575 337,065

The consolidated financial statements on pages 120 to 247 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin
L2280
Director

EFE

= o
g -2

A

F120B R F2UTEFH 2 GAUMBHRED
R2021F6A24HEEST S ERIEET)
% WHLNTREREE

Kwan Lai Man
AEE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

3& 2

LS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG ZPN
Amount
recognised
as other
Foreign comprehensive
currency Share income for Non-
Share Share  Merger Revaluation  translation  options Retained assets controlling
capital  premium  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  profits  heldforsale Subtotal interests Total
REELE
BERZA
Ef2ENA
RE  RGEE AbEE ERRE AKEREE BRERE REOEH He® N FERER &5
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$000
TEr  Thr  TEn Tin TEr  Thr  TER TEr TEr  TER  TiEn
(Note 31) (Note)
(a3 ()
At 1 April 2019 R019F4518 109,380 707,095 (71463 (332,169 (6,521) 8166 65528 - 480,016 27,0256 507,04
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (19789 So19789 (12464 32259
Other comprehensive expense for the year ERAtER
Fair value loss on equity instruments at fair BATETARBZERAN
value through other comprehensive income RATALTFESR - = - (116.991) = = = - (116,991) - (116991)
Exchange differences on translating foreign BENEEK ERER
operations - - - - (10,129) - - - (10,129 (1,849 (11,978
Total comprehensive expense fo te year FREERRER - - - (116991 (10129 - (19789 - (148909 (14318 (161,222
Changes in ownership interests in subsiclaries ~ FEHH5|E%
without change of control R - - - - = = = = - U319 @319
Distributions to non-controling inerests MIEERER A - - - - = = = = - (36%) (369
Shares repurchased and cancelled BBEREERD (2000 (1,20) S S = = S - (1409) - (1409)
Recognition of equity-setfled share-based! EIRREENRNAERN
payments OES - - = = = 665 = = 665 = 665
At 31 March 2020 2020634318 109,180 705890 (71463  (449,160) (16,650) 8831 45739 - 332367 4698 337,065
Loss fortheyear ERER - o - - - - g - (L0 (48%) (6846
Other comprehensive income for the year FRERZEUA
Fair value gain on equity instruments at fai BOFES AL RERALD
value through other comprehensive income RATAATFENR o o o 7,444 o o ° - T4 - T4
Exchange differences on translating foreign BENEER ERER
operations - - - - 10,296 - - - 10,29 1495 11,791
Total comprenensive expense for the year FRRERRGE o o o 7,444 10,206 - (31,950) - (142100 (3401)  (17,611)
Recognition of equity-setfled share-based! ETRREENRA AR
payments DE = = S o o 121 S o 121 = 121
Transfer upon classfication of non-current RIERIEESRARELE
assets as assets held for sale EERER = o o (169) o o = 169 = = =
At 31 March 2021 R2021538318 109,180 705890  (71,463) (441,885 (6,354) 8952 13,789 169 318,278 1,207 319,575
Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital Mzt : &HFEEERESEEEHEA DA E’jﬂ;%zl&iﬁizlx
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other SEETHMARRANESEHEHEE

companies comprising the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation, ARAIERER) 2 EERE -

after elimination of intra-group investments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 # Z20214F3 5318 1 F/Z
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities BETHMEBEERE
Loss before tax bR AT E 1B (36,672) (28,629)
Adjustments for: ERTISERAE
Finance costs BB KA 11,040 5,799
Interest income FBUA (97) (201)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEREKEZ
plant and equipment 518 = 5,389
Share-based payment expenses AR 9 B EERE R 3B 2 121 665
Impairment loss on property, plant and YIZE - RS S aR 1 DA R (5 PR A
equipment and right-of-use assets BEZREBE = 20,128
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZTE 10,376 10,780
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREIITE
plant and equipment 10,907 9,391
(Gain)/Loss on fair value change of BRATESABGNEREELZ
financial asset at fair value through AFEEE (W), BB
profit or loss (619) 2,291
(Gain)/Loss on fair value change of WEYE 2 NFEE
investment properties (Wea),/E1E (11) 761
Impairment loss recognised on trade NE S RRFIEREREREER
receivables under expected credit loss EEENIB T 2 RERBE
model 1,063 147
Gain on lease termination mIFFRE W = (192)
Gain on lease modification BB E W= (67) =
Write down of inventories WoRTEE - 3,787
Operating cash flows before movements LEECHFHA 2 KE
in working capital Bene (3,959) 30,116
Increase in inventories FEH (3,556) (8,022)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 REMBEWIER LD,
other receivables (38 0n) 25,730 (12,611)
Decrease in financial assets at BEAFEFABRASE
fair value through profit or loss BERD 154 =
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and E 5 R H M KB
other payables R,/ hn (5,948) 6,250
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities AHBRECRD), N (3,884) 7,230
Cash generated from operations CEEBMFIRS 8,537 22 963
Income tax refunded RO FTISH 2,351 =
Income tax paid B FEH (238) 6,312)
Net cash generated from KE RS FEE
operating activities 10,650 16,651
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cash flows from investing activities RETHMEEERE
Interest received =S 97 201
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - BRERKEMS
plant and equipment KIE - 672
Purchases of property, plant and BEME - BB &K
equipment (62,342) (120,787)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WiEMmE -« BEMREZEMNES
plant and equipment (1,470) (42,069)
Net cash used in investing activities B RETARE T8 (63,715) (161,983)
Cash flows from financing activities BMETHMEEERE
Interest paid EFIE (12,384) (7,885)
Distributions to non-controlling interests M) FEE AR A 25 0 R - (3,695)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U BB RV AR HE = (4,319)
Repurchase of shares EAEI ) - (1,405)
New bank loans raised MEBLIRITER 132,191 152,773
Repayments of bank loans ERIBITERK (62,055) (32,726)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHERARE (2,410) (7,650)
Net cash generated from BMEEBERESFE
financing activities 55,342 95,093
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RBeRBRSEEYWEM(BD)
cash equivalents FE 2,277 (50,239)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNRE MREEED
the beginning of year 12,428 63,768
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ~ [ER & ShF £ 438 (1,101)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRNEESRESEEY
the end of year 15,143 12,428
Representing: (A3
Bank balances and cash RITER N IR 15,143 12,428
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&0 A 0 A B nE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing,
selling and distributing of personal care products, healthcare
products and household products as well as provision of
Chinese medical healthcare related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$36,846,000
during the year ended 31 March 2021 and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$103,416,000. These conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as going concern.
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128

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In view of these circumstances and the impact of COVID-19,
the Group has been continuously implementing measures
to improve its profitability and operating performance and to
mitigate the liquidity pressure. These measures include (1)
implementing business strategies to enhance the production
efficiency of the Group’s own brand products and aiming to
reduce the product cost by self-production, (2) continuing its
measures to control administrative and operating costs, and (3)
looking for other sources of finance including equity financing
to enhance the capital structure and reduce the overall finance
costs.

With respect to the Group’s bank financing, the Group
maintains continuous communication with its principal banks.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total bank borrowings that
will be due in coming twelve months included the revolving
loans of approximately HK$62,000,000 and the Group had
unutilised banking facilities of approximately HK$63,155,000.
The directors of the Company are not aware of any intention of
the principal banks to withdraw their banking facilities or require
early repayment of the bank borrowings. Taking into account
the good track record and relationships with the banks and
the fair value of the pledged properties, the directors believe
that the Group will be able to renew the banking facilities upon
maturity dates.

The directors have assessed the Group’s cash flow projections
cover a period of not less than twelve months from 31
March 2021. The key factors that are taken into account
by management in the cash flow projections include the
anticipated cash flows from the Group’s operations, capital
expenditures, continuous availability of banking facilities and
the impact of COVID-19. The Group’s ability to achieve the
projected cash flows depends on management’s ability to
successfully implement the aforementioned improvement
measures on profitability and liquidity and the continuous
availability of banking facilities.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the
expected renewals of the bank borrowings and the unutilised
banking facilities, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to finance its operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31
March 2021. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16”), and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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130

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuea)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 April 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

132

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions*

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond
30 June 2021°¢

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2°

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)'

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020?
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

£ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s relevant components of equity and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-attribution of
relevant reserves between the Group and the non-controlling
interests according to the Group’s and the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly
probable. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the relevant subsidiary after
the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for financial
assets within the scope of HKFRS 9 and investment properties
which continue to be measured in accordance with the
accounting policies as set out in respective sections.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Refund liabilities
The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects

to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange for
dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
(therefore, revenue would not be recognised for the
products expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) arefund liability/contract liability; and

(c) an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales)
for its right to recover products from customers and are
presented as right to returned goods asset.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time
value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly
or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year,
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the
transaction price for any significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within one
year.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions
of the contract are subsequently changed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment property are
presented within “investment properties”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FE=:iBE®

(Continued)

Leases (Continued) HE®

The Group as a lessee (Continued) REFIEDBAHA (E)

Lease liabilities (Continueqd) HEBEE

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by KB EEE HEAEERESTE

interest accretion and lease payments. NREENTGRE -

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a EATEHZLER  AKSBEHFTE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) HEBE(REBEREAEEEELE

whenever: fEFE) :

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in o THHEIEMMEHNITHEEEEER
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in WA EEEE L EZERT -
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by EEHEREERAFRNRENT
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised & BBl 2 B RT R IR R AL IR 45
discount rate at the date of reassessment. FIHENRMENE -

e the lease payments change due to changes in market e MHENRRMSEHEHETIERAM
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases LHeEXEHMERZE &
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the EAT - HEBEEREFERY
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate. MBI RGBT ENRE

Fate o

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on REBRGEVBRAKRILZERKE

the consolidated statement of financial position. 2y HERE -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase
in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the particular
contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability, less any lease
incentives receivable, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a
finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model. Variable lease
payments for operating leases that depend on an index or a
rate are estimated and included in the total lease payments
to be recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as
lease modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation
rate on general borrowings. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payments
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)
Share options granted to employees (Continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to the
right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
to the same taxable entity by the same taxation authority.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Buildings in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include any costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values at initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-
of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and accounted
for as investment properties under the fair value model. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between non-
lease building element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
that item (including the relevant leasehold land classified as
right-of-use assets) at the date of transfer is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the property,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
retained profits.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties also include leased properties which are
being recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the
Group under operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
A leased property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset
is derecognised if the Group as intermediate lessor classifies
the sublease as a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any indication
that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating
units, including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit or the group of cash-generating units. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
#n 1 A B Wt % P Wk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

4.

160

B E20219F3A31HIFFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

U the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting
contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group
may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

U it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

162

Financial instruments (Continuead)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

U)

(i)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueqd)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or
loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and bank balances)
which are subject to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

164

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment
of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both guantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

S BE®

£RT R %)

SREEE)

B ERE(E)
AEEBRRE S REWKIBRERTE
HRTE RS 1A o
MAAHMTARS  AEEFES
1218 AT IS B B S 1B RS -
BIEBVBERARIEERKD S B
2 EZERT $%lm@ﬁ

REEHEREEERSE - FEHEEE
BRTFENEREEBEBNEREY]
IARER AR EE £ E X 2 AT RE M SR B
HFEZEIL I AE ©

() fEERREZELM

R B VTR UAREER R
EEBELINE - NEBEFRE
LSHHemMITARENELNRR
ﬁm%ﬁwﬁﬁiﬂlﬂﬁim
EARBEITLE o RNETTHAT
ﬁ% rEEEEABEEEE
WEERTEHEER  BIEELL
BRBAMETUNENKALSE
TIENAIES R RTE B R o

KRl ERFEEERRESR
MBS EBIATER

s ERMIAMINEEIA)HA
MEENANERKEH
mERIE:

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2020/2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

M

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

166

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

168

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4.

170

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is
transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a

part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix. The provision rates are
based on ageing of debtors as groupings of various debtors
taking into consideration the Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 39.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

Estimated impairment of property, plant

and equipment, right-of-use assets and
deposits for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
deposits for acquisition of property, plant and equipment are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the asset belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or the
growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the recoverable amounts.
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6. REVENUE 6. WA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue: T RAER 2 WADHT :
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Sales of goods HEEm 118,413 173,328
Provision of healthcare services TR IR AR TS 1,028 2,881
119,441 176,209
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ) BEEEHNVRADHF
with customers
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BIZ2021F3A31ALFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Ef mERR Em
BRI REELS HEMN RESB CH
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Segments yig] FEL FET FET T T
Type of goods or services EmRKEER
Sales of healthcare products REERHEE 96,533 = 348 = 96,881
Sales of personal care products  TIAZEEERHE 18,306 1,634 9% - 20,035
Sales of household products FREEMHE 1,111 340 46 - 1,497
Healthcare service R = = = 1,028 1,028
Total aat 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
Geographical markets it
Hong Kong Bk 60,793 1,974 489 748 64,004
The People’s Republic of China ~ RE AR A
(the “PRC") (e 55,157 - - 280 55,437
Total aat 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
Timing of revenue recognition ~ B2 A BIRS
Anpoint in time EEBE 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
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6. REVENUE (continueqg) 6. WA

() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () BEFENWADIFE
with customers (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3A31HIEFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em miEFE Em

RENE REENH  BEAE  BEAD At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Segments Gl TET TET TET TET TET
Type of goods or services ERRREER
Sales of healthcare products REERHE 145,832 = = 332 146,164
Sales of personal care products T AEEEREE 22,280 2527 = = 24,807
Sales of household products REEMBEE 1,636 721 = = 0357
Healthcare service RERY - - - 2,881 2,881
Total &it 169,748 3,248 - 3,213 176,209
Geographical markets [ty
Hong Kong Bk 117,707 3,248 = 2,433 123,388
PRC hE 52,04 - - 780 52,821
Total B 169,748 3,248 - 3,213 176,209

Timing of revenue recognition TSR A KBS
Anpoint in time EE R 169,748 3,248 = 3,213 176,209
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

178

(ii)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

Sales of healthcare products, personal care products
and household products

The Group sells healthcare products, personal care
products and household products to retailers and
distributors and directly to customers both through its
retail outlets and through online sales.

For sales of goods to retailers and distributors, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to their specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the retailers and
the distributors have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, have the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is 0 to 75 days upon delivery.

For sales of goods to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

For online sales, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred to the customer, being
at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.
Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location. When the customer
initially purchases the goods online, the transaction price
received by the Group is recognised as a contract liability
until the goods have been delivered to the customer.
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

Healthcare service

The Group provides mother-infant Chinese medical
healthcare service. Generally, the Group charges one-off
healthcare service fee based on an agreed pricing for a
specific healthcare service. Revenue from providing this
healthcare service is recognised at a point in time when
the services are rendered.

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under “HKFRS 8 Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products
developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution of
products purchased from authorised dealers, independent
traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

4.  Healthcare Segment — development of mother and child
related health products, hospital, medical center and
related services
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment.

For the year ended 31 March 2021

7. 7EER @)
TEWR AR FEE

TOI BRI wE MR & B
SEBARZENDN ©

HE20215F3A31HILFE

|53 7R

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Em IR Em
BRI REESH HESE REID &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER
Revenue 0N
External sales HIMEE 115,950 1,974 489 1,028 119,441
Segment profit/(oss) A&/ (BR) (16,796) 293 140 (4,402) (20,765)
Interest income FBIA 97
Gain on fair value change of BATEFABREN
financial assets at FVTPL SREEZATE
28 lsm 619
Finance costs AN (11,040)
Unallocated expenses AW (5,583)
Loss before tax BEAER (36,672)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

7. DEHER @
TEWR AN EEE

HZE2020E3A31R ILFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em miEFE B
HEDH kEBSH  BESH  BESH At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TEL TAL TAL
Revenue KA
External sales BIMEE 169,748 3,248 - 3,213 176,209
Segment profit/{oss) A&/ (B8 8,135 (42) - (22716) (14,629
Interest income MEKA 201
Loss on fair value change of BRTE AR
financial assets at FVTPL CHEECATHE
29 ER (2,291)
Finance costs BEM K (5,799)
Unallocated expenses RARFAX (6,117)
Loss before tax BRAER (28,629)

There were no sales transactions between operating segments.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses, gain/
loss on fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL, interest
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
board of directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

s LTI
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

182

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segment.

TEER @)
TEEERERE

TF Atz n @ R

SENEERAEND frﬁ .

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Segment assets PHEE

Product Development Segment EmAESH 655,370 584,934

Brand Development and mhERERERES
Management Segment 428 845
Trading of Goods Segment EmBEEDE 335 3
Healthcare Segment fERE 7 &6 2,063 4,049
Total segment assets DEPEEBE 658,196 589,831
Unallocated RoHL 53,621 44,974
Consolidated assets HREBE 711,817 634,805

Segment liabilities PEEME

Product Development Segment EmAEsE 44,515 34,448

Brand Development and mEREREE DB
Management Segment 334 480
Trading of Goods Segment EmBEDE 230 21
Healthcare Segment i BE 3 &B 364 642
Total segment liabilities N BEERE 45,443 35,591
Unallocated RHE 346,799 262,149
Consolidated liabilities rea’E 392,242 297,740
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
equity instruments at FVTOCI, financial assets at FVTPL,
bank balances and cash, deferred tax assets and tax
refundable.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than bank borrowings, lease liabilities, deferred tax
liabilities and current tax liabilities.

Other segment information

N

o EBE R @)
PEHEERBE®)

Vs Eﬁ DERE MR D BEELER

FMIEEEENEELE DR (R
RN EFARMBEEEARRA
TR BAVEAABSNESRE
BE RITEHRLRE - BTEHR
TREERAREBREIN o

s MARGBENEZLEDAE(GER
768  HEAE  BEENER
B R BNV IR R ERRIN) -

Hitb o #E#

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BIZ202163A31HLFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
Em IR E Em
i e REESH  HEIE REIY &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T T T T
Amounts included in the measure  FTESH G FlBER
of segment proft or oss or PWEERTANEE -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets ERYEERE 129,427 31 - 80 129,538
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFEELEZITE 10,379 65 = = 10,444
Depreciation of property, n% - BEREECRE
plant and equipment 15,353 36 - 778 16,167
Impairment loss on trade REETAEANES
recelvables recognised in EUFERESR
profit or loss 1,063 - - - 1,063
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Other segment information (Continued)

B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HIEFE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development Management of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em miEFE Hm
HEDH REENH  BEAE BEAIY At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THEL TEL TEL
Amounts included in the measure G2 7505 Flet B8zt
of segment proft or 10ss or PHEER AN EE -
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets FRPEERE 173,642 - - 75 173,717
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {SFEELE & 8,208 26 = 2945 11,179
Depreciation of property, n% - BEREECRE
plant and equipment 5,239 56 - 4,096 9,391
Impairment loss on trade REETEANES
receivables recognised in U RREER
profit or loss 141 6 - - 147
Impairment loss on property, plant ME  BERREAR
and equipment and right-of-use BRELE HEER
assets 20,128 - - - 20,128
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,  HENE « BE k&E
plant and equipment ki) /BB (147) () - 5,539 5,389
Write down of inventories WHBE 3716 71 - - 3,787
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers
is presented based on location of the operations. Information
about the Group’s non-current assets (excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets) is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.

TEER @)
b 35 &

REEREERPRLEERT -

BRAAKERBIIBELOHPRAER
REEXBOUEEDZY - AKX
KESERBEE(TEAERTARE
ERBEE)NENZEENMIREUE

el

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REIBEF WA kRBEE

2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FET FBT FET
Hong Kong &5 64,004 123,388 237,196 251,280
PRC i 55,437 52,821 378,210 283,771
119,441 176,209 615,406 535,051

4
4
b |
2
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Information about major customers

Revenues from customers for the corresponding years

7. DEHER @

BREIBEEFNEHR

REBFEERNEERRAERI0%

contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as HNEFPRWALT :
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Customer A' BEEA N/A? 23,629
T8 A2

U Revenue from Product Development Segment and Brand
Development and Management Segment.

! REEMAZESBARBERELE

B3 EREIHA -

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total 2 HEFE B9 U A T K AR & B B U AR
revenue of the Group. #B10% °
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HlA
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FHET
Interest income on bank deposits |ITIF A B UA 97 201
Rental income el A 217 389
Government grants AT L 2,719 =
Others Hh 870 872
3,903 1,462

Note: During the year, the Group recognised government grants of
approximately HK$2,719,000 (2020: Nil) relating to Employment
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HhlW&m K E#E
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET
Gain/(Loss) on fair value change of EAFERFABENESE
financial assets at FVTPL BEZANFEES
Wz, (E518)
— Held for trading -BEEE 402 (2,503)
- Others - Hftb 217 212
Gain/(Loss) on fair value change of WEMEZ R EZE
investment properties W=,/ (E18) 11 (761)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEM% « BE & &EZ
equipment 518 = (5,389)
Impairment loss on property, plant and  4#1% - BiE MR E LA K&
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEEREEE - (20,128)
Impairment loss recognised on trade A E 5 E U Z B R TEH
receivables under expected credit EEBBEERNETZ
loss model BIEEE (1,063) (147)
Gain on lease termination IR E W = 192
Gain on lease modification B E R 67 =
Net foreign exchange gain SN F U 2 9 473
(357) (28,051)
FINANCE COSTS 10. BL & B A&
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiET FHT
Interest expense on bank loans RITEFRFERAZ 12,126 7,885
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEABMERX 258 1,024
Total borrowing costs BEERAR 12,384 8,909
Less: amounts capitalised in the cost & : & &K EEKAF
of qualifying assets BEREHEEE (1,344) (3,110
11,040 5,799

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year are calculated
by applying a capitalisation rate of 5.49% (2020: 3.22%) per
annum to expenditure on qualifying assets.

EEF

KEEBERENEERKR KT EBE
AABREERSYNERLERNE
5.49%(20204F : 3.22%)5t& o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. FREHBX
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: BIHABIR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BERNEH
— Current year - KFE 608 3,544
— Qver provision in prior year - B FEEERE (662) (209)
(54) 3,335
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B TSR
— Current year -RFE 12 323
— Over provision in prior year - BAEFERERE (192) =
(180) 323
Deferred tax (note 30): EIERE 18 (M17E30) ¢
~ Current year - RFE 408 (34)
Total income tax recognised in MBS HERZ Pt
profit or loss 48z 174 3,624

188

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, the Hong Kong profits tax of the
qualifying group entity is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2
million of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

MR2018F3A21H  EAEL LS R
B (2017FE M (BE]) (B75) GHIE
R)([EBIER] - 5| AFBHEMK
Hl o &M EZRR2018FE3H28HEE
RAELRRE IRBRETE - REFSE
MEMBH  AEREEERE2ES
PETT 2 8 I i 1R B R 8.25% Br B+ T
FBiB2H & T 28 M R E16.5%
R AR EBREMBH 2 EE
BRI HMNBEELRSTE —FHE16.5%
S At AEREEEREER
SN E2E BB TR ERFUET
141%28.25% M T R - MiBB2A S
B TCH ST FE R BE A 4512 16.5% /)
TRERBH -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2020/2021



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

No provision for taxation has been provided for companies in
the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands as they are
not subject to any tax during the current and prior years.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

1. 8B e

REBHBEREREHE(EEMED
EDREEMEBRZAERGEH - F
BHBARNMEFENHEA S
25% °

HRAFERBEFEREHSRE
BRZBESNRA ARG AN EMNH
B M EL L EF AR EHIR A &
o

FERAXHEGABa R EMEE
Was R HIBR BRI B R RN T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHT
Loss before tax bR A% Al A 1B (36,672) (28,629)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax BREBNEHRTE16.5%
rate of 16.5% FFEHIE (6,051) (4,724)
Tax effect of expenses not R a ok 8
deductible for tax purpose B 1,506 4,610
Tax effect of income not taxable AR A BB 1S
for tax purpose 2 (36) (3)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIBB BT B
recognised B 8,143 8,060
Utilisation of tax losses not FAARTELERATIE
previously recognised B8 (620) (1,425)
Effect of different tax rates of EEMAEEE LR
subsidiaries operating in other =N 7N R
jurisdictions B E (2,186) (1,672)
Over provision in prior year BAFEEERE (854) (209)
Others Hh 272 (1,013)
Tax charge for the year FEMIELH 174 3,624
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12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 12. FRBHIE
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): FAEBEMERGEA) THEIE
BIEEL:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Depreciation of property, Y - BERREIITE
plant and equipment 16,167 9,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 10,444 11,179
Total depreciation meEBTE 26,611 20,570
Less: amounts capitalised in B ERIEENMERRIE
construction in progress (68) (399)
Less: amounts capitalised in B EIFEEANMEFIA
inventories (5,260) -
21,283 20,171
Staff costs, including directors’ BEIRAK(BEEEHNS)
emoluments 45,887 45,532
Less: amounts capitalised in inventories & : 17 & & Ak 718 (4,905) =
40,982 45,532
Cost of inventories recognised as BRARZ 2 FEKA
an expense 43,409 49,701
Auditors’ remuneration % E BN BN & 900 900
Write-down of inventories WO F & - 3,787

Gross rental income from investment &Y 2 @S WA

properties (217) (389)
Less: direct operating expenses B EEREEERY 64 79
Net rental income from investment wEYEZFHES KA

properties (153) (810)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 13. EERFETHAE

EMOLUMENTS [ [
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors and chief ENKEREARREERFEITHRA
executive of the Company were as follows: BT
For the year ended 31 March 2021 EZE2021F3831BLEE
Other emoluments
Hite
Contributions
Salaries Share- to retirement
and other based benefits
Fees benefits  payments schemes Total
H&R DUBRAR B BHREF
e Httgdl ERNEX BE &t
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TEr TER TEr TER
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note) O E () = 2,540 61 76 2,677
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BBEuL - 2,016 60 77 2,153
Non-executive directors FHITES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERTL 180 = = — 180
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REYAAE 180 = = = 180
Independent non-executive BYKGTES
directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FkrE 240 = = = 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny WaEET 180 = = = 180
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Edwin ABREEE 180 - - - 180
960 4,556 121 153 5,790
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021

B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 13.ZEERTETHAE
EMOLUMENTS (continueq) [ A
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HILFE
Other emoluments
Hb e
Contributions
Salaries Share-  to retirement
and other based benefits
Fees benefits payments schemes Total
ek LARR 1D B R
e HiEgdl  ERLONT BE- ks =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TET FTET
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Note) O E (HED) - 2,565 355 18 2,038
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BBERaL = 1,998 286 18 2,302
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERLT 180 = = = 180
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFALE 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FhekiaE 240 = = = 240
Dr. Tang Sing Hing Kenny HEAET 180 - - - 180
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Edwin 2IBaLE 180 - - - 180
960 4,563 641 36 6,200

192

Note: Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the chief executive officer of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&0 A 0 A B nE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection the management of the affairs
of the Company and the Group. The non-executive directors’
emoluments and the independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their services as
directors of the Company.

None of the Company’s directors waived any emoluments
during the year (2020: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Company’s directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020:
Nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2020: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 13 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

13.

14.

BEERFETHRAE
M £ =)

EXFRATETZME T BEHHRK
FHARRRAKREEESHRERZ
IR# o EXFIRIFMITE S RIBILIF
HITEFMS T 2HERFIER/ER
mEFRH 2R -

FARN - ARREEHMERETMAHE
(20204 : 4E) -

FAR - AREYTERARBDEFNES
SN - AERBBE AR IALR
£5 [ 12 A 52 Bh =k B BB B (2020 %F
&) -

hEREHHMES

FR - - AEENTEESFTHESR
FEM A (20206 - MB)EE - HHM
HBEEN EXWEIS s FREHB=F
(2020%F : =H)FARAEERTE
THBABNE=E MES NS
EHywT

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHBT FHET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 1,535 1,432

Share-based payments LARR (7 B EREA 1 5k - 17
Contributions to retirement RKE A B FR

benefits schemes 54 53

Total emoluments < 4= 1,589 1,502
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. TR RaFMNER &
(Continued)
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the FMNRATEHENIERARRES &
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the SEMEEB AZMT

following bands is as follows:

2021 2020
(Number of (Number of
employees) employees)
(EEAED) (BEAZD
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group FAN - AEEYERAEAAEERSR
to any of the five highest paid individuals of the Group BEaaMATEZAME - AERES
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as IS I A Z & B 18 79 52 B Sl B Bk 4
compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil). 18 (20204 : &) -
15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. BRE 18
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share AARHEEANEEERERNREEE
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BIER TSR ES
following data:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
Loss 8
Loss for the purpose of basic and AU ESREAR
diluted loss per share (Loss for RESEERZBE
the year attributable to owners of (KRB E AEG
the Company) FRNEE) (31,950) (19,789)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 o1 B 5 i 2 [t

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 & Z20214#3/31H 1f fT—'_ﬁ

15. LOSS PER SHARE (continued) 15. BEREE®
2021 2020
’000 ‘000
T T %
Number of shares BEEE

Weighted average number of ordinary ~ FH AT & B AR E AN [ #4458
shares for the purpose of basic and B8 2 B iR AR N a8

diluted loss per share 1,091,796 1,092,744

The computation of diluted loss per share for the years ended @12021 FK2020F3HA31HLIEF
31 March 2021 and 2020 does not assume the conversion of B sEEREFEBRLEBRAR
the Company’s outstanding share options since their assumed Gl lﬁ RITEBERECDESER  BH
exercise would result in a decrease in loss per share. REBATE S BEREERD -

16. DIVIDENDS 16. K&
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders HZE2021F3A31HIEFE » AAF]
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021, nor IE4H m) A% BRR A5 3 2 5 R A AT AR
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting B ptiE EREE AT g IR E A
period (2020: Nil). A& B (2020F : &) o
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BMENRKE

Furniture Leasehold

Owned Construction Plant and and Motor improvements
properties in progress machinery  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total

BENZ

BRN%  HRIR  HERME GARER RE RBRKE aif
HKPOOO  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKBO0D  HKS000  HK$O000
TR TERL TR TET TR TR TERL

Cost A
At 1 April 2019 R2019E4F18 571,112 54,010 - 14,564 10,625 25,032 162,503
Additions WE - 128,727 - 1,159 217 - 130,108
Disposals = - - - (4,238) (1,130) (8,208 (13,576)
Exchange adjusiments B AR (865) (7.574) - (358) ) (42  (9431)
At 31 March 2020 H2020&3A31A 56,907 175,163 - 1,127 9,620 16,782 269,599
Additions ME 583 63,908 41,692 19,783 222 - 126188
Transfers a5 - (248939) 248,935 = = = =
Reclassffied as held for sale ENABARELE (1,359) = = = = = (1,359)
Exchange adjustments ERA% 1,034 9,864 772 833 126 303 19,88
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3A31H 57,165 - 298,353 31,743 9,968 17,085 414,314
Accumulated depreciationand ~ BiERFE

impairment
At Apil 2019 R01954A18 4125 - - 9,003 8232 183 33194
Provided fo the year FEREE 1429 - - 2400 1131 431 9%
Impairment loss recognised in RERRA AERR

profit or loss 3,597 - - - - - 3,597
Eliminated on disposals RILERHE - - - 2792) (1,130) (3598 (7519)
Exchange adjustments A (110) = = (159 (54) (279 (596)
AL 31 March 2020 RA020E3AS1A 9041 - - g 8 236 B0
Provided for the year EmifE 1,353 - 8825 33% 648 1946 16,167
Reclassfied as held for sale ENAEARELE (1,39) = = = = = (1,359)
Exchange adjusiments B A 163 = 235 246 78 299 1,021
At 31 March 2021 R201F3A318 9,198 - 9,060 12,09 8,905 14,638 53,900
Carrying amounts BEE
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 47,967 - 289,293 19,644 1,063 2,447 360,414
At 31 March 2020 F202053A318 47,866 175,163 - 2,669 1,44 4,389 231,528
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress, after taking into account the residual
values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following

rates per annum:

Owned properties
the lease or 3%

Plant and machinery 3%—20%

Furniture and equipment 20%-50%

Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the term
and fixtures of the lease or 25%

The Group has pledged owned properties and related leasehold
land classified as right-of-use assets with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$258,176,000 (2020:
HK$277,340,000) and plant (2020: construction in progress)
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$268,976,000
(2020: HK$175,163,000) to secure general banking facilities

granted to the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, in the face of COVID-19,
management reviewed the outlook for the property market and
consequently reassessed the carrying amounts of the Group’s
owned properties and related leasehold land. Impairment
losses of approximately HK$3,597,000 and HK$16,531,000
were recorded during the year ended 31 March 2020 to reduce
the carrying amount of certain owned properties and leasehold
land respectively to their estimated recoverable amount, which
is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. The recoverable amount of the owned properties and
related leasehold land for which impairment loss has been
recognised amounted to approximately HK$26,450,000 and
HK$121,550,000 respectively, which is determined on the basis
of the fair value less costs of disposal. Fair value less costs
of disposal is based on management estimate having regard
to estimated fair value provided by an independent external
valuer. The owned properties and related leasehold land were
measured at fair value based on Level 3 hierarchy using direct
comparison approach that reflects recent transaction prices
for similar properties, adjusted for differences in the nature,

location and condition of the land under review.

A
A8
N

Over the shorter of the term of

3

17. 9% - BER®RE#®

BRERTIRIN - LAWE - BERSE
[BIE B O % B B EER B SRR
TR R

BEME BEHEHPS3%
AEEE BE)
B R M 25 3%ZE20%
WS | 20%ZE50%
RE 20%Z25%
HEMEEER BEHREHH25%
HE AR EE BE)

AEBCEEHREBDLEY A
258,176,000 L (20204 :
277,340,00087T) c BEWER DR
BEAREEZHEBEEL - UK
BREE A A268,976,000/%8 7T (2020
175,163,000/ 7T) Z B E (2020
FEREIR) UWBREBRTAEEY
—RRIBITRIE o

REZE2020F3A31BILFE » B
2019 MRS EREEYHWEM
SRS #EITEE - WA BHFEAR
SEAEEYERABHEE L HHNER
B - REE2020F3A831BILFEED
2 RIS R E B 18 493,597,000/ 7T &
16,531,000/8 7T * ABETEAEYME
FAELHNEEES RS EHM
ATk & %8 - BN AR &SR AR
FERABEEMERTNRSE - EER
BEBENEEYERABHEE L
/) AT 4R [B] € B8 9 Bl 49 526,450,000
JT}% 121,550,000 7 * 2 &£ % HiR
BAFERHEKAETE - 2FER
HERARDENREBE 2G5t B2
BB INBEEMIRHNET AT
B - BEVEREABHEAE L IRE
FIERFEARBEUNE LB HE
BOEELBAE AT EE W5t
Ol EAHARIA e S B AR =
BEHFAE -
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EAAEEE
Leasehold Leased Office
lands properties equipment Total
HELi HEME BORE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET FHET FET
At 31 March 2021 M2021%3H31H
Carrying amounts REE 234,602 5,216 3,121 242,939
At 31 March 2020 32020937318
Carrying amounts FHE 239,321 7,689 3,958 250,968
For the year ended HZE202143A31H
31 March 2021 LFE
Depreciation charge TERY 6,608 2,373 1,463 10,444
Capitalised in construction ERIREAL
in progress (68) - - (68)
6,540 2,373 1,463 10,376
For the year ended HZ2020%F3A31H
31 March 2020 HFEE
Depreciation charge nERE 6,943 3,741 495 11,179
Capitalised in constructionin ~ HEEIRREA/
progress (399) - - (399)
6,544 3,741 495 10,780
Impairment loss recognised R HER A RE
in profit or loss BB 16,531 = = 16,531
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

18. EAEEE @

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Expense relating to short-term leases BRAGHEERHEHRNE
and other leases with lease terms RIERE BB wEZER
end within 12 months of the date of 5 165% B AfEET 12 A N
initial application of HKFRS 16 B HMmEE 2R 2,158 1,920
Total cash outflow for leases HER ML 25 4,826 9,570
Additions to right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 1,880 1,545
The Group leases various land, office premises and equipment AEEGRELERES T LM - D

for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 1 to 50 years, but may have extension options as
described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns several office buildings and
industrial buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these
property interests, including the underlying leasehold land.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire these
property interests. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the payments
made can be allocated reliably.

The Group has extension option in a property lease. This is
used to maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing
the asset used in the Group’s operations. Period covered by
extension option is included in the lease term as the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended.

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$8,655,000 (2020:
HK$10,606,000) are recognised with related right-of-use assets
of HK$8,337,000 (2020: HK$13,095,000) as at 31 March
2021. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

4
4
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3
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B (T prat) - EIS R E RIS
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TEZEBBEEMEEREA - BAXHE
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N202143A31H - FHEEEBY
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

200

19. REYH

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

At the beginning of year REH] 11,766 13,408
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value RIERERZAFE

recognised in profit or loss #an, CRd) 58 11 (761)

Reclassified as held for sale ENHEAFERS (2,247) =

Exchange adjustments PE N 82 993 (881)

At the end of year RER 10,523 11,766

The Group leases out office units under operating leases with
rentals receivable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 2 years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond the initial period granted to lessees.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of group entities. The
lease contracts do not contain a residual value guarantee or
a lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
March 2021 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on the respective dates by Valor Appraisal &
Advisory Limited (2020: Chung Hin Appraisal Limited),
independent qualified professional valuers not connected to the
Group.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The directors work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs to the model.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

AEBRBELLEHELEERLEE
7 mARHHESE - ZFHE KR
TREP-EWMF  EHrEAEKES
RERERTAEANTDLZHR -

AR B I 8 AT E R P WA SN R
% ARMEHEESNUAEEERS
B ERE HEANLTE
EFIMEBERERIGEAARBIRRE
BEMEmEEE -

AEBREYER2021F3A31HZ
ANFETDREEAER EEE B
A B S G (A A EE R AT (S B
BRATF(2020F : RITHEBR A
a)) R FERE B BT 2 (S EER -

REERBOENATER  A&E
ZERE-STAEBRMBEMAFRMG
- EFHABRIGEEMTIE
tF - RIRE R EE WG ERNRE
N ¢

RIEFMER 2 AFER - ZFWRZ
R kRERAERERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 1 B B e R P Wk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continueq) 19. IREW*E »)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information BEMARANEEREMERLAFES
about the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period FBEBEERFBRT

are as follows:

Investment Fair value Valuation Significant
properties Fair value at 31 March hierarchy technique unobservable inputs
EARAEE
REM* MBABIEZAFE AFEZFR HERN WARE
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Office units located in 10,523 11,766 level 3 Direct comparison  Market unit rate, taking
the PRC approach into account the

recent transaction
prices for similar
properties adjusted
for nature, location
and conditions of the
property, which
ranged from
HK$33,047 to
HK$44,831 (2020:
HK$30,167 to

HK$46,450) per
square meter (note)
RIPAF B2 E=H BHELLEUE MSEMLER - ER
WAEBAL TEARIEE - B
KAGHRERRMU
MENZHER
- 8F J5K33,047
BILE44,831%8 7T
(2020%F : 30,1673 T
46,4507 70) (FiT3%)
Note: A significant increase in the market unit rate used would result in a Mzt : MSBUFERARRBELASEHATF
significant increase in fair value, and vice versa. BEABEN - R -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

202

20. B FEFT ABRmAY

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL: BRATFESABZS
TREE ¢
- Deposit and prepayments for life - AEBREZZE RFER
insurance policies (Note) ;A (M5 5,806 5,589
- Equity securities listed - BB LETRAES
in Hong Kong 2,905 2,657
8,711 8,246
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BERFEME 29T :
Current assets MBEE 2,905 2,657
Non-current assets IERBEE 5,806 5,589
8,711 8,246

Note: In 2013, Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Company

Limited (“Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into life insurance policies with an
insurance company to insure Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai
Man, the directors of the Company. Under the policies, Tai Wo
Tong Pharmaceutical is the beneficiary and policy holder and the
total insured sum is US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,600,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical is required to pay
upfront deposits of US$671,383 (equivalent to approximately
HK$5,237,000) including premium charges at inception of the
policies amounting to US$40,283 (equivalent to approximately
HK$314,000). Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical can terminate the
policies at any time and receive cash back based on the cash value
of the policies at the date of withdrawal, which is determined by the
upfront payments of US$671,383 plus accumulated interest earned
and minus the accumulated insurance charge and policy expense
charge (“Cash Value”). In addition, if withdrawal is made, there is a
specified amount of surrender charge. The insurance company will
pay Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical a guaranteed interest of 4.0% per
annum for the first three years, followed by minimum guaranteed
interest rate of 2.25% per annum or above 2.25% per annum for the
following years.

The deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies are
denominated in United States Dollar (‘US$”).

ﬁu_u}:

R2013%F  ARAIZEMBRRAK
MERE(FE)GRAR(AMESR
BRI ARIFIAZRE - AR
RABEEZ LR EREEZR L L
IR - IRIBIRE - AKMEREAEST
TARREHEA BRBELES
2,000,0003 7T (15 & 74 £715,600,000
BIL) c A ERBEAET FEMNIKE
©671,383% 7t (1HE 7 495,237,000
BT BHERELAUABHNRE
40,283 T (FHE R 4314,000%
J0) o RFIE RIBEAFERF AR IE{REE -
WIZBHE A2 REBSEERRD
He - AR TERFRIE671,383% Tl
2 EHAERZARERRERH
T(EESEEDEE - I H
BEEER - ABAIMNIETSEZER
RFESB - RBRAGBRE=ZFM
RN E BB FF4.0%H R EF
B HEFERSERENERSE
2.25% HHE2.25% A F A o

ABREZRSRANRIATINASE
TE(ETDFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

21. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 21. IZAF{EFTAHMEE UK

22,

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A& R I AE %

ANKRATEAE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
it T
28,780 21,336

The above listed equity investments are not held for trading,
instead, they are held for long-term strategic purposes. The
directors of the Company have elected to designate these
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe
that recognising short-term fluctuations in these investments’
fair value in profit or loss would not be consistent with the
Group’s strategy of holding these investments for long-term
purposes and realising their performance potential in the long
run.

bt ERBRAKREYIERERE - M
ERERIRERE - ARAESCS
EERZERATAREBERER/ER
FEFARMERKS  RARKE
RAANEEHRZEREQATFEZRE
HRPEARBERPFERZFRER
REEHRERAEN 2R -

INVENTORIES 22. FE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Raw materials R 5,574 2,007
Work in progress fEETRE 888 -
Finished products X R 13,629 8,692
20,091 10,699
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B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24

23. E 5 R HMEWFIE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables B 5 WA 7,981 17,507
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (2,259) (1,196)
5,722 16,311
Prepayments to suppliers Rt e B TR 5RIR 852 2,481
Prepayments for other expenses HEi RSB HIE 1,259 2,248
Deposits e 2,148 1,856
Value-added tax recoverable B EE Y 8,211 18,963
Other receivables H b fE W FIR 549 2,222
18,741 44,081

At 1 April 2019, trade receivables from contracts with

customers amounted to approximately HK$17,601,000.

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables net of allowance for credit losses at the end of the

reporting period, presented based on invoice date:

MR2019F481H  KEBEFPAHINE
S REW FRIE XY /17,601,000 7T ©

AT RRBERRAEENE ZEK
REHNREEBBRE® NREDT
(REZAHET)

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

0—30 days 0E 30X 3,382 5,062
31-60 days 31ZE60K 541 8,668
61-90 days 61290k 582 2,410
91-365 days 91E 365K 1,140 138
Over 365 days B iB365K 77 33
5,722 16,311

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2020/2021



23.

24,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s sales to most customers are made on cash on
delivery, whilst the Group generally allows an average credit
period of 60 days (with 15 days of grace period in certain
cases) to certain major trade customers with established
trading records.

At 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$4,104,000 (2020: HK$2,705,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, approximately HK$1,217,000 (2020: HK$171,000)
has been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default based on good repayment records for those customers
and continuous business with the Group.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 39.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.001% to 0.35% (2020: 0.001% to 0.35%) per annum.

At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group’s bank balances
and cash with an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$7,579,000 (2020: HK$4,709,000) were denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) which is not a freely convertible currency
in the international market. The government of the PRC has
implemented foreign exchange control and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

% e
- TR =

23.

24.
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AEERMAF D TP HHEATIRM
R RET MARE—RBRETRS
RHERHFNETIEEHEP60KRH
FHEEHR HETERTTEFAR1GX
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MN2021E3A31H » st ARNEE R
SRERBRFEBEEHNEEREL A
4,104,0007% 7T (20204 2,705,000/
TO)RIEUEBR KR RS AR B - B
BERLE R 0 491,217,000/8 78 (2020
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RITERREAS

SRITHEBRIRTF0.001%20.35% (2020
F: 0.001%F0.35%) ™ HF| Rt
E\ o
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25. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

206

25. 7 RARFHEZEE

SALE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Non-current assets held for sale: BEHECIERBEE
- Owned property and related - BEWMELABEE L
leasehold land 1,711 -
- Investment property - REYE 2,247 =
3,958 -

Included in assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2021 are properties for which sale and purchase agreements
had already been signed as of the reporting date.

On 15 January 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of owned
property and related leasehold land located in Hong Kong
at a cash consideration of HK$9,800,000. The disposal was
completed in April 2021.

On 19 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party to dispose of an
investment property located in the PRC at a cash consideration
of RMB1,920,000. The disposal was completed in May 2021.

The investment property classified as non-current assets held
for sale during the year is continued to be measured using
the fair value model in HKAS 40 Investment Property. The fair
value of this investment property as at 31 March 2021 was
determined with reference to the price of the disposal. This is a
level 2 measurement as per the fair value hierarchy.

R2021F3A31H » DEABIELE
CERERERBRERHECEITIEEWH
BEIME -

N2021F1 8158 - KEEE—-E5F
ZHAVEEHZE  NHEMRES
MEEMERABHRELD  BER
8 49,800,0008 7T - HEFHEDZR
202154 A=K °

MR2021E3 8198 » AEFME—FZF
ZHAVEEWHSE  UWHEMLRH
BEREENE BeREAARE
1,920,0007T ° HEFIEE K20216F5
A5 °

READBEAREHEZERBEE
MIREYMELRBFERABTB ST ELE
AR EYE 2 AN FEENE - %
WEMENR2021F3A31H 2 AFE
D2 EREBRETE - WHATE
BRzFE_E:te -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. E 5 R HMEMFIE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Trade payables B S IA 7,499 14,386
Accruals and other payables FEEE A R E M IR 32,271 11,789
39,770 26,175

The following is an ageing analysis of the Group’s trade
payables at the end of the reporting period, presented based
on invoice date:

AT RRRERAREAEENE 5 RN
AR ERED T (RBEZAHL7) -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHT

0—30 days 0E 30X 2,163 12,468
31-60 days 31E60K 504 1,309
61-90 days 61290k 1,691 -
Over 90 days HBIBI0OK 3,141 609
7,499 14,386
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

208

27. B EE

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Receipts in advance TAWRIR 5,673 9,416

At 1 April 2019, contracts liabilities amounted to approximately
HK$2,222,000.

Contract liability is recognised when the Group receives
consideration from the customer before the goods are
delivered to the customer. The decrease (2020: increase) in the
current year was mainly due to the decrease (2020: increase) in
advances received from customers.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

MR2019F481H » BHEBEBELOA
2,222 000 T, °

BHRBEEARERERRXNTER
AR PIRE R ER R - ANFEHR
2 (20204 : )T BEZAHNKRE
F B A (20204 : 1N FTEL

TREJIER 2 WAPHREEANA
ERBIHE -

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
FTET FHET
Revenue from sales of goods SFAFE RN BELR
recognised that was included in EERNEEERK
the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year 9,328 2,086
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28. BANK BORROWINGS

&0 A 0 A B nE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 & Z20214#3/31H 1f fT—'_ﬁ

28. tR1TEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Secured bank loans BEEMIBITER 336,845 250,576
The carrying amounts of the bank /,\BAL/(TH% REERIRTT
loans are repayable*: ERRERmEE"
Within one year R—FRA 91,808 17,874
More than one year, but not more —FRETBBMRF
than two years 27,576 20,351
More than two years, but not more MEZREBETBBRE
than five years 86,862 60,530
More than five years HF% 106,099 101,636
312,345 200,391
The carrying amounts of bank loans & B R EKEEKHEZER
that contain a repayment on demand ~—FREENRITE R
clause (shown under current WEREER RS AE
liabilities) but repayable within one 7R)
year 24,500 50,185
Total carrying amount of bank loans ~ $R1TE BRI 258 336,845 250,576
Less: Amounts due within one year B OREAEE TR
shown under current liabilities —F AN e (116,308) (68,059)
Amounts shown under non-current FERBEEBE NI TS
liabilities 220,537 182,517

*

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements.

4
4
b |
2
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28.

210

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

28. R1TEE (&

AR AT 18 B MR DA 91 %
At -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ BT 117,547 113,001
RMB AR 219,298 137,575
336,845 250,576

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s variable-rate bank loans
denominated in HK$ and RMB carry interest at HIBOR plus
1.2% to 1.3% (2020: HIBOR plus 1.2% to 1.3%) per annum
and LPR plus 0.975% to 1.325% (2020: LPR plus 0.975%
to 1.325%) per annum respectively. The ranges of effective
interest rates on the Group’s bank borrowings are 1.42% to
5.18% (2020: 2.13% to 4.90%).

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s bank loans and undrawn
banking facilities are secured by charge over the Group’s
owned properties and related leasehold land with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$258,176,000 (2020:
HK$277,340,000) and the Group’s plant (2020: construction
in progress) with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$268,976,000 (2020: HK$175,163,000).

MR2021F3A31H » ZEBUE TR
ARBTENZERITERD BIZ
EARTAEFREZINEF1.2%E
1.3%® I X5 8 (20204F : FER
TRERBEBZIMI.2%E1.3%) R E
HMISHRENESMEF0.975%F
1.8325% M F| L5+ B (20204 : ER™
BIREFE S I10.975%E1.325%) °
AEBBETEENERNXEEAS
1.42%%5.18% (20204 : 2.13% %
4.90%) °

MR2021%€3A31H » AEBIRTE
HKERERHRITHREBZAERAE
EEEREmMAELY258,176,0008 T
(20204 : 277,340,000/ L) B
EMERBBAAE L RAEEER
T 1B #7268,976,00058 7T (20204 :
175,163,000/ 7T) KI5 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 o1 B 5 i 2 [t

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

LEASE LIABILITIES 20 fHEEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Lease liabilities payable: ERNHEEARE
Within one year R—FA 2,499 2,612
More than one year, but not —FRETHBIBME
more than two years 2,591 2,574
More than two years, but not MERETBBRF
more than five years 3,565 5,420
8,655 10,606
Less: Amount due for settlement with 35 © BN B EE RNFII/RA
twelve months shown AR+TEARA
under current liabilities EEMEIBSRE (2,499) (2,612)
Amount due for settlement after FERBEEE TR
twelve months shown under AR+=@A%
non-current liabilities EEND e 6,156 7,994
DEFERRED TAX EER 18

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred

R MBRRAREIME - 5T
BEXEHEEERAGBCDHEE - AT A
SR TS s R Mg TRERIBS

tax balances for financial reporting purposes: RO
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Deferred tax assets B IEE E 371 122
Deferred tax liabilities BERIEBE (679) -
(308) 122

BB EEN R B (E
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30. LR IE ()
The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RAFERBEFEEERNEER
recognised and movements thereon during the current and ERIEEE,/ (BB REEHHT -
prior years:
Accelerated
tax ECL Revaluation Tax
depreciation provision of properties losses Total
mE  BHEE
BRERE  BERE MEERE  BEFE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAL T AL THL THAL
At 1 April 2019 HO019% 48 1R (127) 140 (655) 729 87
(Charge)/Credit to profitorloss ~ (318) /5t AB% 127 (18) 119 (194) 34
Exchange adjustments ERTIE = = 4 (40) 1
At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H - 122 (495) 495 122
(Charge)/Credit to profitorloss ~ (318),/at A& - 249 (148) (500) (408)
Exchange adjustments ERTI L - - (48) 26 (22)
At 31 March 2021 H2021F3H31H - 37 (691) 12 (308)
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30. DEFERRED TAX (cContinued)

At 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately HK$107,229,000 (2020: HK$85,612,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$47,000 (2020: HK$1,979,000) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$107,182,000 (2020: HK$83,633,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses in Hong
Kong may carry forward indefinitely. The tax losses in the PRC
will expire as follows:

30.

IEEL A ()

M2021F3A31H - AEEMHMARS A
FRIEE1E4/5107,229,0005% 7T (2020
% 85,612,000/ 7T) @ A A 1EE 8
RHmA - EsZFBEF 447,000
77T (20204F : 1,979,000 7T) #E
BIEFIIBE EE o B AR 2R s F 7 B A
st A EFLER107,182,000/8 T
(20204 : 83,633,000/ JT) FERIE
EHTBEE - AR EBETERSR
mE o FEBIEEBBR T EEE
I

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Tax losses expiring in T 5 [ 8 m R B TR B 18
— 2020 to 2021 - 2020 20214 - 1,936
— 2021 to 2022 - 2021 £20224F 105 621
— 2022 to 2023 — 2022F F£ 20234 4,524 7,444
— 20283 to 2024 - 2023F £2024F 14,585 18,981
— 2024 to 2025 — 2024F F2025%F 13,834 21,910
— 2025 to 2026 - 2025 £2026F 27,581 -
60,629 50,892

At 31 March 2021, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$8,246,000 (2020:
HK$1,720,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

% e
- TR =

SRR O ) P A R 26

2021438318 » AEBA AT HR
T ZE84) 58,246,000/ 7T (2020
£ 11,720,000 70) °© AR K A] 82
B FER B E T AT AR 88 AT 0080
MEERE - BRI BLE B T R
ERBERAELERIBEE -
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. IR
Number
of shares Share capital
BEBEE [}
HK$’000
FHT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRMEE.10E T
2 EmAR
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R2019F4 /18 -
and 31 March 2021 20203 HA31H &
202143H31H 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHRE :
At 1 April 2019 201964 H1H 1,093,796,000 109,380
Shares repurchased and cancelled BB O N s sE At (B sE)
(Note) (2,000,000) (200)
At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 7202043 A31H &
20219 3H31H 1,091,796,000 109,180
Note: MI5E

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased its own

REZE2020F3A31HILEE » KAFIEB
eR%

ordinary shares through the Stock Exchange as follows: B FriERI E 8 S MR T -
Number of Price per share Aggregate
ordinary SRER consideration
Month of repurchase shares Highest Lowest paid
BE A5 ZERHE &= BIE SHNERE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT FHET
August N\A 1,000,000 0.70 0.60 680
September NA 1,000,000 0.73 0.71 725

The above ordinary shares were cancelled upon repurchase.
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 25 September 2014 to recognise the contribution
of certain employees, executives or officers of the Group who
have made or will make to the growth of the Group.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
might be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was
24,640,000.

No further options could be granted by the Company under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

At 31 March 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was 8,928,000 (2020:
8,928,000), representing 0.82% (2020: 0.82%) of the shares of
the Company in issue at that date.

- TR =

32. LU0 R E M B 3K

BRNRBENBRE
ar 3

RABERAFEE R EREE
(BRAREBESRIERETEDRE
2014FQH2HBBZRERER
M- UABEAREBEETEE - 7THA
BEXmBABHASENERMAED
I EIELRER ©

BIEEBX AR EAERETSI T8
REZEREMSMORMHEE RZ
& iHif24,640,0000% °

ARRBPADNREERXFrER EHER - &
RATBREBEEARAFEREERBRE
At B — R h RE AR -

M2021E3A318 © BIFEH X AR
ERERE SR L RHARITENE
f& Ry R AR & B £8,928,000/%
(20204 : 8,928,000/%)  HE N
NEINZ BB ETRD Z240.82%
(20204F : 0.82%) °
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

32. URGBABERNNT R

EUSNGES Il s
e 10

Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share BIEE R AR E R BARE B
Option Scheme are as follows: VBRI 2 FEIB T
Number
of options  Exercise price Exercisable
Tranche Date of grant granted per share Vesting period period
FriR
R Ed =Rt BREZE BRITEE BEH TEH
1 25/09/2014 23,040,000 HK$0.826/8 7T  25/09/2014— 16/10/2015—
15/10/2019 24/09/2024
Note: MIaE
(@)  Tranche 1 options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) REBHXIXAMEESAERETE MR

shall vest as follows:

M

(i)

(il

(v)

216

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2015 and
exercisable from 16 October 2015 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2016 and
exercisable from 16 October 2016 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2017 and
exercisable from 16 October 2017 to 24 September 2024;

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2018 and
exercisable from 16 October 2018 to 24 September 2024;
and

20% of the options shall vest on 16 October 2019 and
exercisable from 16 October 2019 to 24 September 2024.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

e B R BT

M

(i)

(i

(v)

20% M B AR #E K 7R 20154F 10 A
168 B M A R2015F10 716
HZE2024F9 A24H HAR17(E

20% K FE AR E A5 7201610 A
16E BN AIR2016510816
HZE202449 A24H HAR1T(#

20% M B R X 2017410 A
16 R ERE KL AIR2017410H16
H%20244%9 A24 B BT T(E

20% K BB AR 4 K 72018410 A
168 B M A R2018F10716
HZ£2024F9 24 B BRI 171

53

20% M BB AR #E K 7201910 A
16H B NI R2019F10A16
HE2024F9 A24 B HARITTE ©
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during

the current year:

2. URGAEEBRNSR @

BRARBENBRE

aTEl®)

TEREBAFEARARERAFAE
SRR 8 T 2 BRER

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2020 the year the year at 31/03/2021
20205 R R 20215
SEEER I/ 4B1BRTE fTE™A RKEE SAMNBRTE
Directors 1 8,640,000 - - 8,640,000
%
Employees 1 288,000 - - 288,000
E&
8,928,000 - - 8,928,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 8,928,000
RERAITE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.8263% T - - HK$0.826}& T

TEEIMETFHH
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cContinueq) 32. ARG REBHNTRKe

N T T
HEIC)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

TREB L EEARTRERAH
T BRI BT 2 BRI

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme during

218

the prior year:

Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2019 the year the year at 31/03/2020
20194 A R 20204
SEERR AN 4A1BRITE T2 E RWEE  SASIARIIE
Directors 1 8,640,000 - - 8,640,000
%
Employees 1 288,000 - - 288,000
E&
8,928,000 - - 8,928,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 8,928,000
RERAITHRE
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.826% 7T - - HK$0.826/8 7T

TEEIMETFHH
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed
on 25 September 2014. The Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to recognise and
acknowledge the contribution that the eligible participants have
made or may make to the Group. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the
effective date of the Share Option Scheme.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time. The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be granted to any
individual in any one year shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted
to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
or with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Options
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during the period as the board of
directors may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding ten years from the date of grant.

- TR =

32. ARG BERNN K@)

BRETE

KARIIRIE2014F 98258 BB
REBERRMBIRE S ([BRER
g]) o BRI ARD BT
EERERETEER2EEZRN
AgEmAEEIEL 2 R o BBARERT
LB AEBREE 2EMB
REET T4 o

REBRESS - AoBEEEAM
AEEKARERFERE L RBINZ
RAZMBARIZEMNES &8
BE - BxAL TP HER K
B ABARBAATEBERH
A RBARRBIRD 2 BIRHKE -

BRI B AR 8 R AR R A E S
RIETE - IRECEBREY R &
BROHEBE AETBBBEAART
BTN 230% » EARBEIARD
AR ELRBEZIBRT - REMR—
FRERBENALEHR L KA RS
ZERES R BEITRE T ETR
PEE TN EBBARRRMEAREHEE %
TRBZ1% - B EEREKE L
FRPTESEE 2BREBARAA
A Z20.1%k EE 385,000,000
7T BIZBEERFBEIARQRRRLE -

BEMBRER  ARAARERAH
1B FRERBREZNRE - B
PR RIB B AR B 2 RN ES
SRBEEE < R BRAEIE (AR
RSB AR L A e +F)R
LIRS T IATTHE ©
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (i) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.

At 31 March 2021, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme was 6,270,000 (2020: 6,270,000),
representing 0.57% (2020: 0.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date.

Details of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

32. URGBABERNNT R

BREsTE @

TEERARFREREE - HEBT
BER ) B AR A Iy 2 W
B (EERLAMAAESRBK
2 FWTHIE : KRR AR Z
HEZBSE °

MR2021F3A31H » RBIEBIRE
BEREEHKRITHEBRERS
2z % EE £&6,270,000/% (2020
F :6,270,0000%) * HERARER
ZHBEITIRM 20.57% (20204 -
0.57%) °

IR B RT BIM X b BB A 2 7F
ICEUINE

Number
of options Exercise price Vesting Exercisable
Tranche Date of grant granted per share period period
FRr#%
#R REBH BREHE BHRTEE BEH TR
1 28/04/2015 2,400,000 HK$1.460/ 7T  28/04/2015- 28/04/2016—
27/04/2018 27/04/2025
4 03/10/2016 2,160,000 HK$2.1447%7C  03/10/2016- 03/10/2017—
02/10/2019 02/10/2026
5 18/11/2016 90,000 HK$2.264%&7C  18/11/2016- 18/11/2017—
17/11/2019 17/11/2026
6 21/12/2017 2,160,000 HK$1.412787C  21/12/2017- 21/12/2018-
20/12/2020 20/12/2027
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

Tranche 1 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

(i)

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2016 and exercisable
from 28 April 2016 to 27 April 2025;

30% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2017 and exercisable
from 28 April 2017 to 27 April 2025; and

40% of the options shall vest on 28 April 2018 and exercisable
from 28 April 2018 to 27 April 2025.

Tranche 4 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

M

(i)

(il

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2017 and
exercisable from 3 October 2017 to 2 October 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2018 and
exercisable from 3 October 2018 to 2 October 2026; and

40% of the options shall vest on 3 October 2019 and
exercisable from 3 October 2019 to 2 October 2026.

Tranche 5 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest as follows:

M

(i)

)

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2017 and
exercisable from 18 November 2017 to 17 November 2026;

30% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2018 and
exercisable from 18 November 2018 to 17 November 2026;
and

40% of the options shall vest on 18 November 2019 and
exercisable from 18 November 2019 to 17 November 2026.

B
Ll

2 /=R
"

32. URGBABERNNT R

BIRESTE ()

AR AR P i A 81 0 93¢ 1 0 I 1 P AR
A ERE I

()  30%HIFERRAE K 201694 A28
BB N A N20165E4 288 &
202594 A 27 B EAfETT(E

(i) B0%HIAEAXIE K P 201754 A28
HEERAIMN2017F4 A28 E
2025F 427 AHARITTIE « R

(i) 40%H)AEAR#E K 7201854 A28
BERE LAl A2018F4 A28 &
2025% 4 A27 HEARITTIE ©

RIRRE A R &8I 1% M HE R ARE A
BT

0] 30%H) BB AR B # 7A201 7410 A 3
HEB MAIR2017F10A38 &
2026510 A28 B TTE

(i)  30%HIHEARAE N K 20181073
BB NAIN20185E10A3EE
2026F10 A28 HiE1TE : &

(i)  40%HIHE AR E K PA20195F10 A 3
BB RAIN2019F10A3RE
2026410428 HAR1T{E -

AR AR P i A 81 0 952 1 ) 8t R S AR
A ERE I

0] 30% K EE AR A& 2017911 A
18H B LA N20174F11 818
HZE2026F11A17H ™17
f#

(i)  30%HIHEARHE A 2018F 11 A
18A 8RB KAl R2018%F 11 418
HZE2026%11 178 HE1T
£ &

(i) 40%H)HE AR HE #G 7Y 2019F 11 A
18H & E KA R2019411 718
HZE2026%11 178 HE 1T
i o
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continueq)

222

2. LR AEBENNAR@®

Share Option Scheme (Continued) BIRERTE (@
Notes: (Continued) Mizk © (&)
(d)  Tranche 6 options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall (0 IREEEARES SR L e #R 6B AR i

vest as follows:

0} 30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2018 and
exercisable from 21 December 2018 to 20 December 2027;

(ii) 30% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2019 and
exercisable from 21 December 2019 to 20 December 2027;
and

(i)  40% of the options shall vest on 21 December 2020 and
exercisable from 21 December 2020 to 20 December 2027.

BT

M

(i)

(i)

30% K EE AR R 1 72018612 A
21 BB R A R2018F 12 A 21
HZE2027%12A208 BAR1T
fE

30% K EE AR & 720199 12 A
21 A RE R AIR2019F 12 A 21
HZ2027F 12 A20H8 81T
fF: &

40% 1) i IR #E 1§ 722020 12 A
21 H B8 & Al 20204 12 A 21
HZE2027F12820H @17
fi o

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREEANFE AR T RERET S
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the T2 AR EE

current year:

Exercised Forfeited

Outstanding during during Outstanding

Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2020 the year theyear  at 31/03/2021

120205 FR R202145F

2EEER I/ 4F1BR1TE  FRTEHE RWHE SAMBKRTE

Directors 1 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000

EES 4 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000

6 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000

Employees 1 210,000 - - 210,000

(=3=1 5 90,000 - - 90,000

Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000

B

6,270,000 - - 6,270,000

Exercisable at the end of the year 6,270,000
RERATE

Weighted average exercise price HK$1.691& 7T - -  HK$1.691 7t

TTEEE NHEF 198
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 32. ARG AEBHNNAR @
Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRET S
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TREZELE—FEARARERE
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the prior BT BREES :
year:
Exercised Forfeited
Outstanding during during Outstanding
Category of participant Tranche at 01/04/2019 the year theyear  at 31/03/2020
20194 FN P20204F
2mELHER #R JA1BRTIE  FRTFESE RIREE  3A3THRITE
Directors 1 1,050,000 - - 1,050,000
== 4 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000
6 2,160,000 - - 2,160,000
Employees 1 210,000 - - 210,000
B8 5 90,000 - - 90,000
Consultant 1 600,000 - - 600,000
M
6,270,000 - - 6,270,000
Exercisable at the end of the year 5,406,000
RERAI{TRE
Weighted average exercise price HK$1.691% 7T - - HK$1.691ET
1T EIET 98
The Group recognised the total expense of approximately AEBBARNFRNERQARFELH
HK$121,000 (2020: HK$665,000) for the year in relation to BERS REARRE MV 4259 X 49121,000 7T
share options granted by the Company. (2020%F: 665,000 7T) °
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33.

34.

224

B Z2021F3H31HILFZE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income amount to
approximately HK$1,723,000 (2020: HK$2,042,000) for the
year, and represent contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Transactions with related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the following
significant transactions with related parties:

33.

34.

RIKERETE

AEESMBEEANEERBIRMH
BHEREEE - ATENEEBL
RASENEE  BXFEAZHNE
SERE -

AREBE T EEE T BB RILA
BIREERNBHAFTENKE - KN&E
BARFERAN—FE B DL RENK
BAFBEREFTAR/ZBHNEHE
AEEFERERENREERR
EmEEHR -

AEERGEBEEREMEERER
PIERMF S BEEL B1,723,0008 7T
(20204 : 2,042,000/ 7T) * BAEE
BEZETERTITENLREZE
ETEIEAHR -

BAEE T R Z
(a) EEEBLHRS

RAFE - AEBEBAM T
TIERRS :

2021 2020
Name of related party Nature of transaction HK$’000 HK$’'000
S B REME FTERT TET
Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Expenses relating to 1,920 1,920

Lai Man (executive directors of short-term lease

the Company) (Note (i)

ZOMEERBBEER L SELGIN -GGG R ()
(RRBIMITES)

Note: BsE -

(i) The rental expenses for premises payable to the above
related parties are based on tenancy agreements entered into
between the parties involved. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, these transactions have been entered into on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary and usual course
of the Group’s business.

0 ENLREmTNOmEESRY
BRI KR L E s R
HE - ARBEERR  ZEXR
HTREREEGTLRAEE
—MEBEEEBIETRIL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of the Company’s directors, who are

also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in note 13.

OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessor

Certain properties held for rental purposes have committed
lessees for the next two years.

Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:

4. BB AERZ ®)

(b) EEEIEASHFRM

ARRBEE(NMAAEEETESE
M SR EENERMIZEIS ©

5. KEHEZRH
AEBEFERHBEA
ETAREER O EERKRE
Pt E A -

RERBEERKEKERENFKAT :

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FET
Within one year —FR 267 58
In the second year REZF 178 =
445 58
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. EAREIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted B - BE &
for but not provided for in the RECFTHERE
consolidated financial statements RE SRR B ED
in respect of acquisition of BEARRZ
property, plant and equipment 744 38,245
A AR A A A (R ) A R A 225
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37.

226

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

7. MEEHELENEBYHK

TRAVNAKEREEDELNEE
g BRACMIFREEDY - BE
ABELANABREREREIARKR
EREBRAKESFEREERERD
BARELTHMELRERES -

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities Total
RITEE HEAE =
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H 134,799 41,330 176,129
Financing cash flows BMERERE 112,162 (7,650) 104,512
New leases entered BRI FEE = 1,545 1,545
Lease terminated HERIE = (24,571) (24,571)
Exchange adjustments M 5 (4,270) (1,072) (5,342)
Interest expenses FEMX 7,885 1,024 8,909
At 31 March 2020 #2020 3 4318 050,576 10,606 261,182
Financing cash flows MERERE 58,010 (2,668) 55,342
New leases entered BRI FHEE = 1,880 1,880
Lease modified HEIEF] = (1,421) (1,421)
Exchange adjustments b X 8 16,133 - 16,133
Interest expenses FEFRAX 12,126 258 12,384
At 31 March 2021 A20214£3A31H 336,845 8,655 345,500
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38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (which
includes bank borrowings and lease liabilities) and equity
attributable to owners of the Company (comprising issued
share capital and reserves).

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of gearing
ratio. The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of the capital, and will balance the
gearing ratio through the payment of dividends and new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of
existing debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at the end of the reporting
period was as follows:

38. EXEREE

AEEEEEEANBRAKREZE
BEUAFELE  ARABBLER
B ARz HHFEARERARRZ
Cl¥k - REEEBREZFERTT

AEENEARBEESER (BREIRT
EERHERE) RARRER ARG
#m (B BTRARGER -

AEERENABL R BEERE
BARE - ARBEEREARARE
BEAZEBARR WS B MK
BREBITHB - AREITHERLE
CERBEBNFEERBELER -

AEERBEHRRZERNEGEL XN
B

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Debt (i) B () 345,500 261,182
Equity (i) EEI0) 319,575 337,065
Gearing ratio BERBELE 108% 77%

(i) Debt includes long- and short-term bank borrowings and lease
liabilities.

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.

() EEEERRAREHRTERNEE
afE-

(i) EDEFELARBEMAERRHE -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

30. €@ T A

(@) TRIAEH

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI RO ERAEM
2EWA BB
TA 28,780 21,336
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEFABEN
TREE
— Held for trading -HEEE 2,905 2,657
- Others - H 5,806 5,589
8,711 8,246
Financial assets at amortised REEKATE 2
cost TREE
- Trade and other receivables - B RHEHMEIRK
KIE 8,419 20,389
- Bank balances and cash - RITEHR LIRS 15,143 12,428
23,562 32,817
Financial liabilities cHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised RN ARETE 2
cost TRaE
- Trade and other payables - B RAEMER
RIH 39,770 26,175
- Bank borrowings - RITIEE 336,845 250,576
~ Lease liabilities -HHEars 8,655 10,606
385,270 287,357

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include equity
investments, deposit and prepayments for life insurance
policies, trade and other receivables, bank balances, trade
and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with certain of
these financial instruments include market risk (including
foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain financial assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, hence risk exposure
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group has not
entered into any forward contract to hedge against the
foreign currency risk exposure. However, management
will consider to hedge these balances should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

(435 )

30. €I E®

(b)

HEEREEEER
R

AEBZIE2oRITIAEBERA
?é ABREZRe KB
B 5 R HEAMEWGIE - R1T
ﬁ% B REMBNHKIE - R
H{E&ﬂEE@ ZELTRIT
B 27 FHBREEEM TR - 2
ETZEcRITARAZRERE
%ﬁ%@ﬁ@ﬁ%%@ﬁ~ﬂ
A&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ@‘%%
/}Ib@]éiﬂ R ﬁﬁ%ﬁu{j
MW%%HBZﬁﬁﬁFTX°
EEEBH%ERRETERERE
ZE DATE AR B 8 I B U R EVE &
H i o

S B

AEEZETEMEERABEMN
SNESSTHE ¢ (A B AR IE &K
BEAZRR AEELE T
TR B A 8 R INE RS o SR

im:EREESRETERZSEY
/q:ﬂx_l'll:lﬁ%

R|EHR - NEBASMNEFHE

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at LEBEEREYGECRAE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: W
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Monetary assets denominated in: TS EREER
- RMB - AR 10,488 9,096
- United States dollar (“US$”) -Emx(=Ex)) 455 163
Monetary liabilities denominated in: LA N3 & HER
BE¥AE:
-RMB - AR 250,398 144,572

S ARAR L A (R ) M AR A
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 30. €I E®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREZEBER

policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

As HK$ is pegged to US$, the currency risk associated
with US$ and HK$ is considered minimal. The Group is
mainly exposed to the effect of fluctuation in RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in HK$ against RMB. 10% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rate. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in post-tax loss and an increase in
equity where HK$ strengthens 10% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 10% weakening of HK$ against
the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the loss and equity.

BUR ()
SR (48)

MRETTEETTAENE - BRAETT
KTz EBRERIL NEKX - K
SEFEXARBKBZFE -

TREBAEBYEETHAARE
EARTERI0%Z BUREFFIS °
10%SRERBAEREREAR
2 WINE AR FTR A 2 SURE
bR - AIEEEHINEERNS
AR E) 2 FHE o U TEHK
RBTLAEBINETHE10%IE N
TR DR BRI D Mg as 5 0 o
FLABTT A AR INERE10%M
B HBBENERKEELRE
RERZFE -

Sensitivity analysis BRE DT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Impact of RMB AREZEE
Profit or loss and equity B kg 23,991 13,548

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is not necessarily representative of
the inherent foreign currency risk as the exposure at the
end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

ARAEZRR  SREINAK
VRERRE R 2 SNEE R - AR
BEMRZ BRI T RRAEEZ
P 2 B o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits, bank loans and lease
liabilities. The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank loans. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR and LPR arising from the
Group’s bank loans denominated in HK$ and RMB.
The Group aims at keeping its borrowings at variable
rates. The Group manages its interest rate exposures by
assessing the potential impact arising from any interest
rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate
bank loans at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for
the whole year. 50 basis points increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax loss for the year would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,227,000 (2020: HK$949,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk on its variable-rate bank loans.

30. €I E®

(b)

S ARAR L A (R ) M AR A

BEREREEBEER
IEQ’*"' C)

FE@S

ZISEIEK EHF BRITER

RITERLRBEERERBEZRF
TE?IJTH R AEBTEEEH
/% BRITERZASRMEE
o REBEZBRE MM RERE
EE$¢IL‘A?§7_E&}\E?§%ZEHE
MIRTTERELE 2 BBRITRE
REREFTHREN XK -
AEBEERIDNRERE
B o REBE B A EER X
R EDEE A RO AT BE R B A A R oK
FRAREREEEENKER o

HEE DT

Tﬂ%’gﬂﬁﬁmﬁ&uﬁﬂ

RRBERAR AR RE
ﬁﬁ; o BREZIAD MR RER
RBERRZAREERBEERR
FRAMRERE RAETREEA
B A BB A KRR B P AR 2 48
MR ERR50 - ZERRK
BEEHMNREB AL 27T
fify

fWFE_EF T PRS0 - AT

EEMEERFTTE - AIAEE

RERKI R &EBBEIEMN R

L #91,227,000/8 7T (20204 -

949, ooo;‘%ﬁ) BT EZHRBA

EEZFERITEREYE 2 F X
[B\B& FTER ©
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39.

232

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continuead)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. Management will
monitor the price risk and take appropriate actions should
the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower:

° loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$145,000 (2020: HK$133,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of equity
instruments at FVTPL; and

o revaluation reserve would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,439,000 (2020: HK$1,067,000)
for the Group as a result of the changes in fair value
of equity instruments at FVTOCI.

30. €T H»

(b) BrTs5EFEEEBER

X @)
H B E R

AEEBRER EHBRAZS -
SRR ERER - EEER
SERERAR  YRNAFER
REVBE1TE °

HEE DT

AT SRED IR BER & E A
HEHHRAERERETE -

ARRER AN T AER LA T
5% :

e AFAEEEBERBREZATE
AFABEMNRATARNTE
ER-EINN - ) IE)
145,000 7L (20204 -
133,000 7T) + &

s AEFEEHFEHBAEAR
FEFAEMEERAD
R AT BN F(EEE)mE
o, m A #71,439,00058
7T (20204 : 1,067,000/%
JT) °
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, deposits, other receivables and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for financial
assets under ECL model. Information about the Group’s
credit risk management, maximum credit risk exposures
and the related impairment assessment, if applicable, are
summarised as below:

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits and credit approvals. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model on
trade balances based on provision matrix. Impairment
of approximately HK$1,063,000 (2020: HK$147,000) is
recognised during the year. Details of the quantitative
disclosures are set out below in this note.

(435 )

30. €I E®

(b)

SRR O ) P A R 26

BHREREERER
B

= B m R KRS

ﬁiéﬂ BRIEASENRRZHF
RAENEEMEBA KB
JEET@EI’JI—L R o AEBEHEERR
TREEHEWKE  RBE - H
MR S SRITHEER B - &
SEYEFAEMERRmE
EERRERAREEESRE
EREEERR -

AEERBEEAEEEREAY
TREEEITRERNS - AL

LEEEARER  BAREE
M&mmﬁﬁ&ﬁ@u &
B mT -

EFPAHELNEZRENE

REEREEERR  AEEE
BEEERK— XKML AEETE

FERELEERZ -BHEH
MEERIZF » DARE(RERENIRELT
B) - WEIBEAER o toh - K&
EREEBEEEEBERENE
HEEHE S ERETRET
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

24

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Deposits and other receivables

Management makes periodic individual assessment on
the recoverability of deposits and other receivables based
on historical settlement records, past experience, and also
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. Management
believes that there are no significant increases in credit
risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For
the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group
assessed the ECL for deposits and other receivables were
insignificant and thus no loss allowance was recognised.

Bank balances

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The
Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by reference
to information relating to probability of default and loss
given default of the respective credit rating grades
published by external credit rating agencies. Based on
the average loss rates, the 12m ECL on bank balances is
considered to be insignificant.

30. €@ T HE»

(b) BHEREEEZRR

R ()
EE AR AT (E)
2 RE MW

EEEREBEBTENLE BT
KBHRARTERTEMEER(FE
RIXFHHEAMEEEREZES R
Hib U B 2 AT B M HETTE
HERFEE - BEEEMEE %%
CHEZEERBAEBTNERR
I KIEIE M - AREEIZ12(E
AEMEERBEIRRE - #E
2021F K2020F3A31H I F
B AEBF EiRe REMER
HREMBEHREEBBRYTEK
BRIt 3 4 R SR AT (] S 1R 4 o

RITA R

RITEBZEERRER AR
RHBFREEREFZRIT I
EEBREEFARBETSEER
AR AEBE2EINEEFR
BETZENEREEFIRZEN
R 2 {1 2 B R AP IR
TS Z12EATRREEES -
RIBFHERE - RITHEHR 212
EARHAEEEREARLTE
x o
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MKEEKREEEER
policies (Continued) BUR (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S ERE R EF G (E)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REE 2 A EERRZERTM
comprises the following categories: BETIER
Internal Trade Other
credit rating Description receivables financial assets
AEEETHR B 5 EWRIE HitemEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
KR B default and does not have any not credit-impaired  121E A fEEHZ &
past due amounts GEHEREE B8
REGHFZEHVRARE B8 - RE&E
B3 g B IE SERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after due Lifetime ECL — 12m ECL
BREER dates but usually settle after due not credit-impaired 121 A fEEHz &
date FEREHEE &8
BEEARERBHRRERE B - RE&E
BERBHES &5 =ERE
Doubtful There have been significant increase Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
FiE in credit risk since initial recognition not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
through information developed FEBEHEE FREBAEBEER
internally or external resources B - RBLE EE - REAE
EERRE B FERBANEHINBEIR =ERE SERE
BN 2 BRI A RER AR
BEEE LA
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
&8 asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
FRBRTAEREEERE FEBBEHEE GFERBHEE
BE-284E BE-BE4LE
EERE ZERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the Amount is written off ~ Amount is written off
i g5 debtor is in severe financial (g E s

difficulty and the Group has

no realistic prospect of recovery
ERBRTEBEARGRREVRH -

BAREE W& ERKEFRIE

Qe
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

30. 2T E®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b)

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets which are subject to ECL

HREREERER
BER (#)

=B EfR R E RS (A

TRINTAEBAEHEHREE
EBiEFEZeREEZFEERR

assessment: 3
External Internal 12m ECL or Gross
credit rating  credit rating  lifetime ECL carrying amount
12BRFEHEE
BEERRTES
HNBEEFR ANCETE BHEEFR REAE
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Trade receivables N/A (Note) Lifetime ECL 7,981 17,507
B EWFE i (B E) (provision matrix)
FEHESHEE
BB HEER)
Deposits and N/A Low risk 12m ECL 2,697 4,078
other receivables TEf EER 12EAEHEE
e REMRYGIR g
Bank balances A3 to Aat N/A 12m ECL 14,745 11,989
RIS A3ZAat N 12EREHEE
g
Note: B5E

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The
Group determines the ECL on this item by using a provision matrix.

HREZEREFIANS  AREEERA
BEMBMELYESRAT 2T
EREBFESRMEEERZBER
o AERBERBERBERMEETE %
HEZERHERER -
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment for its customers
because these customers consist of a large number of customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are assessed
based on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

30. 2T E®

(b)

HREREERER
B (#)

1= B /B iz K R B 7T (&

BisE : ()

EAAREZEERREREZ R
AEBEFNBEBAZERRIGERTP
ZRE AAREEFEREAEASR
ARARBSB TP  ZERFERN
REZEPRIEE DGR AR
RIEZEE] - TRARBEERME
ZESREFBENRFEAREREES
BORBELEEERE NERZEERR
ZEF -

2021 2020
Average Gross carrying Average Gross carrying
loss rate amount loss rate amount
FHYEHRE IREAE T EEE ARE A
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHER FHET
0-30 days 0&30H 0.12% 3,386 0.11% 5,067
31-60 days 31E60H 4.36% 566 2.40% 8,881
61-90 days 61£290H 6.14% 620 3.31% 2,493
91-365 days 91%365H 9.18% 1,255 4.3% 144
Over 365 days 365H A 96.43% 2,154 96.43% 922
7,981 17,507

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant
information about specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group provided
approximately HK$1,063,000 (2020: HK$147,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the provision matrix.

LR S O W) A B

5B 18 R T AR IR B AR SR FB At FF 1
NZBEBREHNEMMGE > AR
BRPFRARZABEMEERELBE -
EREEHEENEURRERAETE
FEUBRTREV A B B RHS A 3T -

HE2021FE3A31BILEE - A%£E
ERBEEERE S EIWGIERR
BB E 41,063,000/ 7T (20204
147,000/ 7T) °
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 39. €R T A

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

that has been recognised for trade receivables under the
simplified approach.

(b) BHEREEEZRR

BER (#)
= B B G 6 B B (1
T&RIRERIEELHERER

B 5 i M OB 7 R T 5 B
BNED -

Lifetime ECL

(not credit-

impaired)

FEPES

FEEER

(RBEEE

WAE)

HK$'000

FET

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 18 1,055

Impairment losses recognised ERRREEE 147

Exchange adjustments PE 3 B 6)

At 31 March 2020 20203 A31H 1,196

Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 1,063

At 31 March 2021 MA2021F3H31H 2,259
Liquidity risk BB Z R

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the
utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance with
loan covenants.

EEERBESRRIE A&
BERTEREEER DTN
R MRSFEWKFE - RAX
SERERTEES - WHHER
ERERBTE - BEEER
EENERBER  ERETER
e
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. €RI T A
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) BEEREEBER
policies (Continued) BUER (8)
Liquidity risk (Continueq) TEE DR (E)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAMIBAEESREBBEZ
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has Fghe DB EIBER - ZRTIBE
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows PREBEZRAMRRENER
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which 2 RKBERRAEEAEL
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank BRoxFHE - AEME B
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included SREREBERNRITEES
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of AGRFRRHEE - THwR1TTREEA
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity BEEEBITHHEN - HtE@E
dates for other financial liabilities are based on the agreed B2 R EB NREHEERDH
repayment dates. EXE -
Liquidity table REBEZIFK
Ondemand Between Total Total
or less than 1 and Over undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years cash flows amount
Non-derivative FTE FEERD, KRR
financial liabilites ¢®BEE PR—F —ZHF BREIF RBRLHRELE HRHELHE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHT FTHAT TAT FAT
2021 20214
Trade and other B REM
payables FEfTRRIB 39,770 = = 39,770 39,770
Bank borrowings RITIEE 125,221 144,577 111,946 381,744 336,845
Lease liabilities HE&E 2,729 6,402 - 9,131 8,655
167,720 150,979 111,946 430,645 385,270
2020 20204
Trade and other B2 REM
payables FEfTRIR 26,175 s = 26,175 26,175
Bank borrowings RITEE 69,934 106,155 108,851 284,940 250,576
Lease liabilities HEGE 2,898 8,376 - 11,274 10,606
99,007 114,531 108,851 322,389 287,357
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30. /T A®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liguidiity table (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band
in the above maturity analysis. Taking into account the fair
value of the Group’s pledged properties, the directors do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.
The expected cash flow information of such bank loans
(based on the schedule of repayments set out in the loan
agreements) are set out in the table below.

Maturity analysis — Bank loans with a repayment on

demand clause based on scheduled repayments

(b)

REREERER
BE @)

MEE TR (E
MEEE IR (&

BEREBRERGFINORITER
AR EBE SN EERL
IR—FINBHEER - REER
SENEEMMENATFE E
ERRRFRITIARABITRER
SR IEHEEZ RN ER - TR
FIZERITERNARREERE
BRH(E D E 5 3 A 808 3
) o

FIA DT - EE R EKIEERK
HEVERIT R (BEREEENH
)

Between Total
Less than 1and5 Over undiscounted Carrying
1 year years 5years cash flows amount
KGR
—fR —-EZ2hF BEIF RELRELE RREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT FET FHT TAT TAT
At31 March 2021 20215
3H31H 24,752 - - 24,752 24,500
At 31 March 2020 20204
3H31H 50,258 - - 50,258 50,185
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 o1 B 5 i 2 [t

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 30. eI A
(c) Fair value measurements of financial (c) EMITEZAFHEFTE
instruments
(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial () HEEEEDNFEFE
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a CEHEERETMEREZ
recurring basis NFE
Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured REREPRKR AEESE
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. TemEEDNEAFER
The following table gives information about how the B TREIBEBZES
fair values of these financial assets are determined MEECATFEEENE
(in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs EER(LEEMAMER
used). i Ko gy A BRI ©
Valuation
Fair value at 31 March Fair value technique(s)
Financial assets M3A31HZAY¥E hierarchy and key input(s)
fRER M
SREE 2021 2020 DFEZFER RIEGAME
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Equity secuirities listed in 28,780 21,336 Level 1 Quoted bid prices

Hong Kong classified as FE1R in an active

equity instruments at market

FVTOCI RERMISZ
DERBRATEF AEMEE B

WAKBRATAZEE LT

IR AT

R E R RTERM(REDERARAE 241




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B 5 W % Bt Rk

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis (Continued)

30. 2T E®

c) TMTHZAFENE

(&)

(i)

A EBEL L FETE
ZEMEERETHMERZ
2 FEGE)

Valuation
Fair value at 31 March Fair value technique(s)
Financial assets M3A31HZ2A¥E hierarchy and key input(s)
fRE
TREE 2021 2020 AFEER REIEBARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Equity securities listed in 2,905 2,657 Level 1 Quoted bid prices
Hong Kong classified as EFAR in an active
financial assets at FVTPL market
DRRBRAFEF ABRHN RGBS
TREELEELT HE
PR 7E 5
Deposit and prepayments 5,806 5,689 Level 2 Quoted asset
for life insurance policies Fom value provided
classified as financial assets by financial
at FVTPL institution
DER/RATEF AEZRD TR ERMAN
TREEZASREZ P& EEE
Re RIEFFIE
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) WHZEEEREELLFE

liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The directors of the Company estimate the fair value
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost using the discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

FTEBZEMEERTHME
B2 2 FlE

ARREEERUBRERS
MED M EFHREHA AN
AEZEREELRERA
B2 RFE -

AKRREERR  RER
BT R IR SR AR G
FeemMEERERA
BEzhREEEEQFER

4+

Eo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 o1 B 5 i 2 [t

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. AR BEEMHE A F]
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY B
General information of subsidiaries B ARz —RER
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the RBERR - AEBEZEMB AR
reporting period are set out below. BEHIIAT -
Place of Paid upissueg/  Proportion ownership
incorporation/ registered interest held
establishment/ capital by the Gompany
operations Class of BRIR FLHRR
Name of subsidiary HRAL/ shares held BRRE/ CLLL bl Principal activities
[if: Pk RI/Be%%  SERGEA g 2021 00 FEER
Hin Sang Group Holding Limited British Virgin Islands ~~ Ordinary US830,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
fTEEBRRERAA ARRUES EER 0000%7  (direct) (drec)  HERR
(E#) (B%)
Hin Sang Hong Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$280,000 100% 100%  Investment holding; brand
frEERAR B LAk 28000087 (ndirect) (ndiect)  development and management;
(H) (B#)  and development, sales and
distrioution of healthcare
produicts, personal care
products and household
products

RERR : niFASRER:
RR%  BERDERE
En BAEEERR

REEM
EEREEFIERA T PRC Registered RMBB5,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding; Wholesale of
(*Hin Sang Holding Group hE capital ARHE5000,000  (indirect) (indirect) health care products of Hin Sang
(Shenzhen) Company Limited”)* AR (B8 (B%)  (f74)inthe PRC
REARR : RPEB RGN
REEm

CECE S E U RERMERRBERAT 243



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ B 5 A [ L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 40. XA B EEMH B A T
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY #E@®
(Continued)
General information of subsidiaries (Continued) ME ATz —RER @)
Place of Paid up issued/ Prop.ortion ownership
incorporation/ registered interest held
establishment/ capital by the Gompany
operations Class of BRAR ARARA
Name of subsidiary LA shares held HRRA/ BRRRELH Principal activities
il PEE2:] R/ BEDS HERGER EEA 2021 00 TEER
ITRERRIERAR PRC Registered RMB1,180,000 100% 100%  Wholesale of healthcare products
(‘Hin Tai Pharmaceutical (Shenzhen) ~ H capital AR%1180000  (indirect)  (ndirect) o Hin Sang (£74)inthe PRC
Company Limited) AR (B%) (fR) AERETENREER
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HKS 1 100% 100%  Property holding
& Research Institute Co., Limited B LAk 18T (indirect)  (ndrect) NEEE
BENBHRMARAT (B#) (%)
Beautymate Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property holding
& bak 1000087 (indirect)  (ndiect) MERE

(%) (%)

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Hong Kong Ordinary HK$24,000,000 100% 100%  Packing of products developed
(Hong Kong) Company Limited B LAk 2400000087 (indirect)  (norect)  and sold by the Group
ANERE(FR)ERAF (B%) (Bf) BEASERLRHENER
ERRBEERERAR PRC Registered RMB48,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sale of heafth
(*Hin Sang Health and Medical i capital AR%4850000070  (indirect) (indirect) supplements and products
(Guangdong) Company Limited* AR (B8 (%) 4LERHERRRARRER
Hin Fai Intemational Holding Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  Oniine sale of products developed
Company Limited (*Hin Fa") &4 LAk 1000000057 (indirect)  (ndrect) by the Group
frEERARER AR (7)) (B8 (B%) KLHEEFRERENED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

&0 A 0 A B nE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 & Z20214#3/31H 1f fT—'_ﬁ

40. AT EEMH B A F

General information of subsidiaries (Continueq)

H1B®

MELAR 2 —RER @

Place of Paidupissued/  Proportion ownership
incorporation/ registered interest held
establishment/ capital by the Company
operations Class of BRIR FRARA
Name of subsidiary HMAL/ shares held gepa/  BEREERE  principal actvties
WEARER R/ BERS KERGER Falg-g 2021 2000 TEER
Hin Feng Group (Interational) Holding ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$60,000,000 51% 51%  Investment holding
Company Limited &5 Lk 60,000,000A7C  (ndirect) (ndirect) AR
fresEERERERAT (B%) (53]
Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical &~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 51% 51%  Provision of Chingse medical
Heatth Service Company Limited &4 LAk 1000000057 (indirect) (ndirect)  healthcare related services

fERERERENLERAR

’* A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

A

A limited liability company.

*

The English name is for identification only.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired
an additional 32% of the issued share capital of Hin Fai at a
consideration of approximately HK$4,319,000. Immediately
prior to the purchase, the carrying amount of the existing non-
controlling interest in Hin Fai was approximately HK$4,319,000.
The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interest of
approximately HK$4,319,000 during the prior year.

)
4
g |
”

H

(H8) (F%) RESERREERK

# —fRINEBERE -
" —HAREERT

* WX ABEHBR -

EXRBINESRRATERELARER
BABEZAKENBERR - EFR
R 2IEMHBARZENERR
BRI °

BB E RPN ERETEMERE

4 4 F A R

HZE2020F3A31HILEE - A&EH
HIMNKEBEITIEE BT ANA32% «
B#1754,319,000/ 7T - ZZBEEA -
MTIEEAERERNEEEBELN A
4,319,00087C - RE—FE * AEH
MR IE AR R > 494,319,000

7'|:o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A £ B 5 A [ L

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 #1220214¥3H31H It FE

41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. A BB ERRIETLR

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY R
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RN—EKEARHRE 71,618 71,618
Equity instruments at fair value through BEAFERAEMEE
other comprehensive income WARBATA 28,780 21,336
100,398 92,954
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments BT RIR 214 237
Financial assets at fair value through BEAVEFABREN
profit or loss SREE 2,905 2,657
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W BfT /8~ B 5K E 216,687 240,898
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHREIRS 17 76
219,823 243,868
Total assets BEE#AE 320,221 336,822
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R E B IR 328 328
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE /S 4,490 4,490
4,818 4,818
Net current assets RBEEFRE 215,005 239,050
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRARBERE 315,403 332,004
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital N 109,180 109,180
Reserves 1 206,223 222,824
Total equity R 315,403 332,004
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved RRBIFBARNEKER2021F6H24
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 June HEESeERTETE - WhEMN
2021 and are signed on its behalf by: TEEREEE -
Pang Siu Hin Kwan Lai Man
ZA6T BEX
Director Director
EE EFE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

42.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

fo o B 5 e R B RE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021 &{Z20214#3H31H IF F/Z

M. RRATFHBEAR R TR K
e

(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves: RN TEEEE
Share
Share Revaluation options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BRE
RipEE EfifitE e 2itFR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT T Tin FAT
At 1 Aprl 2019 2019454 A1A 707,095 (335,004) 8,166 (9,627) 370,610
Loss for the year FREE - - - (30,255 (30,255
Fair value loss on equity instruments at RAFE AEf2H
fair value through other WAZBRAIEZR
comprehensive income TEER = (116,991) = = (116,991)
Shares repurchased and cancelled B EEE R Rk (D (1,205) = = = (1,205)
Recognition of equity-settled share- B ERHLE MR
based payments REBRNT - = 665 = 665
At 31 March 2020 12020437318 705,890 (452,015) 8,831 (39,882) 222,824
Loss for the year FNER - = = (24,166) (24,166)
Fair value gain on equity instruments at  RAFEF AL M2 E
fair value through other WAZBATIR 2R
comprehensive income TEER = 7,444 = = 7,444
Recognition of equity-settled share- B ERLEMNRH
based payments RERNAR - S 121 S 121
At 31 March 2021 #2021 3A31A 705,890 (444571) 8952 (64,048) 206,223
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING 42, SEHREE

PERIOD

On 26 May 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose of a property located in
the PRC at a consideration of RMB3,900,000.

R202155H26H AEEBR—ZF
ZHEANEEHE  WHEMRTEH
HmE - R{EBAEARKS3,900,0007T °
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

e 4F B B R

OPERATING RESULTS e s
For the Year Ended 31 March
BZ3AMNBLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FE FE TER
Revenue WA 201,815 188,550 183977 176209 119,441
Gross profit E7 133,243 131175 127,384 118,391 68,793
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREF /(E8) 8,308 (7221)  (11,619)  (32.253)  (36,846)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BE  BERER
For the Year Ended 31 March
HE3ANBLEE
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET TER
Non-current assets ERBEE 565592 764,258 555503 562,098 650,363
Current assets MEEE 334295 253256 109,847 72,707 61,454
Total assets BEMAE 899,887 1,017,514 665350 634,805 711,817
Current liabilities hBaE 29,332 33703 158,309 107,229 164,870
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE/(BE)FE 304,963 219,553 (48,462)  (34,522)  (103,416)
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTDEE 870,555 983,811 507,041 527,576 546,947
Non-current liabilities kRBERE - = - 190,511 227,372
Net assets BEFRE 870,555 983,811 507,041 337,085 319,575
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital AR 109,012 109,351 109,380 109,180 109,180
Reserves At 725573 828421 370,636 223,187 208,929
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive R EM 2 EMRA BRI R
income and accumulated in equity relatingto = 2t EE B AR
non-current assets classified as held for sale  {EHERIERBEER
&% = = = = 169
Equity attributable to owners of the Company A &R AE(L#ER 834,585 937,772 480,016 332,367 318,278
Non-controlling interests R ER 35,970 46,039 27,025 4,698 1,297
Total equity EmBE 870,555 983,811 507,041 337,085 319,575
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Hin Sang Exquisite Packing Milk Supplement (Granules)

BBiEE T 15 ﬂﬁli’}‘iﬁ'fﬁ

*EHNo. 1l REMH M R EBMEE (BRI IRE:Euromonitor International Ltd, 2010ZE 2020 £ $§ £ £i35.CH20214R)
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